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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A g

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)*
Chan, Sze-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Lui, Lai-kwan

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Vice Chairman)*
Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai
Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

< Resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
after date of this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

e Re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director,
appointed as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer after date of

this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).
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SOLICITORS

Sidley Austin
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

BNP Paribas

China Everbright Bank Company Limited
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

DBS Bank Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited
Public Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Wing Hang Bank, Limited

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2862 8555
Fax:  (852) 2865 0990
(852) 2529 6087

OFFICES IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Beijing Office:

Room 202, Oriental Place

No. 9 East Dongfang Road
North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638
Fax: (8610) 6466 0238

Chengdu Office:

4th Floor, Chinese Estates Centre
No. 99 Tidu Street

Qingyang District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province, PRC

Post Code: 610016

Tel: (8628) 8676 7747

Fax:  (8628) 6613 5700

Shanghai Office:

Room B103, Evergo Tower
1325 Central Huaihai Road
Xuhui District, Shanghai, PRC
Post Code: 200031

Tel: (8621) 6445 8945
Fax:  (8621) 6445 9710
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OFFICES IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA HFE ARZFNBEMEE »)

(Cont'd)

Shenzhen Office:

Rooms 1-3, South Gong, 6th Floor
Lowu Commercial Plaza

25 Railway Station Square

Luohu District, Shenzhen
Guangdong Province, PRC

Post Code: 518001

Tel: (86755) 8234 7139

Fax: (86755) 8234 0012

Macau Office:

Room 1101A, 11th Floor, AIA Tower

Nos. 251A-301 Avenida Comercial de Macau
Macau SAR

Tel:  (853) 2828 3228

Fax: (853) 2899 1108

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Tel:  (852) 2866 6999
Fax:  (852) 2866 2822
(852) 2866 2833

E-mail: investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
EE/AMT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Joseph LAU, Luen-hung* aged 62, appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 1989. Mr. Lau is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle”), a company whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science from
the University of Windsor, Canada. He has over 40 years of experience
in corporate finance, manufacturing and property investment and
development. Mr. Lau is the father of Mr Lau, Ming-wai and the elder
brother of Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan

(the younger sister of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan) are his associates.”

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 35, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is the Manager of Sales
and Leasing Department as well as the Assistant Sales and Marketing
Manager of Cosmetics Department responsible for Two Girls products.
Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from
University of Management and Technology, United States of America. She
is responsible for the Group's marketing and properties’ sales and leasing
affairs. Ms. Chan has over 11 years of experience in sales and marketing.
She is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an associate of Mr. Joseph

Lau, Luen-hung.

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 58, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. He
is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam
has been appointed as a non-executive director of LT Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited) since 7th
February, 2013 and was a non-executive director of G-Prop (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Common Splendor International Health Industry
Group Limited) for the period from 14th August, 2012 to 7th March,
2013, the shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) and holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom. He has over 36 years of experience in auditing, finance and

accounting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (contd)

Ms. LUI, Lai-kwan, aged 37, joined the Group from 2001 to 2005
and participated in the Group's property leasing business in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. She has been appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company since 2012. Ms. Lui holds a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Chemistry from King's College London. She is a member of the 12th
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference, an Honorary Trustee of Peking University and a member
of Hospital Governing Committee of Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern
Hospital, Hong Kong. Ms. Lui has extensive experience in property
investment. She is responsible for overseeing the Group's investment
projects in Mainland China and overseas. She is an associate of Mr.
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung.”

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai*, aged 33, appointed as a Director of the Company
since 2006. He is the Vice Chairman of the Company and acts as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor
Degree of Laws from King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws
from The London School of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor
Degree of Philosophy in Laws from King's College London. He worked at
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London
prior to joining the Company. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State
of New York and a CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is
the son of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung and the nephew of Ms. Amy Lau,
Yuk-wai.”

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 60, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-executive
director of Lifestyle. She is registered with the Royal College of Dental
Surgeons of Ontario, Canada and a practising dentist in Ontario. Ms.
Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor Degree of Dental
Surgery from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is the younger sister
of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wa.

Notes

A The discloseable interest of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung, Ms. Lui, Lai-
kwan and Mr. Lau, Ming-wai in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance is set out in Directors’ Report under the sections
of "Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the
Company and Associated Corporations” and “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests in the Securities of the Company” of this annual report.

* Resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
after date of this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

* Re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director,
appointed as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer after date of
this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

o For details, please refer to the Company's announcement on 16th
March, 2014.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEfE/

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 55, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of the
nomination committee and special committee of the Company. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the Monash
University, Australia. He is also an associate member of CPA Australia
and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He
has over 34 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr.
Chan is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of China Investments Holdings
Limited, Tern Properties Company Limited, National Electronics Holdings
Limited and Far East Consortium International Limited, and was an
independent non-executive director of Junefield Department Store Group
Limited for the period from 31st December, 2002 to the conclusion of its
annual general meeting held on 29th May, 2013, the shares of all these

companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 49, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2006. She is the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and special committee of the Company. Ms. Loh holds a
Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from
1990 to 1997, and has since become a practising barrister-at-law after
she was called to the Hong Kong Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and the United Kingdom (1991), and is
also a barrister and solicitor in the Supreme Court of the Australian Capital

Territory (since 1991).

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 48, appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and
special committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) and has over 26 years of experience in auditing, finance and
accounting industries. He is currently a director of ACE (CPA) Limited
and a director and the general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting
Limited. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business Administration and a
Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business Programme), both
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a Master of Science
Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The

Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries respectively.
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Mr. Matthew CHEONG, Veng-va, aged 55, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 1994 and is the
General Manager — Operations of the Group. Mr. Cheong is a chartered
engineer. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Science from the University
of Toronto, Canada, a Master Degree of Science in Automation Systems
and Management and a Doctorate Degree of Engineering, both from
the City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers, The Institute of Measurement and Control
and The British Computer Society. Mr. Cheong is responsible for the
general operations of the Group including information technology, human
resources and administration. He has over 28 years of experience in the

management and operations.

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 46, joined the Group in 2007 and
is the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws,
both from The University of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheung has been working
in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an in-house legal
counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal aspects of the
Group's various businesses, including project development, commercial
investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 22 years of legal

experience.

Mr. Alec KONG, Chi-ming, aged 50, joined the Group in 1994 and
is the Head of China Business. Mr. Kong holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
Master Degree of Arts in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a Master
Degree of Business Administration, both from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Mr. Kong is responsible for the overall management and development of
property projects in Mainland China. He has over 23 years of experience

in the property field of Mainland China.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 45, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager — Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 23 years of

relevant experience.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES &#&RTBABEN

Mr. Kenneth NG, Yik-hei, aged 46, joined the Group in 2004 and
is the Head of Project Development Department. Mr. Ng is a chartered
building surveyor, a registered professional surveyor and an authorised
person under the List of Surveyors of the Building Authority. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Science in Building Surveying from the University of
Greenwich, United Kingdom and a Master Degree of Practising Accounting
from the Monash University, Australia. Mr. Ng is also a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. He has been appointed by The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region as a member of the Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Buildings) since February 2007. Mr. Ng is responsible for the project

development affairs. He has over 23 years of relevant experience.

All of the above senior executives hold position as a director in one or
more of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this annual

report.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2013 (the "Year") to
the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$6,317.7
million as compared to HK$9,794.9 million for last year. The decrease in
profit for the Year was mainly due to the decrease in fair value gain on
investment properties and fair value loss of bonds was recorded for the
Year as opposed to a fair value gain for last year. Earnings per share for the
Year was HK$3.31 (2012: HK$5.14).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$2,917.6 million (2012:
HK$5,815.8 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value gain on
disposal of investment properties in current year recognised for the Year of
HK$491.4 million and the accumulated realised fair value gain recognised
in prior years of HK$356.7 million are included, the Group will have a core
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$3,756.8
million (2012: HK$3,979.1 million) and a core earnings per share of
HK196.9 cents (2012: HK208.6 cents), both showed a decrease of 5.6%

to last year.

The major non-cash items were unrealised fair value gain on investment
properties together with their respective deferred tax of HK$2,917.6
million (2012: fair value gain on investment properties, gain on
revaluation of stock of properties together with their respective deferred
tax of HK$6,510.5 million and costs of development recognized in respect

of property project in Macau of HK$694.7 million).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK50 cents per
share for the Year (the “Final Dividend") (2012: HK20 cents per share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 20th May, 2014 (the “2014
AGM"), dividend warrants will be posted on or about 6th June, 2014 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 27th May, 2014.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRESE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2014 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend,
the register of members will be closed during the following periods

respectively:

TEMERRECTTFE

AEEBRRDFE2014BRFBEFAGU NG LRER
B REREZRPBRENERN  ARFHED IR
TH RS IR R B R T4

(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM:

(MABELHF0VRREBFASYRE LRENER:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration
R  BP X AEE SR & R R

14.5.2014
16:30

Closure of register of members
TEMERRELTFE

15.5.2014 - 20.5.2014
(both days inclusive) (B iEE R M K)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

QAEEBRESZAHRENEF

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration
R RRAD B S AMEE R RERR

23.5.2014
16:30

Closure of register of members
TEmERRELTE

26.5.2014 - 275.2014
(both days inclusive) (B2 EEEMX)

Record date
A8k AHA

275.2014

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, and to qualify for
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as

stated above.

AFEARHE204RRBFASTRNEG LIRE
REREZRNRE A EZARMIBP &
FIABRE VAR Ll o R R K & E& R RATXE
RARINEBEBZBFERIBEETRESFETLE
RAR i BAEBEFERRERISIFKAMA L
1781712-17 16504 -
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group is one of the leading property developers in Hong Kong and its
core businesses comprise of property investments for rental and property

development for sale as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

The Group specialises in developing high-end and luxury residential
properties in prime location in Hong Kong; and enjoying profit contribution
and cash inflow from property sales to achieve long-term sustainable

growth and developing a brand name in the market.

In Mainland China, development of mid to high-end residential properties

with superb designs, construction and management services is our target.

The Group is developing a multipurpose complex for residential/
commercial properties in Chengdu, Mainland China, in which the Group
will retain its interests in the retail, office and hotel portions after sale of
residential units. Through maintenance of certain interests in retail, office
and hotel portions, the Group would generate stable and recurrent rental

income.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the property business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRESE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major
sources of our income. The overall occupancy rate of the Group's
retail portfolio was 98.87% during the Year. The high occupancy rate is
attributable to the prime locations of the majority of the Group's retalil

properties.

The Group's overall gross rental growth including the performance of non
wholly-owned properties was 7.86% with rental income of HK$1,540.6
million for the Year as compared with last year. The rental income from
Hong Kong retail portion showed an upward momentum with 7.98%
growth while the non-retail portion recorded steady growth of 7.55%.
Retail rents were generally raised due to the increase in tenants’ business
turnover benefited from the continuous growth of Mainland China tourists'

spending and the improved local consumption.

The average occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway Place was
approximately 85.55% during the Year. Certain shops have been disposed
of during the Year.

The overall rental income of Windsor House was raised 7.91% for the
Year as compared with last year. During the Year, its average occupancy
rate was approximately 97.87%. Windsor House provides shoppers a cozy
shopping environment with a diversified trade mix. Various marketing and
promotion activities are held in Windsor House from time to time which
boost shoppers' traffic flow and thus increase tenants' business turnover.
As a result, Windsor House recorded steady rental growth and high

occupancy rate.

As for Silvercord, the overall rental income was raised 11.08% for the Year
as compared with last year. All the shops were fully let out throughout
the Year. Benefited from the prosperous shopping atmosphere of Canton
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, as well as the introduction of several luxury and
premium brands in the shopping mall, Silvercord's rental rate and property

value are generally uplifted.

The tallest retail complex of its kind in Hong Kong, The ONE recorded
11.94% increase of its overall rental income for the Year as compared
with last year. Its average occupancy rate was approximately 99.91%
during the Year with many of the shops are popular fashion brands and

well-known trademarks.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Investment (Cont'd)

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage
residences in West Kowloon Reclamation Area, the average occupancy

rate was approximately 99.89% during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon Reclamation Area, the occupancy rate was

approximately 60.33% as at 31st December, 2013.

The occupancy rate for the Group's office properties maintained at a
high level throughout the Year. During the Year, the average occupancy
rates of Windsor House, MassMutual Tower and Harcourt House were
approximately 94.64%, 99.47% and 98.19% respectively, bringing the

approximate occupancy rate of the overall office portfolio to 97.18%.

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group's development projects have been progressing

satisfactorily and the sales have been achieving pleasing results.

No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, located in Mid-Levels East, is a traditional
prestigious location for luxury residential project in Hong Kong. A luxury
residential tower which provides a total residential gross floor area of
around 40,726 square feet will be redeveloped. Superstructure work is in

progress. Completion of the project is scheduled for 2015.

No. 1 South Lane is located in the Western District and enjoys close
proximity to the future Hong Kong University MTR Station. It will be
redeveloped into a luxury residential/retail tower with a total gross floor
area of around 41,350 square feet and consists of 92 residential units.
Foundation work is in progress. Completion of the project is scheduled
for the second quarter of 2016 and it is expected to be launched in the

second quarter of 2014
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F[EiREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

The Group has a two-phase redevelopment project in Wanchai (87.5%
interest) undertaken with the Urban Renewal Authority. Al residential
units of The Zenith (Phase | project) were sold. One WanChai (Phase I
project with preservation of the core elements of Wanchai Market) is a
residential/commercial complex development with total gross floor area of
approximately 159,700 square feet which provides 237 residential units
and retail properties. Certificate of compliance was issued in January 2013
and the residential units are being handed over to individual purchasers.
230 units were sold and recognised up to 31st December, 2013,

representing 97.05% of total units.

No. 55 Conduit Road (70% interest), a residential site in Mid-Levels with
site area of about 36,000 square feet which provides a total residential
gross floor area of around 87,800 square feet. This site will be developed
into a luxury residential project. Superstructure work is in progress.

Launching of the project is re-scheduled to the fourth quarter of 2014

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon Reclamation Area. It comprises 6
residential tower blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units
and retail properties with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980
square feet. As at 31st December, 2013, 962 units were sold and

recognised, representing 99.79% of total units.

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon Reclamation Area. It comprises
6 residential tower blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential
units and retail properties with a total gross floor area of around
650,600 square feet. As at 31st December, 2013, 739 units were sold,

representing 99.86% of total units.
Mainland China Property Investment

The average occupancy rate of the 79 retail outlets with a total area of
approximately 29,000 square feet in Lowu Commercial Plaza, Shenzhen

was approximately 99.71% for the Year.

Evergo Tower, located at Central Huaihai Road in Shanghai, is a 21-storey
office and shopping complex and has a gross floor area of around
263,708 square feet. The average occupancy rates of the office and retail

spaces for the Year were approximately 92.11% and 75.02% respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Investment (Cont'd)

Platinum (50% interest), a 20-storey Grade A office building located at
Taicang Road of Huangpu District in Shanghai, has a gross floor area of
about 466,464 square feet. The average occupancy rate for the Year was

approximately 93.11%.

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), having 503 rooms, average occupancy rate

was approximately 75.94% for the Year.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton

Beijing, average occupancy rate was approximately 85.41% for the Year.

Mainland China Property Development

Splendid City is a residential and commercial project located at
Yingbin Avenue of Jinniu District in Chengdu with a gross floor area of
approximately 3.74 million square feet. It comprises two phases with
19 residential tower blocks and a commercial building. Phase | provides
1,226 residential units with flat size ranging from gross floor area of
approximately 854 square feet to 1,812 square feet and a commercial
building with gross floor area of approximately 272,740 square feet. Phase
Il provides 1,625 residential units with flat size ranging from gross floor
area of approximately 854 square feet to 1,812 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2013, 1,212 units of Phase | were sold (representing 98.86%
of total units) while 1,565 units of Phase Il were sold and 8 units were

presold (representing 96.80% of total units).

The Metropolis is a residential project located at Yixue Lane and Tangba
Street of Jinjiang District in Chengdu, with site area of approximately
194,411 square feet and corresponding gross floor area of approximately
1.65 million square feet. It will comprise 3 twin residential tower
blocks and will be developed in phases. Tower 1 had been completed
and provides 572 units with flat size ranging from gross floor area of
approximately 704 square feet to 2,692 square feet. 372 units were sold
(i.e. 65.03%) up to 31st December, 2013. Superstructure work of Tower
2 and the final interior fitting works to its common areas are substantially
completed. Tower 2 will provide 573 units with flat size ranging from gross
floor area of approximately 735 square feet to 2,805 square feet and will
be launched in late 2014. Construction work of Tower 3 is scheduled to

be commenced in late 2014.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRESE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Mainland China Property Development (Cont'd)

Chinese Estates Plaza, a commercial and residential project at Tidu Street
of Qingyang District in Chengdu, has a site area of about 404,267 square
feet with a development scale of 3.2 million square feet. It will comprise
a Grade A office building, a five stars hotel, a shopping arcade and 4
residential tower blocks. Superstructure construction of the office building,
shopping arcade and the hotel portion is substantially completed and fit-
out works are in progress. Superstructure work of the residential towers is
in progress. Completion of the office building and hotel is scheduled for
the second quarter of 2014 whereas completion of the shopping arcade
is scheduled for the fourth quarter of 2014. The first residential tower is

expected to be launched by the fourth quarter of 2014.

The Coronation, a commercial and residential project at Huaxinjie Street
of Jiangbei District in Chongging (25% interest), has a site area of around
2,207,546 square feet and a gross floor area of approximately 11.08
million square feet. Its piling work and the associated substructure work
are in progress. The project will be developed in four phases and Phase
I will be divided into several zones. Completion of the first zone of Phase
I is scheduled for the second quarter of 2014 and the entire Phase | is

expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Overseas Property Investment

River Court is a Grade A freehold office building situate at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking

spaces. It was fully let out as of 31st December, 2013.

Securities Investments

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for

treasury management.

As announced in January 2014, the Group disposed certain securities
investments with realised gain of approximately HK$107.3 million
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investments to achieve satisfactory returns.

oy

s

EERENWED N @

TEIREEER ()

ESEGAURKETEFEREENHEER
48 E 1B £9404,267F 757 R - 5 & #1 £ 493,200,000
FRR-ZEERFBR—EFTRMAIE —ERELE
E—EABYES RAEEEREAK AR B
MESRBIES D 2 FEEETRERRARTK M
BEIREEEITPF -FEAE FEBETRBITL
BT - MABREEIIR S NFE_FRT B
MEBAGFIR T NFENERT - HEEEKR
EFEHEN T —MFEEERD -

MEREANNEET TILEENHHEHE ZEEE
B ({h25%E %) » Hb AR E A 492,207,546 5 R - 12
ZEMEAEAY11,080,000F 75 R o IR IFETTITIE AR HD
ETIR-ZEEBHNBAERE £ 05 AHME
B -F—HERBIR T NEE_FER B
BEE— BB AFERER S - "FENZRT -

BIMERE

River Court/3 — 1% fif 7 £ B @ 2 Fleet Street 116-129
SEZ KA KT R FE - River CourtiR =R
FEERNA31,324F AR - ERETREL- RN -F
— =+ A=Z+—B FTAERMNHEARE-

BERE
REBEMRBERFESREHENTEER -
MM —E—MFE—ARH AEBHESTEAERR
& pTiRs 2 B IR K #9107,300,0005 7T 2 R 4R

ErHPERRTHER AEESEETERE
BEHEREMAA UWBBLARERNER-

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

—r



OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of Chi Cheung Group

As announced on 5th December, 2012, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party in relation to
the disposal of 209,931,186 shares in Chi Cheung Investment Company,
Limited (now known as LT Holdings Limited) (“Chi Cheung"), the then
subsidiary of the Company whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), representing (i) all the
share interests of the Group in Chi Cheung; and (ii) approximately
61.96% of the entire issued share capital of Chi Cheung as at the
date of the announcement, at a final consideration of approximately
HK$559,199,000. The disposal was completed on 6th February, 2013.

Administrative Procedures for Repossession of Land in Macau by

Macau Government

As set out in the Company's announcement dated 17th June, 2012,
Moon Ocean Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Moon
Ocean”), received a notice of preliminary hearing dated 15th June, 2012
(the "Hearing Notice") from the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau
(the “LPWT") of the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's
Republic of China (“Macau”) regarding the transfers of the rights deriving
from the land concession for the five plots of land adjacent to the Macau
International Airport (according to the Company's record, formerly known
as Lots 1C; 2; 3; 4 and 5 (parcels 5A, 5B & C), Avenida Wai Long, Taipa,
Macau, which registered in Macau Land Registry under Nos. 22993,
22991, 22995, 22990 and 22989 and later revised as Lots 1C1; 1C2;
1C3; 2a; 2b; 2d; 3; 4a; 4b; 5al; 5a2; 5a3; 5b1; 5b2; 5b3; 5b4; 5b5;
5b6; A3a; A3b; Ada; A4b; Ela; E1b; E2 and E3 which registered in the
Macau Land Registry under No. 22989 as per the 2011 Revision (as
defined hereinafter)) (the "Macau Land") from five Macau companies to
which the land concession was originally granted (the “Original Owners")
to Moon Ocean (the “Land Transfers”) and the amendment of the related

land concession contracts.

It was stated in the Hearing Notice that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
had approved the initiation of the procedures for declaring the act of the
Chief Executive of Macau in confirming the approval of the Land Transfers
and the related amendments of the land concession contracts in March
2006 invalid and returning the Macau Land to the Original Owners (the
“Matter”); and (ii) Moon Ocean might make written submission regarding

the Matter within 15 days from the receipt of the Hearing Notice.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Administrative Procedures for Repossession of Land in Macau by

Macau Government (Cont'd)

The Group's Macau legal adviser made the submission which set out
basis for opposing the Matter on 29th June, 2012 and as set out in
the Company's announcement dated 14th August, 2012, Moon Ocean
received a notice from the LPWT stating that (i) the Chief Executive
of Macau had declared the previous act of the Chief Executive of
Macau in confirming the approval of the Land Transfers and the related
amendments of the land concession contracts in March 2006 invalid (the
“Decision”); and (ii) Moon Ocean might present objection to the Decision
within 15 days from the gazetting of the Decision and might also appeal
to the Court of Second Instance. The Decision was then published on the

official bulletin of the Macau government dated 15th August, 2012.

As announced on 28th August, 2012, the Group's Macau legal adviser
filed on behalf of Moon Ocean an objection to the Decision. As Moon
Ocean had not received any reply from the Chief Executive of Macau
regarding such objection, Moon Ocean and a promissory purchaser of La
Scala jointly lodged an appeal to the Court of Second Instance against the
Decision on 14th September, 2012 (the “First Appeal”) as disclosed in the

announcement published on the same date.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5th September, 2012,
Moon Ocean received a notice of preliminary hearing (the “Second
Hearing Notice”) from the LPWT stating that (i) the Chief Executive of
Macau had approved the initiation of the procedures for declaring the
act of the Chief Executive of Macau in confirming the approval of the
increase of residential gross floor area of the Macau Land from 392,505
to 537,560 square metres and an exchange of 9 small pieces of land with
a total site area of approximately 1,282 square metres initially forming
part of the Macau Land for 8 small pieces of adjacent land with a total
site area of approximately 5,204 square metres on 9th March, 2011 (the
“2011 Revision") invalid (the “Second Matter”); and (i) Moon Ocean
might make written submission on the issues regarding the subject matter
of the above procedures within 15 days from the receipt of the Second

Hearing Notice.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Administrative Procedures for Repossession of Land in Macau by

Macau Government (Cont'd)

The Group's Macau legal adviser made the submission which set out
basis for opposing the Second Matter on 19th September, 2012 and as
set out in the Company's announcement dated 16th April, 2013, Moon
Ocean received a notice from the LPWT stating that (i) the Chief Executive
of Macau had declared the previous act of the Chief Executive of Macau
in confirming the approval of the 2011 Revision invalid (the “Second
Decision”); and (ii) Moon Ocean might present objection to the Second
Decision within 15 days from the gazetting of the Second Decision and
might also appeal to the Court of Second Instance. The Second Decision
was then published on the official bulletin of the Macau government
dated 17th April, 2013.

As announced on 15th May, 2013, Moon Ocean and two promissory
purchasers of La Scala jointly lodged an appeal to the Court of Second
Instance against the Second Decision. Moon Ocean and such promissory
purchasers also applied in the appeal to stay the appeal proceedings in
relation to the Second Decision pending the final decision on the appeal

lodged on 14th September, 2012 against the Decision.

On 11th October, 2013, the Court of Second Instance issued a notice
of its decision made on 10th October, 2013 regarding the legitimacy of
certain parties involved in the First Appeal (the “Parties Rulings”). In the
Parties Rulings, the Court of Second Instance has determined that each of
(i) the promissory purchaser of La Scala who has joined Moon Ocean as a
co-appellant of the First Appeal; and (i) the Macau Special Administrative
Region, which Moon Ocean has identified as a counter-interested party
in the Macau Special Administrative Region’s capacity as a shareholder of
four of the Original Owners which were dissolved, is not a legitimate party
in the proceedings. As a result, the Court of Second Instance has acquitted
(i) the Chief Executive of Macau of the appeal filed by the promissory
purchaser of La Scala on 14th September, 2012; and (ii) Macau Special
Administrative Region as a counter-interested party of the First Appeal. The

Company has made the relevant announcement on 15th October, 2013.

The Group continues seeking legal advice for appropriate legal actions on
the above matters. The outcome of the Matter and the Second Matter
are thus pending for any subsequent decision(s) of the Chief Executive of

Macau or judgment(s) from the court of Macau.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEHRESE

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Administrative Procedures for Repossession of Land in Macau by

Macau Government (Cont'd)

In case of the Decision and the Second Decision becoming final, the
Group will seek legal advice for appropriate actions to be taken in respect
of La Scala project. The Group is determined to pursue claims it may
have against the Macau government and/or the Original Owners for

compensation for the losses of the Group.
Disposal of Property - Connected Transaction

As announced on 19th February, 2014, the associates of Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan
(an Executive Director of the Company and an associate of Mr. Joseph
Lau, Luen-hung*, an Executive Director, the chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer and controlling shareholder of the Company)
entered into a preliminary sale and purchase agreement to purchase a
unit together with a car parking space and a motorcycle parking space of
the Group's residential property, namely One WanChai. The transaction
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Note:

* Resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
after date of this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

The Group is committed to making contribution to the communities in
which it operates for all the time. During the Year, the Group continued to
actively support meaningful activities in the community, and to encourage

and promote volunteerism throughout the Group.

The Group together with its staff had participated in various community
programmes, charitable fundraising activities and volunteer services
for helping the communities in need, suffering people and children
with special needs from time to time during the Year. The Group had
participated in (among others) “Hong Kong Island Flag Day” organized
by Heep Hong Society, "Red Décor Day” organized by Hong Kong Red
Cross, "Oxfam Rice Sale” organized by Oxfam Hong Kong, “Love Teeth
Day" organized by The Community Chest of Hong Kong and “Used
Book Recycling Campaign” organized by World Vision Hong Kong, for

consecutive years.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS (contd)

Moreover, the Group continued to support World Wide Fund's “Earth
Hour" lights-out event by switching off the exterior and billboard lighting
of certain properties under the Group for an hour on the night of
23rd March, 2013. The Company joined their Corporate Membership
Programme as Gold Member in 2013/14.

In addition, the Company was awarded the “Friend of Social Enterprise
2013" by Home Affairs Department, Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. It has been recognised as “Caring
Company” for seven consecutive years and awarded the “5 Years Plus
Caring Company Logo" by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in

recognition of its good corporate citizenship.

In 2013, the Group donated a sum of HK$33 million to the
Community Care Fund which is established to provide assistance to the

underprivileged in the community.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company's website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries
to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor,
MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHREE

HEBER @

FHh AEEBREFERERES N [HER—/)
KIEEBESH R_E—=F=A=-1T=H8% %
IBARKBIE T A TYRZIME IR A & E S RE & —
N RRRIMAEFNAREEFE XNA-FT
—=/NEEELEE8-

ESI - 7R B SR E R BB R R TT R BUR R BUE TS
BERBZ [2013FHBBERR]| - ARFEEEL
FEBEHOMBEBERTAABARE R #
B WRMESFPlus EARBIZ] R UEEHR
RFBERRIEM-

RNEEP —F — =F 15 533,000,0007 7Tt T E [
e tBE ATRBEMMAIZEEES -

REZRBE

ARB—BBNERR REERDTERFTRET
BB AEREEHARBEZRELREBRRAE
BEEE e B AR RNk B EERBE -

R E R A A A E (www.chineseestates.com) » {#
REAFBEHAMEARNER BEFEEELAMRK
IR PR 2 RS MR RR R 2 B @ Wik EE
BHTAREBEETHEETARE BEERFIE -
EERERITHRAEEN UREFSETLZES
2SR -

ERAEBEz&HEN  ARAIER A MM ED
HEEFUBARALEN ARRHEBERES
RAARAR A REDIEEERRRIZEE R - W
1% 55 3% i8 & B investor.relations@chineseestates.com
BRARE DERFZERREH-

RRAIUNEAFAREFSHARANZAAIWEE
BN ZEEETHANRRERARNABEBEERER
ik AEBEEFETITE38RERFEBAE261E K
& # & investor.relations@chineseestates.com ° % &

HAERRBRARE LELRM-

TE-C-HFHR  EAEXEE =5

%

23



24

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEH &=

PROSPECTS

Although at rather slow paces, the signs of recovery for both the
United States and European economies are enhancing. Low interest
rate environments are likely to continue, helping to ensure that these
economies will continue on their recovery paths. The economic growth
for Mainland China is also healthily maintained, and its structure is on her
track to @ more sustainable growth in mid to long term. As a result, after a
few years of turbulence, it is hopeful that a more stable global economic

environment will be seen this year.

The Group's retail investment properties continued to perform well
during the Year. With continued increases in Mainland visitors and local
consumption, our prime shopping malls like The ONE, Silvercord and
Windsor House have all recorded satisfactory rental growth at 11.56%,
11.09% and 8.73% respectively for the Year. We will continue to
enhance the attractiveness for our shopping malls to boost customer
flow and spending by introducing new elements, providing cozy shopping

environment and securing the optimal tenant mix.

The office investment properties of the Group continued to lease well
during the Year. The overall occupancy rate of our commercial premises,
including MassMutual Tower, Harcourt House and Windsor House had
been well upheld, remaining high at 97.18% throughout the Year. Amidst
improving business environments, we are confident in seeing growing

rental income in these quality commercial premises in the coming years.

For the residential property market, the implementations of various stamp
duties have not only dampened the sales volume and selling prices of
the residential properties but also affected its demand in a short run. It is
expected that the residential property market in Hong Kong will continue
to face challenges in the foreseeable future and influenced by the cooling
measures, particularly in sub-urban areas and new towns, where there are
abundant future supply. On the other hand, well located properties, such
as those on the Hong Kong Island, are well sheltered by limited supply.
The Group is very confident therefore, that our sumptuousness residential
projects situated in prestigious locations like One WanChai, No.T South
Lane, No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace and No. 55 Conduit Road will continue to
be hot sellers.
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PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Central Government was keen in establishing an
effective and long-term mechanism to maintain the stability of macro-
control measures for the steady development of the property markets
in Mainland China. A market based mechanism will follow in future, as
the reforms for land, fiscal and tax are implemented; and as the policy
for housing supply system are executed by the Central Government. The
Group believes that the mid to long-term property policies in Mainland
China are becoming clear, which will be helpful for the country’s macro-
economy and property markets to grow in a more healthy manner.

The Group achieved good sales performance for The Metropolis and
Splendid City, which are located in Chengdu, a core city in the western
China. In particular, Splendid City is nearly fully sold out. Given the prime
locations and superb quality, the Group believes that The Metropolis and
the ready-for-launch mixed use development, Chinese Estates Plaza, will
continue gaining market recognition and be well sought after; and that the
sales of these projects will perform well in 2014.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to manage its businesses in a
prudent manner and will strive for developing recurrent income streams
so as to provide long-term sustainable growth for the benefit of the Group
and its shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their
dedication and hard work.

Joseph Lau, Luen-hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2014
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
R E S eI

RESULTS

Continuing Operations
Revenue

Revenue for the Year amounted to HK$6,452.7 million (2012:
HK$2,433.5 million), an 165.2% increase over last year and comprised
property sales of HK$4,651.6 million (2012: HK$720.5 million), gross
rental income of HK$1,791.3 million (2012: HK$1,673.2 million); losses
on sales of investments held-for-trading on a net basis of HK$44.4 million
(2012: HK$9.2 million) and others of HK$54.2 million (2012: HK$49.0
million). The increase in revenue was mainly due to the increase in sales

of development properties and gross rental income.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$2,760.7 million (2012:
HK$1,865.0 million), an 48.0% increase as compared with last year
which was mainly due to the increase in profit from property sales of

HK$796.6 million and HK$128.9 million from property leasing.
Property Leasing
For property leasing, the rental revenue in retail section jumped by 8.7%

to HK$1
by 4.1% to HK$613.6 million respectively during the Year. The total

,177.7 million and rental revenue in non-retail section increased

rental income in revenue for the Year recorded an increase of 7.1% to
HK$1,791.3 million as compared with last year of HK$1,673.2 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates
of HK$212.5 million (2012: HK$217.4 million), the total attributable
rental revenue to the Group after non-controlling interests reached
approximately HK$2,002.8 million (2012: HK$1,887.0 million), which

achieved an 6.1% increase over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$1,867.7 million, an
7.3% increase over HK$1,740.6 million in 2012.

Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the attributable property sales revenue and the relevant
attributable profit from the Group and its associates reached HK$4,291.4
million (2012: HK$949.6 million) and HK$921.3 million (2012: HK$357.2

million), which were 4.5 times and 2.6 times to last year respectively.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

The Group generated substantial sales revenue and attributable profit
in 2013 from sales of properties, namely Phase Il of Splendid City in
Chengdu (100% interest), as well as One WanChai in Wanchai (87.5%

interest).

The major components recorded in gross profit are sales of: Phase Il of
Splendid City generated profit of HK$286.3 million and, on the other
hand, Tower 1 of The Metropolis in Chengdu (100% interest) recorded
a loss of HK$16.8 million (after accounted for an underprovision of
construction costs for units sold in prior years of HK$39.7 million) and an
underprovision for construction costs for previously sold units of Phase |
of Splendid City of HK$168.7 million (2012: profits on sales of i-home
in Tai Kok Tsui (100% interest), City 151 in Kau Pui Lung Road (100%
interest), Phase Il of Splendid City and Tower 1 of The Metropolis of
HK$19.8 million, HK$0.1 million, HK$83.1 million and HK$137.9 million
respectively and loss on sales of MOD 595 in Mongkok (100% interest)
of HK$0.2 million and Phase | of Splendid City (after taking into account
of an underprovision of construction costs of HK$7.5 million) of HK$5.3

million).

Sales of One WanChai and parking spaces at The Zenith, both in
Wanchai (87.5% interest), recognised during the Year had contributed an
attributable profit to the Group of HK$810.3 million and HK$7.3 million
respectively (2012: parking spaces at The Zenith of HK$6.4 million).

In respect of properties held by associates, Kwong Kin Trade Centre
in Tuen Mun (40% interest) and Greenville Residence in Yuen Long
(50% interest) generated profit of HK$2.7 million and HK$0.2 million
respectively (2012: The Hermitage in West Kowloon (25% interest),
Indihome in Tsuen Wan (50% interest), Hing Wai Centre in Aberdeen
(50% interest), Kwong Kin Trade Centre, Greenville Residence, Villa
Carlton in Cheung Sha Wan (50% interest) and Shiu Fai Terrace in Stubbs
Road (50% interest) generated profit of HK$17.8 million, HK$89.3
million, HK$6.8 million, HK$0.9 million, HK$0.2 million, HK$0.3 million
and HK$0.1 million respectively) as reflected in the share of results of

associates.

During the Year, the forfeited deposits received for Phase Il of Splendid
City of HK$0.1 million (2012: HK$0.4 million) and The Metropolis of

HK$0.1 million (2012: nil) was recorded in other income.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

At 31st December, 2013, deposits received from stock of properties
contracted to be sold for which the revenue and profit to be recognised
in 2014 amounted to HK$9.3 million. Of which, a total of HK$0.2 million
deposits were received from sales contracted for Phase Il of Splendid City,
with average selling price of approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 1.2 million
per unit. The sales contracted for Phase Il of Splendid City were 8 units
of RMB9.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.4 million). Total
deposits received for 3 units of One WanChai and 1 carpark of The Zenith
contracted for sale totaling HK$91.3 million (with average selling price for
One WanChai of approximately HK$24,390 per square foot) as at 31st
December, 2013 were HK$9.1

sales to the Group amounted to HK$79.9 million in aggregate. The sales

million, and the attributable interest of

recorded for The Coronation in West Kowloon (15% interest) were 739
units and the attributable interest of sales to the Group was HK$1,459.2
million, the attributable income from sales of The Coronation is expected

to be recognised in 2014 upon receipt of dividend income.

The presale recorded of La Scala in Macau was 302 units of HK$3,825.3

million with deposits received of HK$383.9 million.

In summary, the Group together with associates and an investee company
executed properties sale agreements, including presale agreements, to
third parties and connected persons with an attributable contracted sales
of HK$2,145.7 million (2012: HK$7,667.8 million) during the Year. Total
attributable property sale profit recognised for the Year was HK$921.3
million (2012: HK$357.2 million).

Securities Investments

Under the low interest rate environment, the Group has closely managed
the securities investments with a view to yield enhancement. During
the Year, the Group recorded a realised loss of HK$44.4 million (2012:
HK$9.2 million) on disposal of listed investments held-for-trading (the loss
of which was included in revenue) with gross proceeds of HK$2,457.1
million (2012: HK$1,489.4 million). However, a realised gain from sale
of bonds of HK$151.7 million (2012: HK$275.7 million) was recognised.
The net realised gain for the Year was HK$107.3 million (2012: HK$266.5

million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$85.5 million
(2012: gain of HK$1,307.3 million) representing the changes in fair value
of listed securities and bonds, which had no effect to the cash flow of the

Group.

During both years, there was no acquisition and disposal on listed equity

securities included in available-for-sale investments.

Summing up the above and adding the net income from dividend, interest
income, other investment income and other finance costs of HK$834.2
million (2012: HK$843.2 million), the gain recognised on securities
investments was HK$856.0 million (2012: HK$2,417.0 million).

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below.
Listed Available-for-sale Equity Investments

The Group had not acquired and disposed any listed available-for-sale

equity investments for the years of 2013 and 2012.
Listed Investments Held-for-trading and Treasury Products

The listed investments held-for-trading and treasury products recorded
a profit before or after finance costs of HK$912.6 million (2012:
HK$2,441.3 million) and HK$856.0 million (2012: HK$2,417.0 million)

respectively for the Year.

Profit from the listed investments held-for-trading reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year comprised
a gross loss totaling HK$44.4 million (2012: HK$9.2 million), an
unrealised loss on fair value changes of HK$85.5 million (2012: gain of
HK$1,307.3 million), a realised gain on bonds of HK$151.7 million (2012:
HK$275.7 million) and dividend, interest income and other investment
income of HK$890.8 million (2012: HK$867.5 million). Net relevant
finance costs for the Year of HK$56.6 million (2012: HK$24.3 million)
including interest expense of HK$42.1 million (2012: HK$33.8 million)
and exchange loss of HK$14.5 million (2012: gain of HK$9.5 million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, management and maintenance service income
and interest income from loan note, maintained stable at HK$79.2 million
(2012: HK$78.7 million).

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 9.2% to HK$307.8
million (2012: HK$281.8 million), costs of development recognised in
respect of property project in Macau of HK$22.0 million (2012: HK$694.7
million) and finance costs increased by 31.6% to HK$453.6 million
(2012: HK$344.8 million), including exchange loss of HK$14.5 million
(2012: gain of HK$9.5 million) on foreign currency loans hedged for

foreign currency securities investments.

Other gains and losses recorded a gain of HK$202.8 million mainly
comprised gain on disposal of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited
(now known as LT Holdings Limited) (“Chi Cheung”) (“Chi Cheung
Disposal”) of HK$198.5 million (2012: net gain of HK$235.3 million
including gain on disposal of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now known as
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited) (“G-Prop
Disposal”) of HK$107.0 million and gain on revaluation of stock of

properties upon transfer to investment properties of HK$129.0 million).
Disposal of a Listed Subsidiary

On 5th December, 2012, (i) Billion Up Limited (“Billion Up"), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being the
guarantor of Billion Up; and (iii) a third party independent of and not
connected with the Company and its connected persons (“Purchaser of
Chi Cheung”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
which Billion Up agreed to sell and the Purchaser of Chi Cheung agreed
to purchase the shares of Chi Cheung held by the Group, representing
approximately 61.96% of the entire issued share capital of Chi Cheung.
The Chi Cheung Disposal was completed on 6th February, 2013. Details
of the Chi Cheung Disposal were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 5th December, 2012.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Continuing Operations (Cont'd)
Associates

The share of results of associates for the Year was a profit of HK$350.9
million as compared to HK$580.0 million for last year, the net decrease
of which was mainly due to the decrease in fair value gain on investment
properties of associates together with the deferred tax of HK$307.7 million
as compared with 2012 and the recognition of attributable profit from sale
of One WanChai and The Zenith (both of 12.5% interest) indirectly held
by an associate of HK$113.3 million (2012: HK$0.6 million).

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31st December, 2013, by B.l. Appraisals Limited
("B.l. Appraisals”) and Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited (“Vigers
Appraisal”) whereas the investment property in the United Kingdom was
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent
property valuers. An increase in fair value on investment properties of
HK$3,402.9 million (2012: HK$6,109.0 million) was recorded during the
Year. Except for a gain of HK$491.4 million realised upon sale of certain
investment properties during the Year, the unrealised fair value gain will

not affect the cash flow of the Group.
Discontinued Operation

The operating segment of “floating rate and fixed rate notes” on available-
for-sale investments was discontinued since year 2012 as a result of the
Chi Cheung Disposal (as disclosed in the paragraph “Disposal of a Listed
Subsidiary” above) and the G-Prop Disposal. Details of the discontinued
operation are set out in Note 12 to these consolidated financial

statements.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO

Continuing and Discontinued Operations
Profit

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was HK$6,317.7
million as compared to HK$9,794.9 million for last year. The decrease in
profit for the Year was mainly due to the decrease in fair value gain on
investment properties and fair value loss of bonds was recorded for the
Year as opposed to a fair value gain for last year. Earnings per share for the
Year was HK$3.31 (2012: HK$5.14).

Core Profit

The Group has disposed of certain investment properties in 2013, the
cost of which are stated at fair value. Before disposal, such gain/loss
on fair value change is unrealised and recognised at the end of every
reporting period, but exclude from core profit as non-cash items. In the
year of disposal, such unrealised gain/loss has become realised; and in
computating core profit, accumulated fair value gain/loss from prior years

and current year are included as cash items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$2,917.6 million (2012:
HK$5,815.8 million) are excluded, but the realised fair value gain on
disposal of investment properties in current year recognised for the Year of
HK$491.4 million and the accumulated realised fair value gain recognised
in prior years of HK$356.7 million are included, the Group will have a core
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of HK$3,756.8
million (2012: HK$3,979.1 million) and a core earnings per share of
HK196.9 cents (2012: HK208.6 cents), both showed a decrease of 5.6%

to last year.

The major non-cash items were unrealised fair value gain on investment
properties together with their respective deferred tax of HK$2,917.6
million (2012: fair value gain on investment properties, gain on
revaluation of stock of properties together with their respective deferred
tax of HK$$6,510.5 million and costs of development recognised in

respect of property project in Macau of HK$694.7 million).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE AND CASH PAYMENT RATIO
(Cont'd)

Continuing and Discontinued Operations (Cont'd)

Dividends

Special interim dividend of HK$1 (2011: nil) per share in total amount of
HK$1,907.6 million and final dividend of HK20 cents (2011: HK1 cent)
per share in total amount of HK$381.5 million for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 were paid in cash on 22nd February, 2013 and 10th

June, 2013 respectively.

Interim dividend of HK20 cents (2012: HK1 cent) per share and special
interim dividend of HK$1.3 (2012: nil) per share in total amount of
HK$2,861.4 million for the half year ended 30th June, 2013 were paid in
cash on 16th August, 2013.

Total dividends of HK$5,150.5 million were paid in cash during the Year.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's
share.

Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$3,756.8 million (2012:
HK$3,979.1 million) or HK196.9 cents (2012: HK208.6 cents) per share;
(b) cash final dividend of HK50 cents (2012: HK20 cents) per share
proposed; and cash interim dividend of HK20 cents (2012: HK1 cent) per
share and special interim dividend of HK$1.3 (2012: nil) per share were
paid during the Year and (c) special interim dividend of nil (2012: HK$1
per share) was declared and paid subsequent to the year end date, the
ratio of such cash payment to the core profit is 101.6% (2012: 58.0%).
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's total net asset to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$47,103.7 million (2012:
HK$45,546.5 million), an increase of HK$1,557.2 million or 3.4% when
compared with 2012. With the total number of ordinary shares in issue of
1,907,619,079 as at 31st December, 2013 (2012: 1,907,619,079 shares),
the net asset value per share to owners of the Company was HK$24.69,
an increase of 3.4% over 2012 (HK$23.88 per share). The movement in
net asset value was mainly due to (a) total comprehensive income for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$6,712.0 million; and
(b) payment of special interim and final dividend for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and interim and special interim dividends for the half
year ended 30th June, 2013 totaling HK$5,150.5 million.

There was no transaction on the listed equity securities investments
categorised as available-for-sales investments for the Year. The carrying
amounts of the listed equity securities investments reserve as at 31st
December, 2013 and 2012 were nil.

Other than the disposal of the Properties (as disclosed in the paragraph
"Assets Classified as Held for Sale” below), the Chi Cheung Disposal and
commitment for an equity investment (as disclosed in the paragraph
“Unlisted Securities Investment” below), the existing projects and those
disclosed in the final results, the Group did not have material acquisition
or disposal of assets and any future plans for material investment or

capital assets.

SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

As at 31st December, 2012, the carrying amount of the listed securities
investments and treasury products was HK$10,725.9 million. During the
Year, the portfolio was increased by a net purchase of HK$2,372.7 million.
After deducting the fair value loss of HK$85.5 million for the Year, the
listed securities investments portfolio of the Group became HK$13,013.1
million as at 31st December, 2013 representing 17.2% of total assets,

which formed part of the Group's cash management activities.

As at 31st December, 2013, the portfolio of HK$13,013.1 million (2012:
HK$10,725.9 million) comprised (a) listed equity securities (investments
held-for-trading) of HK$894.8 million (2012: HK$156.3 million) and (b)
bonds (financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss) of
HK$12,118.3 million (2012: HK$10,569.6 million).
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investment

During the Year, the Group, among the total contribution commitment
of US$50.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$387.7 million), has
contributed US$0.9 million (equivalent to approximately HK$7.1 million)

to an available-for-sale investment.
Notes Held by a Listed Subsidiary

The fixed rate notes held by Chi Cheung (included in assets classified as
held for sale as at 31st December, 2012 with carrying amount of HK$98.1
million) were disposed of with the Chi Cheung Disposal during the Year.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

During the Year, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
("Vendor") has entered into a series of preliminary sale and purchase
agreements (“Preliminary Agreements”) with independent third parties
and three companies wholly-owned by a close family member of a
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company (“Connected
Parties”) (collectively “Purchasers of the Properties”). Pursuant to the
Preliminary Agreements, the Vendor would sell the Properties to the
Purchasers of the Properties upon the terms and conditions contained
therein. Sales of the Properties have been completed during the Year
except for five units (“Sale Units”) with an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$64.6 million (after discount), including sales of a total
consideration of approximately HK$39.1 million (after discount) entered
into with the Connected Parties, which are expected to be completed in
2014.

The Sale Units have been presented as assets classified as held for sale
and were stated at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial

position as at 31st December, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.
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EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2013 and
2012 were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$23,911.0 million (2012: HK$23,507.6 million). Cash and
deposits at banks amounted to HK$3,881.3 million (2012: HK$4,786.5
million (excluding time deposits and bank balances classified as assets
held for sale)), pledged deposits amounted to HK$1,211.6 million (2012:
HK$2,232.5 million) and net borrowings amounted to HK$18,818.1
million (2012: HK$16,488.6 million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 50.7% (2012: 51.1%) and net debt
to equity ratio was 39.9% (2012: 35.9%), which are expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings, respectively, over the
total equity of HK$47,189.8 million (2012: HK$45,978.3 million). The
total debt to equity ratio remained stable as compared with last year and
the increase of net debt to equity ratio were mainly due to the decrease in

cash, deposits and bank balances.

However, if the listed securities investments and treasury products of
HK$13,013.1 million (2012: HK$10,725.9 million) are included, the net
debt to equity ratio will be 12.39% (2012: 12.5%).

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's bank and other borrowings were
denominated in HK$ (51.5%), US$ (24.9%), Pound Sterling ("GBP")
(13.5%) and RMB (10.1%). Of the Group's bank and other borrowings of
HK$23,911.0 million, 30.9%, 20.4% and 48.7% were repayable within 1
year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years respectively. US$ and RMB investment
securities were hedged by US$ and RMB borrowings respectively. The
Group's bank and other borrowings in HK$, US$ and RMB were carried
at interest rates calculated mainly with reference to HIBOR/cost of funds;
bank borrowing in GBP was effectively carried at fixed rate; and bank
borrowing in RMB was carried at interest rates calculated with reference to
borrowing rates quoted by Peoples’ Bank of China. As at 31st December,
2013, about 86.5% of the Group's borrowings were on floating rate
basis and 13.5% were on fixed rate basis. No hedging for interest rate is

subsisted at the end of the reporting period.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group had pledged the following assets:

@

(b)

©

(d)

The Group's investment properties, properties and other fixed
assets and time deposits with their respective carrying amount of
approximately HK$40,888.1 million (2012: HK$39,283.9 million),
HK$512.1 million (2012: HK$481.9 million) and HK$699.2 million
(2012: HK$426.6 million) were pledged to the Group's bankers to

secure general banking and loan facilities granted to the Group.

The Group's investments held-for-trading and bonds with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$13,013.1 million (2012:
HK$10,706.6 million) and cash deposits of HK$512.4 million
(2012: HK$1,806.0 million) were pledged to the Group's financial
institutions to secure margin and securities facilities granted to the
Group in respect of securities transactions, of which approximately
HK$6,453.1 million (2012: HK$6,796.7 million) was utilised as at

31st December, 2013 as borrowings due within one year.

Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

The Group has subordinated and assigned its advances to
associates of approximately HK$1,626.8 million (2012: HK$1,567.5
million) to financial institutions to secure general banking credit

facilities granted to the associates.
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REPURCHASE GUARANTEE

Certain mortgagee banks have provided end-user financing to purchasers
of Splendid City and The Metropolis and the Group has provided
repurchase guarantees to these mortgagee banks for securing the
obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees will be
terminated upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one year upon the
completion of guarantee registration; or (i) the satisfaction of mortgaged

loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and

penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the mortgagee banks.

The total outstanding amount of repurchase guarantee as at 31st
December, 2013 was RMB128.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$164.1 million) (2012: RMB243.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$302.6 million)) and disclosed in the contingent liabilities.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Continuing and Discontinued Operations

Interest income was included in revenue, other income and investment
income. Interest income for the Year was HK$930.0 million, representing a
decrease of 6.4% from that of 2012 of HK$993.8 million.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other loan,
loan from a former subsidiary and amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder; exchange difference on foreign currency loans; and
arrangement fee and facility and commitment fee expenses. Interest
expenses for the Year amounted to HK$382.0 million, representing an
21.7% increase over the interest expenses of HK$313.9 million recorded
for last year. The increase in interest expenses was mainly due to the
increase in interest rate during the Year. Interest capitalised for the Year
was HK$134.2 million as compared to HK$117.1 million for last year.
The average interest rate over the year under review was 2.30% (2012:
1.78%), which was expressed as a percentage of total interest paid over

the average total borrowings.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2013, the Group employed a total of 652 staff
in Hong Kong (2012: 711 staff) including about 294 staff (2012: 336
staff) employed under the estate management company in Hong Kong.
Besides, there was a total of 365 staff (2012: 357 staff) in the offices at
Mainland China and Macau, which included about 178 staff (2012: 193

staff) of the estate management company in Chengdu.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary
incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance. No

share option scheme was adopted during the Year.

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Scheme”) in 2009.
The Scheme is to recognise and reward certain employees for their
contributions to the Group and to give long-term incentives for retaining
them for the continued operations and development of the Group.
Details of the Scheme were set out in the Company's circular dated 23rd
December, 2008. No share was granted under the Scheme during the

Year.

MAINLAND CHINA AND UNITED KINGDOM

Profit contribution from the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties,
share of results of associates and taxation) for the Year amounted to
HK$219.2 million (2012: HK$510.4 million). The Group's net investment
in Mainland China as at 31st December, 2013 amounted to HK$9,969.3
million (2012: HK$9,395.7 million) representing approximately 21.1% of
the Group's total equity.

Further, the Group's investment property in the United Kingdom with
carrying amount of GBP316.2 million as at 31st December, 2013
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,043.1 million) (2012: GBP285.9
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,582.0 million)) contributed
a profit of HK$454.8 million (2012: HK$82.0 million) to the Group for
the Year. As at 31st December, 2013, the Group's net investment in the
United Kingdom amounted to HK$1,147.9 million (2012: HK$640.8

million) representing approximately 2.4% of the Group's total equity.
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LISTED SUBSIDIARY

Following the completion of the Chi Cheung Disposal on 6th February,
2013, the Group did not own any listed subsidiary at the end of the

reporting period.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations have been carried out by B.l. Appraisals and Vigers
Appraisal (2012: B.l. Appraisals), independent qualified professional
valuers, in respect of the Group's investment properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China as at 31st December, 2013. For the investment property
in the United Kingdom, the valuations as at 31st December, 2013 and
2012 were carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals, another independent
qualified professional valuer. Their valuations were based on investment
method and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies

and were used in preparing 2013 annual results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$45,617.3 million
(2012: HK$41,987.1 million) (including those classified as assets held
for sale), an 9.0% increase over 2012 after adjusted for the additions,
disposals and reclassification of investment properties during the Year. The
increase in fair value of approximately HK$3,402.9 million was recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year. The
Group also shared an increase in fair value of investment properties of
associates of HK$70.2 million (adjusted deferred tax of HK$1.9 million)
for the Year. Development properties and non-investment properties of
the Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in the consolidated
financial statements. Investment property under development at Chinese
Estates Plaza, Chengdu stated at cost of HK$4,511.9 million will be carried
at fair value, until the earlier of the date when its fair value first become

reliably measurable or the date of the completion of the property.

The increase in fair value of HK$3,402.9 million or 9.0% was mainly
attributable to the Group's major investment properties in Hong Kong and
United Kingdom. Such increase has reflected an upturn in the property
markets of Hong Kong and United Kingdom for the Year. Rental renewals
of The ONE, Windsor House and Silvercord for the Year have shown a

continuous increase over the end of 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance shareholder value.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2013 (the “Year”), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the

“Listing Rules"), except for certain deviations.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

During the Year, the Board comprises four Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors (“NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
Names of each member of the Board are set out in this corporate

governance report.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors'
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the “Profiles of Directors” of this annual report and available
on the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arise. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors (Cont'd)

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group's businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders
at the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors (save for the
executive chairman and any managing director) shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years and a specific term of office has been fixed
for appointment of Directors (save for the executive chairman and any

managing director).

However, according to the Private Act for incorporating the Company as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda in 1989, it is stipulated
that the executive chairman and any managing director should not be
required to retire by rotation. In order to comply with the Code Provisions,
the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company (the "CEQ") is willing to voluntarily retire from his
directorship at future annual general meetings of the Company at least
once every three years, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election

at the relevant annual general meetings.

Every Director will therefore retire either by rotation under the Company's
Bye-laws or voluntarily at least once every three years and will subject
himself/herself to the absolute and free choice of the shareholders for re-

election at the relevant annual general meetings.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings and two ad hoc Board meetings were held
during the Year. Advance notices of not less than fourteen days were
served upon each Director for regular Board meetings. All accompanying
Board papers were sent to the Directors in a timely manner and at
least three days before the meetings (or such other period as agreed).
Adequate explanation and information were given to the Directors by the
management to facilitate the Directors in decision-making. Each Director
has to declare his/her interest and abstain from voting on any Board
resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing

Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors” appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support

ARES

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up to date knowledge

in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes in

Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Listing Rules as well as other laws/

rules/regulations had been provided to Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged a training session regarding

connected transaction and directors’ dealings in securities for the

Directors. The training was delivered by lawyers at the expense of the

Company. On the other hand, Directors had provided training records they

received to the Company. The Board considered the trainings attended

by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their duties. A summary of the

training attended by the Directors during the Year is as follows:—

Training Matters 3% 3| =18

EEE W

EERIIRXE

ARBBBESEETHAZERTNBABTERE -
BERBB G BRI R EHRBAREAMER, &)
SRAERBE  ENERBETEES-

RAEE AATAAEERHT KB NEH
MEER S REFE SR - ZE M aRR
BOBAERAATSMN  S—HE EEDARAT
RUEEES - FEERAEER2R Y EIIR
NEREBTABE - BEENAEERNFLRY S
YEEmT -

Accounting/
Corporate Tax/Finance
Governance Regulatory =10
Name of Directors EEpS TEER EERE BB
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung B EE L b b =
(“Mr. Joseph Lau")* (TR RAE])*
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITBAZS)
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan PREFREZ T a a -
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai M BT I & a&b a&b a&b
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan aEEZL b b —
Non-executive Directors FETES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai ZIIS 18 Sk & a a -
("Mr. MW Lau")* (TEISEkE])*
(Vice Chairman) (BI£RE)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai A EEL+ b b -
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BeR B (2 4 A a a a
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EREN LT b b -
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BREELE a a a
Notes:— BieE: —
Training Method 1537 =
a:  attending training session/seminar a  ZEEIIRRE e
b:  self-reading b:  BfTBE
* Resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer — * RARFRABRE  BFERTES  FHERITRER

after date of this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

v Re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director,
appointed as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer after date of
this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

BE(R_T—NF=ZRTHHERER) -

# RAFERBABR MIFRTESHIRRTES
BZERTFLEBRETRAR (R-T—mOF=
A+ HEREX) -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Code. Details of the respective committee's terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange’s
websites. All the INEDs of the Company, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms.
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board
Committees with Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping acts as chairman of the Nomination Committee. The members
of Audit Committee possess appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting or related financial management expertise, which is higher

than the Listing Rules' requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s corporate
governance, financial reporting, internal control and risk management. It
plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.
It had been delegated by the Board to perform the corporate governance

functions specified in Code Provisions D.3.1 (a) to (e).

Meetings

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised
below:—

(1) reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2012 and for the six months ended 30th June, 2013
respectively before recommending them to the Board for approval,
with the presence of the Company's external auditors (the
“Independent Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

(2) reviewed the overall performance including the performance of
investment properties and development properties of the Group;

(3) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance;

(4) reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial
reporting and auditing matters;

(5) reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with
the presence of Independent Auditors;

(6) prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during
2012, presented its findings and made recommendations for
consideration by the Board;

(7) carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions
of the Group;

(8) reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;

(9) discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement
letters; fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;

(10) reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
related matters;

(11) reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal
Audit Department;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

(12) considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2014;
(13) reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and monitored the progress of compliance of the Code;
(14) reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such
policies and practices;

(15) reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance
of such code;

(16)

reviewed the code of practice for employees; and
(17) reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional
development for Directors.

In March 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (ii) the
Company's compliance with the Code during the Year and disclosure in
the corporate governance report; and (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year.

Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors,
INEDs hold meeting(s) with the Independent Auditors without the
presence of the Executive Director(s). In addition, the engagement
partner of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical rotation, and
the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent Auditors
for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to scrutiny by
the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from Independent
Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers whether there
is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company from that
work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether there is
adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the perception
of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services envisaged
to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related fee levels
individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In addition, a
policy restricting the employment of employees or former employees of
Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial positions with the
Group has also been in place.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to (i) annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$60,000; and (ii) a potential project which
had been receded at a fee of HK$1,000,000. The audit fees of the
Independent Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2013 was HK$2,466,500.
The relevant engagement letters had been reviewed and approved by the
Audit Committee.

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the
Independent Auditors.

Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of individual
Executive Director and senior executive as well as the remuneration of
NEDs. It would consult the Chairman and CEO on the remuneration
proposals whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the
Company's business and development.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are
summarised below:—

(1) assessed the performance of Executive Directors, reviewed and
recommended to the Board the Executive Directors and senior
executives' remuneration packages for the Year and approved the
terms of service agreements as appropriate;

(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees; and

(3) recommended to the Board to fix the remuneration of NEDs for the
Year.

In January 2014, the Remuneration Committee made recommendation
to the Board and the Board has approved the adjustment of monthly
salary of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai to HK$50,000 and
HK$149,980 respectively for the year ending 31st December, 2014 with
reference to their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group as
well as the prevailing market condition.

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive directors'
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
Executive Directors by linking their reward with performance as measured
against corporate objectives. In determining guidelines for each reward
element, the Company refers to remuneration surveys on companies

operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
condition. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred
in connection with performance of their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee
Role and Function

The Nomination Committee is mandated to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge,
professional experience, cultural and educational background, gender
and age of the Board members and assessment on the independence
of the INEDs) of the Board at least annually as well as to select suitable
and qualified individuals to become Board members and to make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company's corporate strategy and on succession planning for the

Directors from time to time.

Meeting

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(

) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for
shareholders’ approval;

(3) assessed the independence of INEDs; and

(4) adopted a Board diversity policy for the Board (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to comply with a new Code Provision effective in
September 2013.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders'
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2014 AGM"). It
also assessed the independence of INEDs who are subject to re-election
at 2014 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-
term sustainable growth for the Group. Elements of Board Diversity Policy
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge of Directors. The said elements have
substantially been included in the current Board composition.

Nomination Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee leads the process and makes recommendations
for appointments to the Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when they arise, in the light
of challenges and opportunities facing the Company, as well as business
development and requirements of the Company. In evaluating and selecting
candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination Committee considers the
character and integrity; skills and expertise; professional and educational
background; potential time commitment for the board and/or committee
responsibilities; and the elements of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint
the appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship.
Suitable candidate(s) shall be appointed by the Board in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Special Committee had been established since 24th May, 2012,
comprising all the INEDs as members with written terms of reference
in place. It is empowered to handle all matters from the Company's
perspective arising out of the prosecution against Mr. Joseph Lau by the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
("Macau") relating to the acquisition of the five plots of land in Macau.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:—

Attendance Record of Directors &= i 32 &%

EEHERTE

BEFENEB 2 HFLEHIIMT : —

No. of meetings attended/held (Percentage of attendance in total) 1iZ /BT EHE (AHER)

Regular Ad hoc Audit Remuneration  Nomination Special 2013 Annual
Board Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting* Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHESE  KRIEZE EBKZEE  FHMZEE  REZEe KRZEE WBRRES

Name of Directors ESfg 83 a5t 83 83 83 83 Xg

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr. Joseph Lau ElL g St 4/4 (100%) 1/2 (50%) N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
@R @R @R @R i

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Res@R L 4/4(100%)  2/2 (100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
TR TR TR TR i

Mr. Lam, Kiwong-wai MrEEE 4/4(100%)  2/2 (100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1 (100%)
T T T T

Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan BEELL 3/4 (750%) 0/2 (0%) N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
T TaR TaR TER i

Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. MW Lau ABERE 3/4 (75%) 1/2 (50%) N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
@R @R TR TR B

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai EIES Ten 3/4(75%)  2/2 (100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A Absent
TR TR TR TER B

Independent Non-executive BUFHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan, Kuok-wai BEREE 4/4(100%)  2/2(100%)  5/5(100%)  2/2(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1 (100%)

Ms. Phills Loh, Lai-ping BENLL 44(100%)  1/2(50%)  5/5(100%)  2/2(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SR EE 4/4(100%)  2/2(100%)  5/5(100%)  2/2 (100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  1/1 (100%)

Note:~ PHst: —
* To avoid conflict of interest, some of the Directors were absent at certain ~ * RBRENEER PLrEEREALTRNEER

ad hoc Board meetings that they were required to abstain from voting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company,

confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
control in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The senior management is responsible for implementation of
such system of internal control. Internal Audit Department is responsible
for reviewing relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and reporting their findings and advice to the

Audit Committee.

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of internal

control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks that may influence the Group had been identified,
evaluated and managed through the ongoing monitoring process;

and

(5) material transactions were executed with the management'’s

authorisation.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (contd)

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

(2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee's
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted nine internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the works done by

the Internal Audit Department.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairman of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and
answer questions from shareholders at general meetings. Chairman of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the 2013

annual general meeting to answer questions from shareholders.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS (contd)

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company’s website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

A corporate communications manual has been in place, which provides
guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information to
investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda

at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SCM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the general meeting or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must accompanied by (i) the proposed resolution;
and (i) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition must contain the
signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written Requisition must be
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th
Floor, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda not less than six weeks before the
general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution
and not less than one week before the general meeting in the case of any

other requisition.

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company's expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
was established during the Year and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, MassMutual
Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.

DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the Year, Mr. Joseph Lau acts as both the Chairman and the CEO.
The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority of the Board. The Board also believes that under the
leadership of Mr. Joseph Lau as the Chairman and the CEO, the Board's
decision could be made effectively and it is beneficial to the management
and development of the Group's businesses. The Board would still
consider segregation of the roles of the Chairman and the CEO if and

when appropriate.
Directors’ Insurance

The insurance policy has not been renewed upon its expiry in August
2012 due to the substantial increase in premium. The Company is of
the view that the existing corporate governance measures within the
Group are sound and effective such that the risk to the Directors could
be minimized. Nevertheless, the Company would still consider to arrange
appropriate insurance coverage for its Directors as and when competitive

premium quotations could be sourced.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS (contd)

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Joseph Lau, the Chairman of the Board during the Year, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 23rd
May, 2013 (the “2013 AGM") as he had a business engagement. Mr.
Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, was elected as the chairman of the 2013 AGM to ensure
effective communication with shareholders of the Company at such
meeting. The chairman of Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
had attended the 2013 AGM.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive

Directors Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. MW Lau, a NED during the Year, was unable to attend the 2013 AGM
as he had a business engagement. Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, another NED,
was also unable to attend the 2013 AGM as she was not in Hong Kong on
the date of such meeting. All the INEDs had attended the 2013 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2013 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries and associates as at
31st December, 2013 are set out in Notes 52 and 53 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 79 and 80.

The Board had declared an interim dividend of HK20 cents per share
(2012: HK1 cent per share) and a special interim dividend of HK$1.3 per
share (2012: HK$1 per share). The Board resolved to recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK50 cents per share (2012: HK20 cents
per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 242 and 243.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties of the Group as at 31st December,
2013 are set out on pages 244 to 252.

PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

Movements in properties and other fixed assets during the Year are set

out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group did not acquire any leasehold properties
(2012: Nil). Investment properties with an aggregate carrying amounts
of approximately HK$1,053,823,000 (2012: HK$102,750,000) were
disposed of during the Year.

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on

pages 84 to 87.

As at 31st December, 2013, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted of approximately HK$7,361,485,000
(2012: HK$6,126,029,000).

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of bank loans and other loans repayable within one year or on
demand and long-term secured bank loans and other loans are shown in

Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest capitalised during the Year by the Group amounted to
HK$134,229,000 (2012: HK$117,072,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$35,956,000 (2012: HK$33,411,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers of the Group amounted to less than 30% of
the total turnover to the Group during the Year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 11% and 32% of the
Group's total purchases for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group's five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report

were:—

Executive Directors:

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)*
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Vice Chairman)*
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun will
retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
pursuant to Bye-law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company, all being
eligible and offer themselves for re-election.

Notes:

* Resigned as Executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
after date of this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).

* Re-designated from Non-executive Director to Executive Director,
appointed as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer after date of
this annual report (with effect from 14th March, 2014).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:—

Number of
Shares Held
FrERGEE

Name of Directors

ESEA

EERRSTHRAERAELQTRE
BBz ESERS

RZB-—=F+-A=+—H EFKETHA
BRARARZED HEROREFTEE 2 ER
Fokm  BARRRER F LG (1785 &8
&P )) FB35216 M F 2 B M AT sl SR & & B B
ERXZMABRDE ([BRADESFLETRA ([ L
MR MER+AEz (EHBETAERETES
RHOBRETR) MEARRRBEZPAMT : -

Percentage

of Issued

Share Capital
ERTRAFD L

Capacity
56

Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 & Founder and beneficiary of trust 74.99%
(“Mr. Joseph Lau") EREIN A RZ = A

DI ([B12ERAE])
Lau, Ming-wai (“Mr. MW Lau") 1,430,700,768 i Beneficiary of trust 74.99%
2ISE ([2IS &L A4 ]) FrEX @A
Lui, Lai-kwan (“Ms. Lui") 1,430,700,768 2 Interest of children under 18 74.99%
2EA ([mxt]) R 185% M) T X My i

Note: B 5

* These shares were indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. ~ * ZERMB—ERNIGEERERS - 21 EELE

Joseph Lau was the founder. Mr. Joseph Lau, Mr. MW Lau, the children
of Ms. Lui and certain other family members of Mr. Joseph Lau were
eligible beneficiaries of that trust.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Directors were interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2013.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2013.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2013, so far as are known to any Directors or chief

executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or

chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to

the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:—

Name of Substantial Number of
Shareholders Shares Held
FTERRERE FrERGEE
Alto Trust Limited 1,430,700,768 @
Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 @
Global King (PTC) Ltd. 1,199,715,948 @
Joseph Lau Luen Hung 230,984,820 v

Investments Limited
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FTERRRAQRT 2EFER

BEERERTBRABMALE R-F—=F1t=
A=1t—8B ARBAREFFFIHPEGPIEI361EA
BB MAEaSRRBTAERAAR  BAERME
BEREIRAEEARF D BEITRAS0T A L
BZ AL (EFABZRITBRABRRINDOT : -

Percentage

of Issued

Capacity Share Capital

54 | ERTREABESL

Trustee and interest 74.99%
in controlled corporation
ERARRRIES QR 2 #as

Beneficiary of a trust and 74.99%
interest in controlled corporation
—HEERZEEAR
NS N o

Trustee 62.89%
BEFEA

Beneficial owner 12.10%

BEamEBA

Note:

#

Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as
interested in the same parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar
Bright Ltd. held the entire issued share capital of Global King (PTC)
Ltd. and all issued units in a unit trust of which Global King (PTC)
Ltd. was the trustee and therefore was regarded as interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Global King (PTC) Ltd. as trustee of the
unit trust. Solar Bright Ltd. also held the entire issued share capital of
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited and therefore was also
regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares held by Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. As such, the 1,430,700,768
shares of the Company in which Solar Bright Ltd. was deemed to be
interested represented the aggregate of the 1,199,715,948 shares and
230,984,820 shares of the Company held by Global King (PTC) Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited respectively, which
was referred to in the interests of Mr. Joseph Lau and Mr. MW Lau
as well as the interests of children under 18 of Ms. Lui as disclosed
under “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the
Company and Associated Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st

December, 2013, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

B 5 :
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, the following Directors declared their interests in the
following companies with businesses which competed or were likely to

compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group:—

EERGFUERB 2ES

RAFER UTESHER TV BAREXHE

BERRBEERHFRT
A —

Nature of Business

Considered to Compete
or Likely to Compete with
the Businesses of the Group

Name of Directors

EENS

Name of Companies
NCIEE

Mr. Joseph Lau Chi Cheung Investment

Sl 2 S A Company, Limited (“Chi Cheung” *
now known as LT Holdings Limited
(“LT")) and its subsidiaries
EFEEARAF
(T= | *REHRERAR QA
(M$%R]) ) REK B A A

Mr. MW Lau Chi Cheung* and its subsidiaries

IS 12 %4 ERAREME AR

Ms. Lui Chi Cheung* and its subsidiaries

ERegn =R EMB AR

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai Chi Cheung* and its subsidiaries

BRAREFEEMEBERRTF
FARBRAFZEBUE

Property investment and
development

MERERER

Property investment and
development

MERERER

Property investment and
development

MERERER

Property investment and

EA AR e 3 AN

Nature of Interest
of the Directors
in the Companies
EENZEAT
ZERME

Having certain deemed
interests in Chi Cheung and
was a director of certain
subsidiaries of Chi Cheung
WRREEEFET
Rk RERZET
MEARZES

Having certain deemed

interests in Chi Cheung

WRREREFE TR

Having certain deemed
interests in Chi Cheung

B BB ENE TES

Director of certain

AR 5 & EERENBAR development  subsidiaries of Chi Cheung
MR E RER (till 27th February, 2013)
REFEZET
MEARZES
(E=%—=
“AZ+tAIb)
LT Securities investments Non-executive director
BB FHHEZE  (since 7th February, 2013)
EMITES
(H=F—=F
—RAtH#®)
G-Prop (Holdings) Limited Property investment Non-executive director
(now known as Common Splendor VIR E (till 7th March, 2013)
International Health Industry Group JEITES
Limited) (EZZ—=F
TEREERAA =AtH1b)
(ABREERERERXSE
BRAE])
* listed subsidiary of the Company (from 1st January, 2013 to 5th  * KRRz FTMEBAR (BZE—=F—H—H

February, 2013) and was disposed to an independent third party on 6th
February, 2013

E-Z—=—F-RAH) RZT—=F=-AH

HETBIYE=)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (contd)

The above-mentioned businesses were managed by separate publicly
listed companies with independent management. The respective board
composition of such listed companies are different and separate. In this
respect, coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)") and the independent audit committee, the Group
was capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm'’s

length from, the businesses of the above companies.

Other than the businesses of the listed companies mentioned above, Mr.
Joseph Lau, Mr. MW Lau and Ms. Lui had personal interests in private
companies engaged in property investment business while Mr. Joseph
Lau and Mr. MW Lau had personal interests in private companies engaged
in securities investment business. Mr. Joseph Lau also had personal
interests in private companies engaged in money lending business. As
such, they were regarded as being interested in such businesses, which
competed or might compete with the Group. However, when compared
with the dominance and size of operations of the Group, such competing

businesses were immaterial.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau had through certain private companies wholly-
owned by him (of which Mr. Joseph Lau and/or Mr. MW Lau was/were
director(s) of such companies during the Year) acquired the retail shops
of York Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also
known as Wanchai Computer Centre) (the “Private Properties”) from the
Group in July and August 2010. The Group, in accordance with the term
of the respective sale and purchase agreements of the said acquisitions,
provided three-year after-sale free leasing agency and management
services in respect of the Private Properties, commenced from the
respective completion dates of the said acquisitions and ended in July
and August 2013 respectively. There was potential leasing competition
for existing and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties
and investment properties held by the Group. In order to manage such
potential leasing competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain
undertakings and the Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange
to implement certain measures for monitoring the compliance of such
undertakings. Details of such undertakings and monitoring measures were
set out in the circular of the Company dated 18th June, 2010. The INEDs
of the Company had carried out an annual review on the compliance of
the said undertakings and monitoring measures and confirmed that such
undertakings and monitoring measures were duly complied with and
considered adequate monitoring measures were in place to avoid the

potential leasing competition during the period under review in 2013.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (contd)

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflicts of interest and duty. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company's businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company's

businesses.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below and apart from the agreements disclosed
under the heading “Connected Transactions” below, there were no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company's businesses, to which
the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party, subsisting
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a
Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there
were any other contracts of significance in relation to the Company's
businesses between the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries

and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

On 22nd September, 2011, Chi Cheung (now known as LT) as lender,
Longman Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as borrower and the Company as guarantor entered into a loan agreement
in relation to a three-year revolving facility of up to HK$900 million,
commenced from 3rd November, 2011 and ending on 2nd November,
2014. A total sum of HK$900 million was drawn by Longman Limited
since 3rd November, 2011. In January 2013, Longman Limited repaid the
principal amount of HK$490 million and the interest accrued thereon in
connection with the disposal of Chi Cheung group by the Group. Details
of the disposal have been included in “Other Information and Events After
the Reporting Period” under Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. In
October 2013, Longman Limited had repaid HK$410 million outstanding

balance of the loan with the interest accrued thereon.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

M

@

On 6th February, 2013, Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement (the “1st Agreement”)
in respect of the purchase of a residential unit of One WanChai
(the Group's property held for sale) at a consideration of
HK$22,708,000. Completion took place on 5th April, 2013.

As Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau and
also a sister of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (an Executive Director), Ms.
Chan, Hoi-wan was a connected person of the Company. Hence,
the transaction contemplated under the 1st Agreement constituted
a connected transaction of the Company. As the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the transaction contemplated under
the 1st Agreement were less than 0.1% on a standalone basis
and, when aggregated with the previous connected transactions
(which have already been disclosed by way of announcement on
8th March, 2012) were less than 5%, the connected transaction
was exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. A voluntary announcement in respect of the said

transaction was made on 6th February, 2013.

On 13th August, 2013, a purchaser entered into a preliminary sale
and purchase agreement (the “2nd Agreement”) in respect of the
purchase of a residential unit of One WanChai at a consideration of
HK$17,963,000. Completion took place on 2nd September, 2013.

As the purchaser is the mother of Ms. Lui (an Executive Director
and an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau), the purchaser was therefore
a connected person of the Company. Hence, the transaction
contemplated under the 2nd Agreement constituted a connected
transaction of the Company. As the applicable percentage ratios in
respect of the transaction contemplated under the 2nd Agreement
were less than 0.19% on a standalone basis and, when aggregated
with the previous connected transaction completed within 12
months (i.e. connected transaction of the Company regarding
disposal of a residential property of One WanChai to Ms. Chan, Hoi-
wan as mentioned in (1) above) were more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the connected transaction was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but was exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the said

transaction was made on 13th August, 2013.

M

@
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

3

On 19th February, 2014, two purchasers entered into a preliminary
sale and purchase agreement (the “3rd Agreement”) in respect of
the purchase of a residential unit together with a car parking space
and a motorcycle parking space of One WanChai at a consideration
of HK$51,205,346. Completion shall take place on or before 22nd
April, 2014.

As the purchasers are the father and elder brother of Ms. Lui
(an Executive Director and an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau), the
purchasers were therefore connected persons of the Company.
Hence, the transaction contemplated under the 3rd Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company. As the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the transaction
contemplated under the 3rd Agreement either on a standalone
basis, or when aggregated with the previous transactions completed
within 12 months (i.e. connected transactions of the Company
regarding the disposal of residential properties of One WanChai to
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the mother of Ms. Lui, as mentioned in (1)
and (2) above respectively) were both more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the connected transaction was subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but was exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the said
transaction was made on 19th February, 2014.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Q)

In July and August 2010, the Group had disposed, inter alia,
Excelsior Plaza, Laforet and Southorn Centre to the private
companies wholly-owned by Mr. Joseph Lau (the "Disposal
Transactions”).

Subsequent to the completion of the Disposal Transactions, Perfect
World Company Limited, the Company's indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, had in accordance with the term of the respective sale
and purchase agreements of the Disposal Transactions, entered into
the following agreements for a term of three years:—

(i)  property management agreement dated 27th July, 2010
(expired on 26th July, 2013) with Sunny Ocean Limited
regarding the provision of property management services to
Excelsior Plaza (the “1st Property Management Agreement”);

(i)  property management agreement dated 20th August, 2010
(expired on 19th August, 2013) with Viewide Properties
Limited regarding the provision of property management
services to Laforet (the “2nd Property Management

Agreement”); and
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd) FEERXS @
BEBEXS (8)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

(1)  (Cont'd) 1 (&)

(i)  property management agreement dated 20th August, 2010
(expired on 19th August, 2013) with Baharica Limited
regarding the provision of property management services
to Southorn Centre (the "3rd Property Management

Agreement”)

(collectively the “Property Management Agreements").

The caps for the period from 1st January, 2013 to the date of
expiry of each of the 1st Property Management Agreement, the
2nd Property Management Agreement and the 3rd Property
Management Agreement were approximately HK$567,123,
HK$7,594,521 and HK$5,063,014 respectively, after pro-rata
adjustment as required under the announcement dated 18th May,
2010 (the "Adjusted Caps").

Sunny Ocean Limited, Viewide Properties Limited and Baharica
Limited were associates of Mr. Joseph Lau upon completion of the
Disposal Transactions, therefore the entering into of the Property
Management Agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios for the aggregate of the expected
annual caps of the subject continuing connected transactions as
required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules were less than 5%,
the subject continuing connected transactions were only subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval

requirement.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms and in accordance with the
Property Management Agreements governing them on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

M

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Cont'd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (collectively the “HKICPA Guidelines”) that the subject
continuing connected transactions had received the approval of
the Board, were in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company, had been entered into in accordance with the Property
Management Agreements and had not exceeded the Adjusted

Caps.

Potential Leasing Competition

As mentioned in “Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses”
section of this directors’ report, subsequent to the completion of the
Disposal Transactions, there was potential leasing competition for
existing and prospective tenancies between the Private Properties,
being properties owned by Mr. Joseph Lau, and the investment

properties held by the Group.

In the course of carrying out an annual review on the subject
continuing connected transactions, the INEDs of the Company had
also carried out a review on the compliance of the undertakings
in respect of the said potential leasing competition provided by
Mr. Joseph Lau and the corresponding monitoring measures
implemented by the Company, and confirmed that such
undertakings and monitoring measures were duly complied with
and considered adequate monitoring measures were in place to
avoid the potential leasing competition during the period under

review in 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

@

On 14th December, 2012, Chinese Estates, Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a contract
for services with Mr. Joseph Lau in respect of the provision of the
property, household and other management and maintenance
services in relation to the properties and related assets and such
other assets of a nature normally requiring management service,
maintenance service or other similar services which are beneficially
owned by or are held by entities beneficially owned by Mr. Joseph
Lau and/or his associates and related parties, commenced on 1st
January, 2013 and ending on 31st December, 2015 (the "2013-
2015 Contract”). The annual caps of the service charges payable by
Mr. Joseph Lau to Chinese Estates, Limited under the 2013-2015
Contract for each of the three financial years — 31st December,
2013, 31st December, 2014 and 31st December, 2015, were
set at HK$15 million (the "2013-2015 Caps"”) as disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 14th December, 2012.

Mr. Joseph Lau, being an Executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer, and a substantial shareholder of the
Company was a connected person of the Company and hence the
2013-2015 Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
under the Listing Rules. The applicable percentage ratios of the
2013-2015 Caps pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
exceeded 0.1% but were expected to be less than 5%, hence the
2013-2015 Contract and the 2013-2015 Caps were only subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (other than those in relation to household management
and maintenance services), on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the 2013-2015 Contract governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
the HKICPA Guidelines that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the 2013-2015 Contract and
had not exceeded the 2013-2015 Caps disclosed in the said
announcement made on 14th December, 2012.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

3)
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On 15th July, 2013, Chinese Estates, Limited entered into a
contract for services with Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision
of (i) property management services (including matters relating to
the management, operation, servicing, maintenance and repair of
properties), (ii) leasing administration services (including matters
relating to dealing with tenants, rent collection and taking legal
actions but excluding any services in relation to the referral of
potential tenants and the negotiation with existing and/or potential
tenants regarding terms of lease of properties), and (i) general
administration services (including without limitation accounting,
recruitment, human resources administration works, taxation,
marketing and information technology services) to commercial
properties beneficially owned by Mr. Joseph Lau and/or his
associates for a term of three years commencing from 15th July,
2013 to 14th July, 2016 (the “Contract”).

The cap of the service charges payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to
Chinese Estates, Limited for the period from 15th July, 2013 to 31st
December, 2013 under the Contract was set at HK$12,898,629
(the “Cap") as disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
15th July, 2013.

Mr. Joseph Lau, being an Executive Director, the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer, and a substantial shareholder of the
Company was a connected person of the Company and hence the
Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the
Listing Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the expected
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the Contract,
whether on standalone basis or when aggregated with the 2013-
2015 Caps of the 2013-2015 Contract as mentioned in (2)
above, were less than 5%, the Contract and the annual caps were
only subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempted from the independent shareholders’

approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)
(3) (Cont'd)

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions,
the INEDs of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules on the requirement to carry out an annual review on the
continuing connected transactions, confirmed that the transactions
were made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company (other than general administration services), on normal
commercial terms and in accordance with the Contract governing
them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, confirmed in their letter made in accordance with
the HKICPA Guidelines that the subject continuing connected
transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been
entered into in accordance with the Contract and had not exceeded
the Cap disclosed in the said announcement made on 15th July,
2013.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this directors’

report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the "Material Related Party Transactions” as
disclosed in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements for the Year
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above "Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules, the
Company had complied with the relevant requirements under Chapter

14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the “"MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$25,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$25,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group’s mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December, 2013
amounted to approximately HK$9,869,000 (2012: HK$9,524,000).
In addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the
schemes amounted to approximately HK$674,000 (2012: HK$726,000)
was utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year
and the balance available to reduce future contributions amounted to
approximately HK$402,000 (2012: HK$58,000).

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme") was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 14th January, 2009 (the "Adoption Date”). The Share Award Scheme
is a long-term incentive arrangement for the selected employees. The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward certain
employees of the Group for their contributions to the Group and to give
long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. It also intends to attract suitable professional
recruits to join the Group and to assist in the further development of the

Group.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEEH|EE

RKEREE )

AEERBE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFER
ZENIRNGE ARSI HRERNBZEARTEY
49,869,000/ 7T (=& — =4 : 9,524,000/ 7T ) °
N REERZESFEADRRZEETERD A
674,000/ 70 (= Z — —4 : 726,000/ 70) * WE R
REZRNAEHDR A #2858 4402,0008 T (=&
— Z4F : 58,000/ 70) A] FRVEIR D AR SRR -

I 17 2R B =T &

Befn BER) AT 8 ([Rxin EER =t 81 )) DA R RBRERR
“ETAF-ATHEAE ((RAA ) BT 2 RS
BIRE LRS- RO EBHE D AKETREEMR
ZEHEBTY EEAR/ASEFHERZET
BEGRTEERDR AIEARSI LB AEE  #
BRAGEZEERERMS N2 RERE - bt
AR ESIARBZERALTMEAREE RIHE
AEEE-FER-

RERAKENK B RAMEH 2 HERZE RREARI
AEBEFEENALZRAR EFGA K2
ERBEREBEERRAB G NGEN (BREES
ETRETERREZAERELE) BERENA
KEmERS ((KMERE ) 2ER M REE X
REBRD BB 2 GREECERETEER TR
ZRBENEE ([RBBRM]) BKREESXSEWE
EE REEREBNEKMASERENHE BE
BT KA RE D ©

FREBR N 2 BTESIRIB) REE & 2 &
FoWHEEREAEE EHEACRERREZAKE
MK B R AN BT REERBBRNE ARSI
HEMN AHEACREREZASERBEXKER
ARBEERERTSELNT BAAEEEMK
BRBEIARE I HER -

TE-C-HFFHR  EAEXEE =5

%

75



76

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE& &=

SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date and
represents approximately 10.89% of the total number of shares in issue
at the date of this directors’ report. No granting of Awarded Shares was
made for the Year.

The maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such
grant.

Subject to any early termination pursuant to the terms of the Share Award
Scheme, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date (i.e. until 13th January,
2019). As at the date of this directors’ report, the remaining life of the
Share Award Scheme is less than 5 years.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23rd December, 2008.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB
as the auditors of the Company.

There have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years
except for the reorganisation of Messrs HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng to
HLB in March 2012.

On behalf of the Board
Joseph Lau, Luen-hung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2014
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 241, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2013, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
BYZHERES

31/F, Gloucester Tower s

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street BT 1158
Central b

Hong Kong AR AT K314

B CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED % 5%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B M ¥ HEi iR &=

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (contd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2013,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: PO5467

Hong Kong, 6th March, 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEBREBRR

=+ -_A=+—HILFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Investment income, net

Administrative expenses

Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau

Other expenses

Gain on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets

(Loss) gain on disposals of investment
properties

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of associates

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Continuing operations
Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Surplus on revaluation of properties and
other fixed assets

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investments

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates

Other comprehensive income for the year
from continuing operations (net of tax)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 &%= =

BREREER
LYON
HHER AR

E7

HA

BEBAFER

TR
HEFIYMEIRR Z

R R

H s
HENEREMBEEEEZ
Wz

HEREME 2 (B1R) W

BENEZ AFEY
715 %

H it M 2 R A5 48
L INOES

B 75 A gt A
PSR 32
AERKRAFBREERB M

BRLEEES
AEEHREELIEREHZ
]

AR [ A

Hft 2 H WS
HEREER
TEEHTEEREZRE

EfMELREBEEEEZ
BER

BETEEN T EE R Z
HH
FEREZRAFEEZD
BINKBAEE BN Z8

BEMERREMEE RS

z]gﬁj*;pg izt%« M%,ﬁgz
Emrmuis (BREE)

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FAT
7 6,452,726 2,433,544
(3.692,055) (568,580)
2,760,671 1,864,964
9 79,180 78,748
10 1,064,961 2,546,158
(307,823) (281,768)
37 (22,035) (694,737)
11 (2,524) (1,434)
45 359
(130,370) 22,135
13 and 22 3,402,859 6,108,972
15 (453,589) (344,805)
16 202,811 235,341
350,854 580,006
6,945,040 10,113,939
19 (443,919) (299,090)
6,501,121 9,814,849
12
501 5,667
14 6,501,622 9,820,516
127,054 98,162
(26,529) (21,997)
200,309 52,148
93,535 5,979
267,315 36,130
394,369 134,292
“TE-ZFFHR EAEEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
E-F-ZH+-A=t—ALFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 &

Discontinued operation
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Fair value changes on available-for-sale
investments

Other comprehensive income for the
year from continuing and discontinued
operations (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Total

Total comprehensive income for the year

attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Non-controlling interests
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Total

Earnings per share (HKS$)
Basic and diluted

From continuing and discontinued
operations

From continuing operations

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

b=

FE2mEkE

Hx

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FHET
ERIEEEET 12
BEREATEEN D EEE®Z
HH
BFEREZAFEES
(136) 3,751
NEEBREFERKEEB R
ERIFEEER 2
HEmrmls (BREE) 394,233 138,043
AEEEHENFEHAE
6,895,855 9,958,559
BiEAREERR:
KATEBA
R R 6,317,427 9,791,651
ERIEEEER 310 3,286
6,317,737 9,794,937
FEIER R
BEBEREER 183,694 23,198
ERIEEEER 191 2,381
183,885 25,579
Fok ] 6,501,622 9,820,516
EEAREEDESEHAE:
AQATEBA
FHEREET 6,711,796 9,925,943
B F e E T 226 5314
6,712,022 9,931,257
IR
FIEACEETS 183,694 23,198
BRI EER 139 4,104
183,833 27,302
#EE 6,895,855 9,958,559
BRERN (Bx) 21
EARREE
REFBECEEBRL
B IEE BT 3.312 5.135
KEFELLEER 3.312 5.133
AUV HREMEDNGEAETERERO—BH -
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Non-current assets

Investment properties
Properties and other fixed assets
Property interests held for

future development
Intangible assets
Goodwill
Interests in associates
Advances to associates
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss
Loans receivable — due after one year
Deferred tax assets
Advance to a non-controlling shareholder

Pledged deposits

Current assets
Stock of properties
Investments held-for-trading
Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss
Loans receivable — due within one year
Inventories for cosmetic products

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

Assets classified as held for sale

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B IR Bk

At 31st December, 2013 R=_E—=F+=-_A=+—H

FRBEE

KEME
MEREMEEEE
RFRRERZ
YEZ $a

HETE R BRE R R
ANTFEZEHBEE
JEWE R — —F1&ZIH

BEMIEE ZE
A FE PR AR IR R RIA
EIFRFR

hEBEE

mMERFE
RHIEEEZIREA
8RB AR IR
ATEZERMEE
EWE R ——F N5 H
fthmFE
FEUERTE - k& RTER B
JE W 75 25 32 5 BR 1B R T 3K
BEEEEN

HIFRFR

FEHFR  RITERKLE®
RE ANFTFRHHEPTISRIA

Bl ARELE 2 A

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FET
22 45,552,614 41,972,818
23 549,335 521,886
24 - —
25 - —
26 322,938 322,938
27 2,370,531 2,017,868
28 1,702,019 1,642,668
29 99,598 119,012
35 1,080,272 993,942
31 16 15
43 23,505 35,252
30 14,908 14,908
32(a) 578,803 62,673
52,294,539 47,703,980
33 2,323,246 3,768,372
34 894,816 156,327
35 11,038,052 9,575,592
31 13 51
36 3,337 3,379
37 3,055,267 5,092,246
32(b) 66,103 286,045
9,910 1,911
32(a) 632,780 2,169,839
32(0) 3,881,250 4,786,523
1,546,180 837425
23,450,954 26,677,710
13 64,733 147,569
23,515,687 26,825,279
“TE-ZFFHR EAEEEE




82

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R& Bt B AR R IR =
At 31st December, 2013 R=_FE—=F+_A=+—H

Current liabilities

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable

Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities

Borrowings — due within one year
Provisions

Financial guarantee liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Properties revaluation reserve
Securities investments reserve
Statutory reserve
Other reserve
Special reserve
Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity

relating to non-current assets held for sale

Retained profits
— proposed final dividend
— special interim dividend
— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

REBRE

JE A< BR IR I e 5t RR0R
ENEFRHERMMRES
BE kIR
BIAE &
BE-——FRIH

B

MBERAE

HIIRFIEHECEE
BEERABZAE

REBEEFE

EERERARBAE

ERREEAZ
PEAG IR A #E 58
&N
MEERRE
FEHRE A
R
H A
5 Bl 1R
BEAREOE
PE 3L
BERAFELEZHERBEE
P E 2 T Y s P AR
REN A 2 B0
R B i A
— R R H A B
— BRI HR R
—HAh

R

MR R 4B R
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b=

Notes

B &t

38

39
40

13

41

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
1,794,252 636,313
15,136 33,586
1,068,654 3,306,447
247,062 93,112
7,386,683 14,171,958
39,424 -
37 -
10,551,248 18,241,416
= 1,973
10,551,248 18,243,389
12,964,439 8,581,890
65,258,978 56,285,870
190,762 190,762
225,216 98,162
19,223 45765
41,760 32,203
(2.501) (2,537)
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062
1,308,690 1,014,869
= 4,308
953,810 381,524
- 1,907,619
41,729,041 39,236,100
47,103,748 45,546,522
86,017 431,803
47,189,765 45,978,325




Non-current liabilities
Borrowings — due after one year
Provisions
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to investee companies
Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders

Deferred tax liabilities

FRBER

BE——F1&3H
BH

KRB E QAR
K%%Eﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁ
RE TR

EXEHRBARE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

6th March, 2014 and signed on its behalf by:

Joseph Lau, Luen-hung

Director EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBARRER

At 31st December, 2013 R-Z—=F+_-_A=+—H

2013 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FET FET
39 16,524,293 9,335,617
40 18,519 -
42 58,727 30,099
42 402,685 104,935
42 369,236 220,437
43 695,753 616,457
18,069,213 10,307,545
65,258,978 56,285,870
BEEEEN T —NF= ANAHERIREREM -

THTINEFRREFERE

Lam, Kwong-wai

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREAERESFX

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HZ =T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

84

ERARBAZEERETER

Properties Securities
Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve

ES E%
B& EfRE RERE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL TET FEL
(note i)
(B Ei)
At st January, 2012 RZE——F—F—H 190,762 - 67,934 29,119
Profit for the year KERHH - - - -

Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments HEREZATEE

— Unlisted investments —¥FLmEA - - (19,969) -
Reclassification relating to non-current assets held for sale REBELEZFRYDEEENDE - - (4,308) -
Surplus on revaluation of properties and other fixed assets ~ EENEREMETEEZ RS - 98,162 - -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations BINEBFEECERER - - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates BAEBERRZAMEARS - - 23 -
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year AFEZENE (L) BE - 98,162 (24,254) -
PRC statutory reserve HEETERE - - - 3,084
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME AT - - 2,085 -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFEERREZBE - - - -
Interim dividend for 2012 paid BENZE-—ZF4HRE - - - -
Final dividend for 2011 paid ENZZE——5RHRE - - - -
At 31st December, 2012 RZZ——F+ZA=+—H 190,762 98,162 45,765 32,203

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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For the year ended 31st December, 2013 #Z —=Z —

Attributable to owners of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X

=F+TZA=+—-HILEHFE

ARARBAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
BERFHE
g% ZHERBEE RARER
2ttt KRG RER#E & %A ZHE REBEF #E FERES #E
HKg'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKg'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TET TET TER THET TR TR TET
(note i) (note iii)
(P&t (Bt &)
(7,259) 2,499,685 138,062 961,487 - 31,771,542 35,651,332 716,675 36,368,007
- - - - - 9,794,937 9,794,937 25,579 9,820,516
- - - - - - (19,969) 1723 (18,246)
- - - - 4,308 - - - -
- - - - - - 98,162 - 98,162
- - - 52,148 - - 52,148 - 52,148
4722 - - 1,234 - - 5979 - 5979
4722 - - 53,382 4,308 9,794,937 9,931,257 27302 9,958,559
- - - - - (3,084) - - -
- - - - - - 2,085 (211,996) (209.911)
- - - - - - - (100,178) (100,178)
- - - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
(2,537) 2,499,685 138,062 1,014,869 4,308 41,525,243 45,546,522 431,803 45,978,325
—E-SEEE  SABESE 53

%

85



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HEZ =T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

At 1st January, 2013 R-Z—=%—-H—H
Profit for the year RED A
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments HREREZATEE

~ Unlisted investments —JFEMRE
Surplus on revaluation of properties and other fixed assets ~ EfMEREMETEE 2 BH
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations iﬁ?\%i‘“ﬁ?iZﬁ%%%ﬁ
Share of other comprehensive (expenses) income of NG

assaciates H ﬁ%@(iﬂj)ﬂﬁlé
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year AEE2ENE (S B8
PRC statutory reserve Y
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREARR
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ‘HH FRARER 2 R &
Interim dividend for 2013 paid ERNZZ-=F4HKE
Final dividend for 2012 paid BENZE-ZFRHBRE
Special interim dividend for 2012 paid ENZE-_FBHHRE
Special interim dividend for 2013 paid ERNZZ-=FRAFBRS

At 31st December, 2013 R=B-=Z#+=-A=t+-H
Notes:
(i)  The movement of other reserve for the year represented the release

(ii)

of the negative reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the
disposals of the relevant properties.

The statutory reserve of the Group refers to The People's Republic of
China ("PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

;= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARBAZEERETER

Properties Securities
Share  revaluation investments Statutory
capital reserve reserve reserve
TN EfbfA RERE EE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TET
(note ii)
(B i)
190,762 98,162 45,765 32,203
- - (26,529) -
= 127,054 - =
o o (13) =
- 127,054 (26,542) -
= - - 9,557
190,762 225,216 19,223 41,760

S

0]

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Attributable to owners of the Company

ET—

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAEZ ST X

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 & =E+ZA=t—HIFE

ARARBAZRERAES
Amounts
relating to
Capital non-current Non-
Other Special redemption Translation assets Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve held for sale profits Total interests equity
BREBEHE
g% ZHERBEE RARER
Hi RRlfRE RER#E & ZHE REBEF #E FERES B
HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKg'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TR TR TR TR
(note i) (note iii)
(Bt (Bt =it )
(2,537) 2,499,685 138,062 1,014,869 4,308 41,525,243 45,546,522 431,803 45,978,325
- - - - - 6,317,737 6,317,737 183,885 6,501,622
- - - - (84) - (26,613) (52) (26,665)
- - - - - - 127,054 - 127,054
- - - 200,309 = = 200,309 - 200,309
36 - - 93,512 = = 93,535 - 93,535
36 - - 293,821 (84) 6,317,737 6,712,022 183,833 6,895,855
- - - - - (9,557) - - -
= = = = (8,224) - (8,224 (220,774) (224,998)
- - - - - - - (308,845) (308,845)
- - - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - - (1,907,619) (1,907,619) - (1,907,619)
- - - - - (2,479,905) (2,479,905) - (2.479,905)
(2,501) 2,499,685 138,062 1,308,690 = 42,682,851 47,103,748 86,017 47,189,765

REDE [FRFIEHEZERPEENE bR
s P AR R RIER AR 2 A -

(i) Amounts represented “Amounts recognised in other comprehensive  (iii)
income and accumulated in equity relating to non-current assets held
for sale”.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R&BISHEM TG AMIERERH—IH -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HZ =T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Operating activities
Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinued operation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of properties and
other fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Fair value changes on financial guarantees
Interest expenses
Interest income
Dividends income from listed and
unlisted investments
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade receivables
Unrealised loss arising on change in fair value
of investments held-for-trading
Unrealised loss (gain) arising on change
in fair value of bonds
Realised loss arising on disposal of
unlisted equity securities
Gain on revaluation of stock of properties
upon transfer to investment properties
Loss (gain) on disposals of
investment properties
Gain on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets
Share of results of associates
Fair value changes on investment properties
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on deregistration of an associate
Exchange gain, net
Costs of development recognised in respect of
property project in Macau

Write-down of stock of properties
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2013
HK$'000
faE TET

Notes

6,945,040
539

18,525

37
382,032
(893,841)

(52,919)

83

30,299

55,199

130,370

(a5)

(350,854)

(3.402,859)

44 (198,536)
(a,275)

(2.857)

22,035

2012
HK$'000
FHET

10,113,939
6,059

16,507
1,430
on

313,869

(946,565)

(33,440)

170

645

(1,307,979)

10,500

(129,002)

(22,135)

(359)

(580,006)

(6,108,972)
(106,955)

(8,501)

694,737
606




Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital
Decrease in stock of properties
Decrease in loans receivables
Decrease in inventories for cosmetic products
Decrease (increase) in debtors,
deposits and prepayments
(Increase) decrease in investments
held-for-trading
Increase in financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease (increase) in securities
trading receivables and deposits
Increase in sales proceeds held by stakeholders
Increase (decrease) in creditors and accruals

(Decrease) increase in securities trading
and margin payable

(Decrease) increase in deposits and
receipts in advance

Cash generated from (used in)
operating activities
Net income tax paid

Net cash generated from (used in)
operating activities

Investing activities
Dividends received from listed and
unlisted investments
Dividends received from associates
Interest received
Payments for investment properties
Purchases of properties and other fixed assets
Payments for stock of properties
Proceeds on disposals of investment properties
Proceeds on disposals of properties and
other fixed assets
Proceed from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from redemption upon maturity of
available-for-sale investments
Purchases of available-for-sale investments
Net cash (outflow) inflow on disposal of
subsidiaries
Advances to associates
Repayments from associates
Advances from investee companies
Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits

Net cash generated from
investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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2013 2012
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FAET

2,677,973 1,914,457
3,310,619 356,504
37 52
a2 560
2,029,203 (325,994)
(768,788) 357,945
(1.603,989) (4,034,944)
219,942 (260,683)
(708,755) (803,700)
1,640,931 (18,674)
(18,450) 22,590
(2.247,503) 2,328,753
4,531,262 (463,134)
(207,161) (83,121)
4,324,101 (546,255)
52,919 33,440
96,035 261,850
894,457 888,226
(1,095,607) (807,770)
(12,033) (26,848)
(1,591,576) (1,025,200)
981,396 91,185
79 1,056
- 1,551,380
- 11,795
(7,115) (1,000)
44 (1.346) 126,316
(61,460) (217,457)
30,704 39,853
297,750 511,176
1,020,929 (527,513)
599,132 910,489
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEeRE&REXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HEZ =T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

Financing activities MEXEH

Dividends paid BERRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BRI R 2 AR E
Interest paid XNk

New bank loans and other loans raised MG IRITE R R H A TR
Repayments of bank loans and other loans BERTEREHEMER
Advances from non-controlling shareholders FETE MR IR R B

Net cash (used in) generated from (AR)REMEXEB2HESTFE
financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekBREEHEER
cash equivalents (R 2>) 18 hnF 58
Cash and cash equivalents at I1stJanuary R—F—HBZHE&EK
Re%EER
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgg o E
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZRA=t+—-HZ
31st December RERBAESEEER
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESESEEBEEESRDN

cash equivalents

Time deposits, bank balances and cash EHGEH RITEHRRS

Time deposits and bank balances included BREEIIRFELEZEEZ
in assets classified as held for sale TE BT S R IRAT A Bk

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 474 BfFSHEM TR A M BRI —

financial statements.
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Notes

ot

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

(5.150,572) (38,152)

(308,845) (100,178)

(576,889) (494,620)
18,275,984 12,988,911

(18,344,250) (12,482,811)
148,799 315,487
(5,955,773) 188,637
(1,032,540) 552,871
4,820,010 4,268,499

93,780 (1,360)
3,881,250 4,820,010
3,881,250 4,786,523
- 33,487
3,881,250 4,820,010
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 BZE T —=F+ A=+ —HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual

report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group”) and all amounts are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise

indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set

out in Notes 52 and 53 respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The accounting policies adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2012

except as described below.

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are effective for
current accounting year of the Group. The new HKFRSs adopted
by the Group in these consolidated financial statements are set out
below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (Revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (Revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS 1, the “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. The amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis. The amendments do not change
the option to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The presentation of other comprehensive

income section has been modified for such disclosures accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about: (a) recognised financial instruments that
are set off in accordance with HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments:
Presentation”; and (b) recognised financial instruments that are
subject to an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial instruments
are set off in accordance with HKAS 32. The application of the
amendments has had no material impact on the disclosures or on

the amounts recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

Under HKFRS 10, there is a single-approach for determining control
for the purpose of consolidation of subsidiaries by an entity based
on the concept of power, variability of returns and the ability
to use power to affect the amount of returns. This replaces the
previous approach which emphasised legal control under HKAS 27
(Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” (for
companies) or exposure to risks and rewards under HK(SIC) — Int
12 (for special purpose entities) “Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. The adoption of HKFRS 10 does not have any financial
impact to the Group as all subsidiaries within the Group satisfy the
requirements for control under HKFRS 10 and there are no new

subsidiaries identified under the new guidance.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) — Int 13
“Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified and
accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangements. HKFRS 11
removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation. Instead, a jointly controlled entity that
meets the definition of a joint venture should be accounted for
using the equity method under HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). The
adoption of HKFRS 11 does not have any financial impact to the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

HKFRS 12 specifies the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements and associates, and introduces new
requirements for unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective standards and thereby are
provided in Notes 27, 52 and 53.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment’, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not

fair value.

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would
be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is
an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable

or estimated using another valuation technique.

HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements and
specific transitional provisions which were given for disclosure of
comparative information provided for periods before the initial
application of the standard. In accordance with these transitional
provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures required
by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period (Notes 5 and 22
for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the fair
value measurements of the Group's assets and liabilities in these

consolidated financial statements.

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs. Of these, the following

are pertinent to the Group's operations:

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax relating to
distributions to holders of equity instrument should be recognised
in profit or loss and income tax relating to transaction costs of an
equity transaction should be recognised in equity. The adoption of
the amendments to HKAS 32 does not have any financial impact to
the Group as it currently does not have distributions subject to tax

or costs of equity transactions that are tax-deductible.

Except for HKFRS 13, which requires prospective application from
Ist January, 2013, the Group has applied the above new HKFRSs

retrospectively.

Save as described above, the application of the new HKFRSs had
no material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and

presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised

HKFRSs, amendments and interpretation (“new and revised

HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Hedge Accounting and
Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 394

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

Investment Entities’

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefits Plans:

Employee Contributions?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities'
HKAS 36 (Amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for
adoption

HKFRS 9 (as issued in November 2009) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for the financial liabilities and for derecognition. Under HKFRS 9,
all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” are
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held-for-trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (contd)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair

value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The date when entities would be required to apply HKFRS 9
was previously stated at 1st January, 2015. This mandatory
effective date has been removed to provide sufficient time for
preparers of financial statements to make the transition to the new
requirements, which will now become effective from a later date
yet to be announced. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect
the classification, measurement and presentation of the Group's

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of the
new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to determine
whether the new and revised HKFRSs will have a significant impact
on how its results of operations and financial position are prepared
and presented. The new and revised HKFRSs may result in changes
in the future as to how the results and financial position are

prepared and presented.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term that includes
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt % 3R R K 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHERE W

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

HRAMBRRDRIBEELRAERE  ERA
FEAEZETOERERT ARSI BRZ

instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in FETERERMMIT .

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial

the accounting policies set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation (a) #HREEBEZE
Subsidiaries ol A

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

BAENBRERBERAATERATRE
MEARIMIEHIER (REEEILEER
ZEATEIRER o BLANA RIES IR RIRE TS -
(OWAEEZIREETFEREN: (HB2H
T i‘&ﬁ%Z%i"‘ﬁ SRBREESAE
W R(iBREDEHESIRERTE
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@i%

i %5 B R 15 00 IR BR £ 3P = IR B A
ZEP-HAXZENE AAKEEE
HREMABEIREERAENE-

$E@ﬁ% MTE A4 1) 4 B B 46 1S

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains

control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses NN S ARR 0 A 2 il R i A
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses %&J:)\EE Hﬁg FRTWES S

B A E Z WA RN AN B ESE
HEREFAGELIERERR BEE
AEETBEGZMBRAR B -

of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date

when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R R Ffi &%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont'd) () #HAERBEZE(E

%

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(c) Investments in associates

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE »

(9

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant

influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a

joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate

in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are

incorporated in the consolidated financial statements

using the equity method of accounting, except when the

investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for

sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with

HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

Operations”.

Under the equity method, an investment in an

associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to

recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's

share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest

in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,

in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in

the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share

of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to

the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

sitta
|\ -
o
=

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

REBELAR2RE
BERRAAREHEBRREARS
ZRE B TERIME AT MIERA
REIZEm EARFENEARZER
RREBZUBREERFARTE BIF
HRERREA TSR L H -

D> mh;,m

7
=

0|

0|

BENRINELRUREERAENER
SRERBRATBREAR - HAEBK
B HP—HFoEoBARBELE I
RIEE BB RELREST [FFEDE
ZIERBEERDRILEEERS| AE-
BB RNEEARNIRE TR
&$%ﬁéﬂ%#%ﬁﬁ**m%ﬁé
PR EE EAG 22 AR M B
Em%EWA%Mﬁ%°D$EIﬁE
BE ARz EBERBEASERZEE A
Rlzim (REEE LN AREERZ
BN RIREFRE o M ERI R
&) R ASRBERIEERE RGN E—S
BRE-ERAEEDEELEETRHETR
FrRERRZEE QAR ARENE
NN e EREINNEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments in associates (Cont'd)

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE »

(9

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an

associate but the Group continues to use the equity method,

the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of

the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in

other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in

ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to

profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the

Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),

profits and

losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are

recognised in the consolidated financial statements only to

the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to

the Group.

(d)

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and

intangible assets with indefinite useful lives)

(d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the

carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets

with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less

than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset

is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of

its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

Investment properties and investment properties

under construction and development

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including properties
under construction and development for such purposes and
land held for a currently undetermined future use. On initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise. However, if the fair values of
investment properties under construction and development
are not reliably determinable but expect the fair values of the
properties to be reliably determinable when construction/
development is completed, it shall measure that investment
properties under construction and development at cost, less
any impairment loss, until either its fair value become reliably
determinable or construction/development is completed

(whichever is earlier).

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

3. FESTHHRERE »

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

under construction and development (Cont'd)

Investment properties and investment properties

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(e)

An investment property is transferred at fair value to

properties and other fixed assets when the property begins to

be occupied by the owner. Gain or loss arising from change

in fair value of the investment property upon the transfer is

included in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from

properties

and other fixed assets to investment property at fair value

when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The

difference between the carrying amount and fair value at the

date of transfer is accounted for as a revaluation

increase in

accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.

On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets, the relevant

revaluation reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

®

Properties and other fixed assets

®

Properties and other fixed assets including buildings and

leasehold land classified as finance leases (other than

properties under development) are stated at

cost less

subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

(8

Properties and other fixed assets (Cont'd)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of properties
and other fixed assets (other than properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period

of the lease and 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of properties and other fixed assets is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.

Property interests held for future development

Property interests held for future development represents a
right to develop properties on a piece of land upon payment
of a final amount, and are carried at cost less any identified

impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(h) Stock of properties

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(h)

Stock of properties including completed properties and

properties under development, which are held-for-trading, is

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost and

net realisable value are determined as follows:

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined

by apportionment of the total development costs, including

borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.

Net realisable value is estimated by the management of

the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which

represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of properties under development held for sale

includes identified costs including the acquisition cost of land,

aggregate cost of development, borrowing costs capitalised,

material and supplies, wages, other direct expenses and an

appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value

is estimated by the management of the Group taking into

account the expected price that can ultimately be achieved

based on prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs

of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed

properties held for sale and properties under development

held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period the

write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of

any write-down or provision arising from an increase in net

realisable value is recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

=

MEEFE

HEBERR 2 MEFE (BEERY
SRR P ) TR A R A
B R o R EE B B o A B AT
BIRFERN T AR

FEHE 2B ME 2R ABTIRKRE
HEMEEERIAAE (BRESNL
ZREERA) Z LI E - AT R BFE TS
HAKE EREBREERMAGE
st E BRI EMEREEZ
B AR

FIFHEZERPOMEZRAERRED
BRI & BT R - B R
AR  BENMEZBERA R R
YR TE R EERRASREELAZ
REBR-AERFEDHAEEZE
BERBE R TR FART TR A R
EVMERELZRAGE LEFRE
HmEE 2B

FHEHEZEZRMERFELE ZER
TMERZEMBERBEESE REL
BEREBRMENER DR -2
FEBNEREREMREREE S
B ORNMELBOHMANIES TR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

0]

1)

(k)

Inventories for cosmetic products

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials which

are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any
identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(k)

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the

three categories, including financial assets at

fair value

through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-

for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases

financial assets are recognised and derecognised

or sales of

on a trade

date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or

sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in

such category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

respect of

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the

amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts

(including all fees and points paid or received that form an

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs

and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life

of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments other than financial assets designated as at

fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit

or loss when the financial asset is either held-for-trading or

it is designated by the management of the Group

inception.

as such at
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling it in the near future; or

on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading

may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon

initial recognition if:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated

as at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(k)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or

loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend

or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in

“Investment Income/Expenses”.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including advances to associates,

loans receivable, advance to a non-controlling shareholder,

pledged deposits, debtors and deposits, securities trading

receivables and deposits, time deposits, bank balances

and cash and sales proceeds held by stakeholders) are

non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans

and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method, less any identified impairment

losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as

any of the other categories under HKAS 39. In addition to

equity investments, the Group has also designated certain

debt investments as available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the securities investments reserve, when the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
securities investments reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

However, interest calculated using the effective interest

method is recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting

period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(k)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(i)  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

(iif)

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

()

asset because of financial difficulties.

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

the disappearance of an active market for that financial

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade

receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired

individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past

experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number

of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average

credit period, as well as observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of

the impairment loss recognised is the difference between

the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the

estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial

asset's original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

When available-for-sale financial assets are considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in

other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

mEMBRRME

(ky £®IA(E)

Financial assets (Cont'd) EHEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd) THEERE (E)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment NERBRERFEREIKE ZRE
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed BEGTENEmEL - NERREE
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent BEZ A FEENNEMEEKREER
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive WHRBHFEERFEP R -REESED
income and accumulated under the heading of securities REME @ WZARE 2 R FEZINA
investments reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt FEMEBRAEBER I EHEHE
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed AR EEEEZEBERRED -
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the

investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments EHABRREITA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity EBEERBET BB MRATETDRE
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity ERNTHZRNETReRBEERATE
in accordance with the substance of the contractual ZEEDHRTHEBEIRATA-
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual AT ARAIFERAN —EREELNR
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its HEaBR 2 NBER 2 ERa4-
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are classified into rEEzeREBGEIERBBRERUR
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other MAFEz2RABREMEREE-
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect RemBEMATAEMRKAZ §5THK
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out BT »

below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at fair value through

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held-for-trading or it

is designated as such on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held-for-trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near future; or

(i) on initial recognition, it is part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

(i) it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEVBERBEE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd) (ky =RIA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd) THEERKRATA (&)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd) BEBRm A RBLFEZLFHEE (E)
A financial liability other than a financial liability held-for- MERTAER HEEETRE BN
trading may be designated as at fair value through profit or S RABRI N EREREIETE A3
loss upon initial recognition if: BEmARRATE:
(i)  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a () FBEERYHENABBRET 25

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would BERAREHRT —B 2B %

otherwise arise; or

(i) the financial liability forms part of a group of financial (i) =MBEAEN—FHeREESESH
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed BEAZIIEME  LREARE
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, ERTERERERRIRERR EA
in accordance with the Group's documented risk TEEEERNAHARR Mo
management or investment strategy, and information HEMARZEEH AR 5

about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

(i) it forms part of a contract containing one or more (i) S@MAEAKBEE BN LR
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire EBNETAZENERLS MK
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated BEFHEREINN AT EENE
as at fair value through profit or loss. HEW(BEEXEB)BEERBB

BamARRAFE

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are BRERARBRATEZERABNR

measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on RNVEFE RBRFAERELEZEM

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or Wamsk BB RN R - N B

loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on ZEBFEOENERE FiHZEﬂ

the financial liability. A2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and accruals,
securities trading and margin payable, deposits received,
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to associates,
amounts due to investee companies and amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(k)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all

the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,

the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the

sum of the consideration received and receivable and the

cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in

equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only

when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or

they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

() Revenue recognition

)

Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised

upon completion of sales agreement and by reference to

the timing of the execution of deed of legal assignment or

delivery of property to the purchaser, whichever is earlier.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the

execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received

from the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as

deposits received on sales of properties and are grouped

under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from

properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or

loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

g
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(m)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts and the profit and loss on trade in securities and
futures contracts are recognised on the transaction dates

when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised when

goods are delivered and titles have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Taxation (Cont'd)

REMBRRME

(m)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the

consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax

bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax

liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary

differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for

all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profits will be available against which

those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such

deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial

recognition (other than in a business combination) of other

assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates, except where the Group is able to control the

reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the

end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax

rates that are expected to apply in the period in which

the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and

deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they

relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and

deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or

deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business

combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Taxation (Cont'd)

(m)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(0)

Foreign currencies

mEMBRRME

3. FESTHHRERE e

(0)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised

at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the

transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary

items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at

the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried

at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the

fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are

measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise, except for exchange differences arising on a monetary

item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a

foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences

are recognised in other comprehensive income in the

consolidated financial statements and will be reclassified

from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign

operation. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation

of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in

profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences

arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in

respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in

other comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange

differences are recognised directly in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBERBE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(p) Borrowing costs (p) MBEMEX
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, RBE EEREENAREEEGE
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are TRANHEECAEREEZEEEML
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get BEXRAEFTARZEEEIKER &
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of ZEEEEE LEZRTERS LA HE
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases EREERABENBIEERE -

when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the A EMEERAREREERHNIER
period in which they are incurred. HER o

(q9) Retirement benefits costs (q) EARBRAE
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes RERFTORKBN T8 2 RN EER
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered HRBUAFRRGEHANERASFAX

service entitling them to the contributions.

(r)  Provisions r) #BE
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present EASERABESEHmMAEREEET:
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the BYASEBEERZETNR ™
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable ZETHER T EM A R R EE -

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate BRABB 2 FBE IR REARE LA
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation REEIMBZRE 2 KEMR EF
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the EEESREBETEZRREITEEERE
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a Zo-MABERAGAINRAEEEZR
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle SmETHE AREENZERSR
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present ZHE-

value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(s)

®

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the non-current asset or disposal group
is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The
management of the Group must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary

after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale (other than investment properties accounted for
under the fair value model in HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
and financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39) are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESHBERBE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(t) Related parties (Cont'd) t) PBIEAL(HE)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (i) fW&E TIEMGEY - NZEEE
conditions applies: REBERE
(1) the entity and the Group are members of the (1) ZEBEASREARRE—%E
same group (which means that each parent, Z BB (BN& &2 a - &
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the NSIVACES ) = PNCIE 3l dE
others). BAE) o
(2) one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the 2 FEBRS—EENOHZE
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of RAIXEE AR (HEZ—E&
a member of a group of which the other entity is BAKRBRARIZEEETK
a member). BRAEIZHBERFIRAEER
Al) e
(3) both entities are joint ventures of the same third (3) MEERBHARA-—EE=H
party. Hagnae
(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (4) —EBR—HBE=-FEBZ
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BERF ME—EBRZ
BE=ZFERBIBERE -
(5) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (5) ZEBRAZESNAEEIE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or HAEEESHBREENE
an entity related to the Group. gl
(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (6) FZEBBX()EFTIMA LT
person identified in (i). S A
(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant @) ROO)IBATILA T A Z
influence over the entity or is a member of the EREEATENNEZLRE
key management personnel of the entity (or of a EB(ZERBZERA)Z
parent of the entity). FEERBAB-
Close family members of an individual are those family BRI A T B EZ R EERK 8 18 H5%
members who may be expected to influence, or be ERRHKNAMAIZEZERA LR
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ZEFALTHENRENXE -

128 =. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

()

v)

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist primarily
of properties and other fixed assets, financial assets and
other assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities
and other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on
the basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense
and non-controlling interests but not including the major
non-cash items. The major non-cash items mainly are fair
value changes on investment properties and other property
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax
expense. No intersegment revenue is accounted for as
the intersegment revenue is mainly the rental income for

administrative purpose.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value and impairment of available-for-sale
investments

As described in Note 5, the management of the Group uses
its judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity instruments with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$71,713,000 (2012: HK$98,242,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions
supported, where possible, by observable market prices or rates.
The estimation of fair value of these equity instruments also
includes some assumptions not supported by observable market

prices or rates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable

The policy for impairment loss in respect of accounts receivable
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based
on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation reports, the management of the Group has exercised
its judgment and is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions, as detailed in Note 22.
Should there be changes in assumptions due to change in market
conditions, the fair value of the investment properties will change in

future.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

At 31st December, 2013, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$29,307,000 (2012: HK$49,757,000) in relation to unused
tax losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
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=

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions made by the management of the Group on the
future operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and other

assumptions underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Property project in Macau

The Group was involved in legal proceedings in respect of the
property project in Macau. “Costs of Development Recognised in
respect of Property Project in Macau” in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income is estimated in accordance with HKAS
39 as detailed in Notes 33 and 37. Based on the legal opinion, the
management of the Group estimated that no significant loss would
be incurred beyond the amounts recognised. Actual results could

differ from these estimates.
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5.
(a) Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale investments FERE
Financial assets at fair value through BREEURMAFEZ
profit or loss: TREE:
— Investments held-for-trading —REEEZRE
— Designated as at fair value —EERBBIEZIA
through profit or loss RERAFE
Loans and receivables BER R EWGRIE
(including time deposits, (BEEHFR
bank balances and cash) RITHEBRIRE)
Financial liabilities cRmEeE
Amortised cost BHEACR
Financial guarantee liabilities R =N
Note: The above table and the analysis below excluded the
respective items classified as held for sale.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRIA

(a) =RTAEH

REMBRRME

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, advances to/from associates/investee
companies/non-controlling shareholders, debtors and
deposits, time deposits and bank balances, borrowings,
creditors and accruals and deposits received. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

(b)

“E-ZHEFHR  EAEXLEE

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
99,598 119,012
894,816 156,327
12,118,324 10,569,534
11,372,657 14,709,129
27,535,155 27,764,329
37 -

fiaE: ERE TN BRI RFE
HEZHEBEEE -

tREREEREREX

AEEFTEZSMIABDERARE
BEHF BNT/BMERR TEXRE
N IR R 2 FOE - EURTE R
Be THERRBITES B8 BN
FEMEAFRBEIRERZE -ZETR
TAFBENREMERE - T XE#FHEZ
FeMTAABZER RN EEZE
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1% R - ARELR N B A0 A 2 BRER
HE

FEBEFBReRIAZ AR EE R
EBRERBZ AL EES -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. @t TR
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SEEARETEEEREE (8)
(Cont'd)
Market risk 5 m g
() Foreign currency risk 0 LEmEs

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions,
and from recognised assets and liabilities. The
functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of
the transactions are denominated. The functional
currencies of those subsidiaries operating in PRC and
in the United Kingdom are Renminbi (“RMB") and
Pound Sterling (“GBP") respectively in which most
of their transactions are denominated. The Group is
mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect
of exchange fluctuations of HK$ against RMB and
GBP. The conversion of RMB into other currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the government of PRC. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At the end of the reporting period, included in the
Group's investment portfolio were certain RMB-
denominated bonds. Due to the foreign exchange
control on conversion of RMB, RMB bonds were
subject to higher foreign currency risk. In addition,
when RMB bonds are not denominated in RMB or
with underlying investments which are not RMB-
denominated, the Group will be subject to muiltiple

currency conversion costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(1) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:
Assets BE
United States dollars (“US$") i ([%Exl)
RMB ARE
GBP HigE
Macau Pataca (“MOP") JRFTES (DRFI% )

Liabilities =R
Us$ ETT
RMB AR
MOP SRPIEE

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$ and MOP,
it is assumed that there would be no material currency
risk exposure between US$/MOP and HK$ and
therefore US$ and MOP are excluded from the analysis

below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

5.
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BREEINT
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
11,786,372 14,921,047
1,053,343 578,901
44,933 44,673
7,709 7667
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

mEMBRRME

5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd)
(1) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign

currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts

their translations at the end of the reporting period for

a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity

analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/

from foreign operations within the Group where

the denomination of the loan is in a currency other

than the currency of the lender or the borrower; but

excluding exposure resulting from the translation of

the financial statements of foreign operations into the

Group's presentation currency.

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit

where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against

HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies

against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of

RMB
GBP

&
It

B>
S A

There would be no material impact to the Group's

other components of equity for the years ended 31st

December, 2013 and 2012.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign

currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary

assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and borrowings including advances to associates, bank
balances and borrowings and is therefore exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the

need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rates ("HIBOR"), prime rate (“Prime"),
People's Bank of China base rate or costs of funds of

financial institutions.
Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in

advances to associates, bank balances and borrowings).

5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. $EIT A @
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) L2EEMTEEEREE (H)
(Cont'd)
Market risk (Cont'd) mEERE (&)
(i) Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd) (i) Bz mEFFERERE (&)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variables held constant, the

Group's:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$87,476,000 (2012:
HK$87,172,000). This was mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its

variable-rate borrowings.

. no material impact to the other components of

equity for the years ended 31st December, 2013

SRE D (B)

i F B AR LT T RESOMEEE -
EeMEMBERERTEZBER
T RIARSE:

. BHz_Z2—=Z+=A48
S+ -—HLEFEZBRR
AT S B A5 OR AEnA
87,476,000 L (Z T — =
4 187,172,000 7T ) ° Itk TY
FEHREEEMREAZZE
FEEEZFEER -

. BeE_Z—=FK-_2——
F+-_A=+—RHLFEZ

and 2012. Az E A o WEEE K
T
Price risk B8 2

The Group's investments classified as available-for-
sale investments, investments held-for-trading and
financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High vyield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rate move upwards, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(iii)  Price risk (Cont'd)

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.
If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's:

. profit before tax for the year ended 31st
December, 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$650,657,000 (2012:
HK$536,293,000). This was mainly due to the
changes in fair value of investments held-for-
trading and financial assets designated as at fair

value through profit or loss.

. other components of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$3,586,000 (2012:
HK$4,912,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of available-for-sale investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

mEMBRRME

5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of

the counterparties' failure to perform their obligations as at

31st December, 2013 in relation to each class of recognised

financial assets are: (a) the carrying amounts of those assets

as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position;

and (b) financial guarantee provided by the Group which

is the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantee issued by the Group. The Group's time deposits

are deposited with banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong,

Mainland China and overseas.

The Group made transactions with counterparties with

acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's

treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable

credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and

scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two

important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The

credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over

the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial

counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk

concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the

Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial

institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the

recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end

of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment

losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in debt securities are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
When making decisions on investments in securities, the
management of the Group has also made reference to the
credit ratings of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which,
however, are not an assurance as to the issuers and/or
guarantors' creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability
of the security. Risks in particular specific to certain types of
bonds held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they
in general carry high credit risk as they are often subject to
higher risk of issuer default for they are typically rated below
investment grade or are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their
coupon payments may be deferred or suspended subject to
the terms and conditions of the bonds and they are often
callable after a call protection period (related risk is detailed
in the liquidity risk below); and (i) contingent convertible
bonds — they contain a clause requiring them to be written
off or converted into issuer's equity on the occurrence of a
trigger event. If a conversion takes place, the Group is subject
to both equity and bond investment risks. Other than the
above, there may be additional risks associated with trading
of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC") because OTC transactions
are generally subject to limited regulation and therefore
less transparent in transaction details such as volume,
price formation, etc. There may also be additional risks for
investments located in an emerging market which may
involve certain risks associated with political and economic
uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the Group
has appointed a special team to closely monitor the risks as
disclosed in Note 5(b)(iii) above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €@ T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAMEEBEZEREE (&)
(Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd) EERRE (&)

Certain mortgagee banks have provided end-user financing
to purchasers of stock of properties located in Mainland
China and the Group has provided repurchase guarantees to
these mortgagee banks for securing the obligations of such

purchasers for repayments.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to the mortgagee banks. Under such
circumstances, the Group is able to sell the properties to
recover any amounts paid by the Group to the mortgagee
banks. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced. Nevertheless, the net
realisable values of the relevant properties are subject
to the fluctuation of the property market in general, the
management of the Group, by reference to the valuation
conducted by independent qualified professional valuer,
assesses at the end of each reporting period the liabilities
based on the current estimates of future cash flows. At
the end of the reporting period, the above guarantees to
banks were stated at fair value by reference to the valuation
conducted by an independent professional valuer in these

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The
Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-concentration
(such as investment products and underlying foreign

exchange, etc) of the investment portfolio.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain investments held-for-trading and bonds
were pledged to the Group's financial institutions to secure
margin and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect
of securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposit to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.

Certain bonds held by the Group carry fixed-rate coupon are
accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and redeem
the debt securities early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have active secondary market. In case of the market
in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group may run
the risk of either having to retain the investment until the end
of the term or selling it before maturity at an unfavourable

price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) cREAMREEBEEREE(E)
(Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) REBELEE (&)
At 31st December, 2013
R-B-ZH+-A=+-
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
mEYY AERRSE REE
ERF= —FRK MEELF mERE bl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TART TR
Non-derivative financial TESRER
liabilities
Borrowings 5B 2.58% 7,929,941 17,510,267 25,440,208 23,910,976
Creditors and accruals e RIE R g IR - 1,794,252 - 1,794,252 1,794,252
Securities trading and B EARHEER
margin payable ek - 15,136 - 15,136 15,136
Amounts due to associates REBERAHE - - 58,727 58,727 58,727
Amounts due to investee REEZRERNT
companies M - - 402,685 402,685 402,685
Amounts due to non-controlling /% & FE1Z R A%
shareholders ;E
— Interest-bearing -8 11.25% - 163,758 163,758 147,198
— Interest-free -8 - - 222,038 222,038 222,038
Financial guarantee liabilities HBRERAE
~ Current -nPLE - 196,113 - 196,113
- Non-current —FFRPHE - - 829,600 829,600
Total B 9,935,442 19,187,075 29,122,517 26,551,012

At 31st December, 2012
RZF-ZF+ZA=1—

Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
MmEFH AURRE EEA
ERF% —ER MEERF MELE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FTET FAEL FTAT
Non-derivative financial FTESRER
liabilities ‘
Borrowings 1 2.32% 14,646,759 10,320,601 24,967,360 23,507,575
Creditors and accruals FETHRIE R IE T B - 636,313 - 636,313 636,313
Securities trading and NS HREAR
margin payable RiES - 33,586 - 33,586 33,586
Amounts due to associates REBENATE - - 30,099 30,099 30,099
Amounts due to investee REBEXBREDH
companies FE - - 104,935 104,935 104,935
Amounts due to non-controlling X B 3EE B R &
shareholders A
- Interest-bearing —iE 11.25% - 17,860 17,860 16,054
- Interest-free -5 8 - - 204,383 204,383 204,383
Financial guarantee liabilities MBEREE
~ Current -mENtE - 789,586 - 789,586 -
~ Non-current —¥REUE - - 335,500 335,500 -
Total k] 16,106,244 11,013,378 27.119,622 24,532,945
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as

net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

%

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

5.

The following table analysed the financial instruments which
are measured at fair value as at 31st December, 2013 into

REMBRRME

E@MIAE W

(0 AFENEE

URFlEFEBZEHTA

TRAER-B-—=F+-A=+—HMK
AFEHECERIAZ =8B D

the three-level hierarchy. o
Financial assets/ Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
financial liabilities Fair value hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
SREE/SRAE AFE AFEIRE  HERNREIERE EXFUEERE
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Financial assets
tREE
Listed equity securities 894,816 156327 Level 1 Quoted prices N/A
classified as investments E—1 in active markets TER
held-for-trading RERTISZ RE
PERFIFEECRE
FHRARES
Bonds classified as financial 12,118,324 10,569,534 Level 1 Quoted prices N/A
assets designated - in active markets TER
as at fair value through RETSZ RE
profit or loss
PERETRBRER
URBATEZ
SRAEZES
Unlisted equity 71,7113 98242 Level 3 Discounted cash flow: Forecast dividend income taking
securities classified as E=R forecast dividend income, into account management's
available-for-sale discount rate and contract experience and dividend records
investments (note (i) terms (if any) over the past years
PERFEREL BEESRE: BHZRERADZRERE
FERRAES TR ZREMA - BERE R BHREBAFE 2 RETH
(BEEQ)) AHHEFR(NF)
Discount rate ranging from 1%
below Prime to Prime
BEEANTRESNE
BEEREENE
(note (ii))
(P &R (i)
13,084,853 10,824,103
Financial liabilities
tRaR
Financial guarantee liabilities 37 - level3 Trinomial Option Pricing Model ~ Volatility ranging from
BHBEREE E=H (note (iii)) 4.8% to 25.5% (note (iv))
ZEARREERA KRB & E i
GEIO) 4.8%%25.5% (M (v))
Notes: B ot
(i)  The carrying amount as at 31st December, 2013 mainly () KZZ—=F+-A=+—RHZKEH@
comprised 6.475% equity investment in New Hong Kong BEx Z 8 E% /70,755,000 7T (=
Tunnel Company Limited of approximately HK$70,755,000 T — 4 :92,982,000/8 L) R &
(2012: HK$92,982,000). HBRBHR AR Z6.475%RAIEE -
(i)  The higher the forecast dividend income, the higher the () FAZREBAMS RFEBS-
fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair BRIRERM S AFEBIK-
value.
(i) The key inputs for the Trinomial Option Pricing Model (i) Z=EAHAETERAZEIZ2BES
included net asset value/market value, exercise price, EHEEECAESE, ME- 17
time to maturity, risk-free interest rate and volatility of the 58 BIEARS R - E R R A R MOf B
underlying assets. o
(iv)  The higher the volatility, the higher the fair value. (v) EBMHHA AFEHES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mis

BT R ®

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.
(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd) ()
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)
There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy during the year and no change in
valuation techniques used in the prior years.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in Level 1.
The movement during the year in the balances of Level 3 fair
value measurement is as follows:
At 1st January, 2012 WZE——F—H—H
Net unrealised losses recognised P EF P9 H A, 2 TR W 2 T SR
in other comprehensive R EJ%?E FER
income during the year
Fair value changes recognised RERNRERER
in profit or loss during the year NTEZE
At 31st December, 2012 R—ZE——F+-_A=+—8H
Net unrealised losses recognised REAEMEEBESERZ
in other comprehensive REREIRFRE
income during the year
Fair value changes recognised REARBRER
in profit or loss during the year N EEZE

At 31st December, 2013

R-E—=F+=-H=+—H

DFEFE (E)

URFEFEZEZHMTA (B)

NEEHRENE—R B FHRE=
mZﬁKEWEﬁ%%&EE%%Zﬁ
BRI EEE.

RERMSEBEZ BT AZ ATFER
E R EERFTR 2 THE o fin B} E B
BRRGH X0 4548 ERER -
HRERBIEESHERSRE AZSE
BEBERREMEATFELEETZT
BR 5 AMSARAER NEBEAE
CRMEEMAZTEREAERNZEA
B ETADFHAE R

EZRATEGBRBRENZED
mF

Unlisted
available-for-sale Financial
equity securities guarantee
investments liabilities
FETEFE B3
BAZFHRERE EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
120,239 N
(21,997) -
- 91
98,242 =
(26,529) -
= (37)
71,713 (37)
TE-ZHEFHR EAESEEE =55

%
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

All of the above gains and losses included in other
comprehensive income for the current and prior years relate
to unquoted equity investments held at the end of the
reporting period and are reported as changes of “Securities

Investments Reserve”.
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2012.

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the capital structure
of the Group mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings
from banks and other financial institutions, time deposits, bank
balances and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits respectively. The Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital
structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has a target
gearing ratio not higher than 50%, determined as the proportion
of net debt to equity. This ratio is expressed by as a percentage of
net borrowings over the total equity. Net borrowings are calculated
as total borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd) 6. EXEBERE &
The gearing ratios as at 31st December, 2013 and 2012 were as WN_E—=FR_FT——F+-_A=+—H
follows: ZERHEBBELEMT:
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Borrowings — due within one year (note i) BE——FANEIE (T 7,386,683 14,171,958
Borrowings — due after one year (note i) BE——F&EH (M) 16,524,293 9,335,617
Total debt (note i) B4z (MsE) 23,910,976 23,507,575
Cash and cash equivalents (note ii) ReERBREESMEEAR (M) (5,092,833) (7,019,035)
Net debt [ERoEE 18,818,143 16,488,540
Net debt [EX e 18,818,143 16,488,540
Listed equity securities investments and FHRAFEFRE &
treasury products (note iii) 81 & B o (P &) (13,013,140) (10,725,861)
Net debt (R OEE=
(net debt less listed equity securities (& FER ETMRAE S
investments and treasury products) HENMBEER) 5,805,003 5,762,679
Total equity (note iv) fR A #E 2= 4288 (M EIv) 47,189,765 45,978,325
Net debt to equity ratio B 50 B AR AR o b 3
(excluding listed equity securities (TEELTRABFRER
investments and treasury products) MEEM) 39.9% 35.9%
Net debt to equity ratio B AR B AR A M 2 b
(including listed equity securities (BELITREABFRER
investments and treasury products) BEEM) 12.3% 12.5%
Notes: B aE
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 39. () (EERMFE39F L
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise pledged deposits, time (i) REEBERzReRReEEEEBER
deposits, bank balances and cash (excluding time deposits and BEF ERFR - RITEHKRRE (M
bank balances classified as assets held for sale) at the end of the RINBBELREEEZERFRARRITE
reporting period. #R) o
(i)  Listed equity securities investments and treasury products are (i) ETRABHFEERMEERRIFI4R
detailed in Notes 34 and 35. 355Ft ©
(iv) Total equity includes share capital, reserves and non-controlling (v) PREERARTBRAESEEOERARE
interests at the end of the reporting period. EEPSEE e e
—B_cEgH ZAB%EE Sog

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

The increase in net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed equity
securities investments and treasury products) was mainly due
to the increase in net debt. The increase in net debt was mainly
attributable to the decrease in cash and cash equivalents.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures
Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

In relation to the wholly foreign-owned enterprises for carrying out
property development projects and consultancy service in Mainland
China, the Group is required to pay up in 2014 the unpaid
registered capital for wholly-owned subsidiaries including B & &
% (A &) BIE AT of approximately US$79.84 million and 3% H
(E8)ERBMBR AR of US$0.50 million (paid up in February
2014) in accordance with the relevant laws, rules and regulations of
the PRC.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts received and receivable
from property rental income, sales of properties held for sale, gains/
losses from sales of investments held-for-trading, interest income
from loan financing, commission from brokerage, settlement
charges from brokerage and cosmetic goods sold less returns,
analysed as follows:

REMBRRME

BEXARARERE ®

FEBRRAERNLEE (TRELHERAE
FRENMEER) ZMALT T2HRNE
BFRIEN ERFRENTIEREARRE R
ReFEBEB MDA

MEREBME ARR=ZR2EEBHER
ARETMAERAR  REHEAERAF LK
BEFARABAREFLMEEBHERE
BEMBMmERNKEZESKME G
E2BRBRMRFUBER - ZEREALA
BNt AESANEFMNANEEHEREZER
TEIRE - RAFEEEBET

OB EDEN TR AEETYEERIER
RERREH S - AEEARTBEEEEE-
MARERESR AR ZE—NFAE2EHE
MBRARZNERT ZAMER  ARIBEE
= EE (KE) BR A [ 479,840,000% 7T
k&8 (L8)REBEEAR2AR500000%5T
(BER-Z—HmME-_AXH) -

B EXREEIN ARRREERHERRL
PRINRBEA 2 R

WA

WAEE KRR ER 2 MERSBA - HERHE
HEYWE HERFEEZRENSE BE-

ZERUENREERZILHRBEEZAR
TR AT

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Continuing operations BEREXEY

Property rental income WEME A 1,791,257 1,673,201
Sales of properties held for sale HERELEME 4,651,665 720,570
Losses on sales of investments held-for-trading HE&ERFIEEE 2 E KB (44,399) (9,205)
Interest income from loan financing EFRENBMA 35,648 31,547
Brokerage and cosmetic income A0 BRTS R Ab Ak Sh 8 B WA 18,555 17431
6,452,726 2,433,544
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed available-for-sale equity investments; (v) listed
investments held-for-trading and treasury products; and (vi) unlisted
investments, investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operation of the Group that

the management of the Group uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development Property development and sales of

and trading trading properties

Property leasing

— Retail - Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail - Property leasing from non-retail

properties
Listed available-for-sale - Listed equity securities in
equity investments available-for-sale investments
Listed investments - Listed securities investments in
held-for-trading and investments held-for-trading,
treasury products over-the-counter trading and
structured products
Unlisted investments, - Unlisted securities investments,
investment holding trading and brokerage

and brokerage

The reportable segment of “floating rate and fixed rate notes”
on available-for-sale investments was discontinued since the
year ended 31st December, 2012 as a result of the disposals of
two listed subsidiaries of the Group. Details of the discontinued

operation are set out in Note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
fair value changes on investments properties and other properties
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax. No
intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment revenue

is mainly the rental income for administrative purpose.

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2012.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and result are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property location.

There was no major customer who individually accounted for over

10% of the Group's revenue.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mis

g -
OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EESEwWm
Operating segment information is presented below: EENEEMEZNNWT
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEZERBEHRR
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 BE_FE—=F+_H=+—HIFE
Listed
investments Unlisted
, Listed held-for-  investments,
Property Property leasing available-for-  tradingand  investment All
development R sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEE: FLWRE:
NEBRR #EzLm  LARER  REZERR k]
EH ZE *EE RERE HEER BLRH EHE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn TER TEn
Continuing operations BESERE
Major cash items excluding WA 2
in revenue TERSER
- Hong Kong -&k - - - - 2,434,160 - - 2,434,160
- Other countries -HpE% - - - - 13,646,871 - - 13,646,871
- - - - 16,081,031 - - 16,081,031
Revenue 'ON
Revenue from external customers RENBERZMA
- Hong Kong -Bk 2,917,456 1,117,798 319,141 - (45,623) 5,975 48228 4,422,981
- Mainland China —HEARE 1,734,209 54,611 47,681 - - - - 1,836,507
- United Kingdom ~2H - 5273 186,741 - - - - 192,014
- Other countries —HbEX - - - - 1,224 - - 1,224
4,651,665 1,177,682 613,575 - (44,399) 5,975 48228 6,452,126
Revenue from external customers RE B FEIE R
after non-controlling interests EnEz e
BRI 3922523 1,176,964 613,302 - (44,399) 5,975 828 512,59
Attributable property sales from NG|
associates ES S
- Hong Kong -E# 368,904 - - - - - - 368,904
Attributable rental revenue from NG|
associates [:EX/ON
- Hong Kong —&) - 15,802 219071 - - - - 3,173
~ Mainland China —hERE - 84,216 84,539 - - - - 168,755
4,291,421 1,276,982 125,812 - (44,399) 5,975 48228 6,304,025
Result
Segment result PREE
- Hong Kong Bk 939,006 1,073,576 361812 - (57,774) 2,455 56,848 2,421,923
- Mainland China —~REAKE 100,761 47,706 41,443 - - 68,470 - 258,380
- United Kingdom —~KH - 5,268 186,564 - - - - 191,832
- Other countries -HpER - - - - 970,357 34 - 970,391
1,039,767 1,126,550 595,819 - 912,583 110,959 56,848 3,842,526
—E-ZEF%  gFAExEE &80 153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

REMBRRME

8 PR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Share of results of associates
- Attributable property sales, net
~ Hong Kong
- Attributable gross income
- Hong Kong
~ Mainland China
- Attributable operating cost
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Non-controlling interests

Other income
Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau
Loss on disposals of
investment properties
Finance costs
Other gains and losses, net
Share of results of associates
- Income tax and others
Non-controlling interests

Unallocated items
Unallocated corporate expenses, net
Unallocated finance costs
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Income tax expense
Unallocated non-controlling interests

Operating profit from continuing
operations attributable to
owners of the Company
for the year

Operating profit from discontinued
operation attributable to
owners of the Company
for the year

Operating profit from
continuing and discontinued
operations

Realised fair value changes on
disposal of investment properties
— Recognised in current year

Major non-cash items
- Unrealised fair value changes on
investment properties (including
share of results of associates and
non-controlling interests)

- Deferred tax expense

Profit from continuing and
discontinued operations
attributable to owners of
the Company for the year
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CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Listed
investments Unlisted
3 Listed held-for-  investments,
Property Property leasing available-for-  tradingand  investment All
development S sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEE: FLHRE:
NERER BEzLm  LWRER  REERR k]
E® g FEE RAaRg HEER BaRH At AR S8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TET TR TERL TET TR TR
116,248 - - - - - - 116,248
- 15,802 21971 - - - 1,638 45,411
- 84,216 84,539 - - - - 168,755
- (1,032) (2.97) - - - - (4,003)
- (a7,304) (14,993) - - - - (62,297)
(234,749) (636) (245) - - - - (235,630
921,266 1,177,596 690,120 - 912,583 110,959 58,486 3,871,010
3,313 1,708 - - - - - 5,021
(22,035) - - - - - - (22,035)
- (130,370) - - - - - (130,370)
- (2,982) (105,600) - (56,607) - - (165,189)
- - 4,215 - - - - 4215
(12,312) (28,008) 57764 - - - (888) 16,556
(496) (1.113) - - - - - (1,609)
889,736 1,016,831 646,559 - 855,976 110,959 57,598 3,571,659
(253,037)
(288,400)
198,536
(379,992)
53,603
2,908,369
310
2,908,679
491,433
2,981,552
(63,921)

6,317,731



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mis

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

8.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Core profit (excluding major non-cash items)
Operating profit from continuing and
discontinued operations
Major accumulated realised fair value changes
on disposal of investments properties
in current year
— Recognised in current year

— Recognised in prior years

Core profit from continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to owners of

the Company for the year

SEDE @

mEZEWSEERR (B
BHE-—FE—=FF - A=F—HIFE

HK$'000
FBT
BOERN (FERXEFRSEEH)
REFELCEEBRERIEREERK
P 2,908,679
REAEFEHEREMEZ
FTERBERRAFEES
—RNARFEEER 491,433
—RNBEEERR 356,721
AEEXRQRTEEAEMERE
RHECEEERCRIEBEEL 2
R 3,756,833
CE-ZEFER EABEEE =50

y
\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2013

Assets
Segment assets
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China and Macau
- United Kingdom
- Other countries
Interests in associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China
Advances to associates
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Reportable segment assets

Assets classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China and Macau
~ United Kingdom
- Other countries

Reportable segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilties

Additions to non-current assets
(other than financial instruments

and deferred tax assets)

—AER
BENRER

-&R

—RE AR
BABENANA

-ER

—-REAR
PEE VS

JIBREREZ AR
ANBLAAEE

GRKERR

a8

PEAR
R
—PERERRA
-5E
—ERER

GaRfEeR

REZETDEE
(¢RWIAR
BTREEERD)

REMBRRME

Yz N /-\ * .
8. EESHE
FEFBMRRER
R-ZFE—=F+=-A=+—H
Listed
investments Unlisted
i Listed held-for-  investments,
Property Property leasing available-for-  tradingand  investment All
development LEE sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail  investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEE: FLTRE
NERER fEzEn  LaRER  REERR k]
E® ZE *EE RERE HEER SRR At AR S8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
3,841,761 26,221,008 10,343,349 - 894,816 152,624 41,323 42,106,887
10,256,012 1,288,181 1,105,379 - - 1115 3,199 12,660,486
- 125,329 4,316,229 - - - - 4,441,558
- - - - 12,415,690 - - 12,415,690
33,235 489,895 1,085,054 - - 1,309 29,695 1,639,188
161,920 115,225 454,198 - - - - 731,343
17096 204 1371 - - 2 1471 8,916
987,345 60,190 645,568 - - - - 1,693,103
15,293,375 28,300,032 17,949,914 - 13,310,506 761,050 82,294 15,697,171
64,133
48,322
15,810,226
1,166,264 828,949 169,516 - 2 16,389 84,007 2,265,121
950,374 23,744 19,628 - - - - 993,746
- 93,323 3,222,249 - - - - 3,315,512
- - - - 6,453,230 - - 6,453,230
2,116,638 946,016 3,411,393 - 6,453,232 16,389 84,007 13,027,675
15,592,786
28,620,461
1,837,954 128,222 256,903 - - - 3,314

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

For the year ended 31st December, 2013

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expenses)
Depreciation
Fair value changes on investment properties
Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau
Share of results of associates
Income tax expense
Non-controlling interests

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

MEHA
HHER

WA () F8
nE

RANE2AFER

HBFINFIER 2
BrEBERARE
FrEHFX
FRRES

8. EESE

HibEKRIEHHE

BE-F-=#+-A=+—ALFE

Continuing and

Discontinued discontinued

Continuing operations operation operations

BEKSEERR

BESERY BRIESERE CRIELSERH

Adjustments Consolidated

Reportable Adjustments for major statement of

segment for non-cash comprehensive

total unallocated items Total Total income total

TEH K08 TEFRE GA2E

P RAR 2R BEZHRE AR 2R KERRER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TEL TERL TER TER TET

921,286 8,187 - 929,473 510 929,983

(165,189) (288,400) - (453,589) - (453,589)

756,097 (280,213) - 475,884 510 476,394

- (18,525) - (18,525) - (18,525)

- 491,433 2,911,426 3,402,859 - 3,402,859

(22,035) - - (22,035) - (22,035)

280,670 - 10,184 350,854 - 350,854

- (379,992) (63,927) (443,919) (38) (443,957)

(237.239) 53,603 (58) (183,694) (191) (183,885)
“E-ZHEFHR  EAEXLEE




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

mEMBRRME

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31st December, 2012

&iE

i)

¥ (

&)

REZEBEERE
BE-F—F+A=+—HIFE

Listed
investments Unlisted
) Listed held-for- investments,
Property PTORE;W ‘643*5‘”8 available-for- trading and investment Al
development *EE sale equity treasury holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
fBEEEY  FLTRE:
NEERR BEoLm  LARER  REERR il
BF TE ¥TE RARE HEER B R EthAg Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR T TR FiExT T TR T
Continuing operations BREERH
Major cash items excluding BARSZ
in revenue TERLER
- Hong Kong &2 - - - - 1,507,649 - - 1,507,649
~ Mainland China N - - - - - 3,878,450 - 3,878,450
- Other countries -H@ER - - - - 6,712,892 - - 6,712,892
- - - - 8,220,541 3,878,450 - 12,098,991
Revenue KA
Revenue from external customers RENPEPZHA
- Hong Kong -Bk 34219 1,031,839 352,106 - 6,408 5,752 43226 1,473,550
- Mainland China B R 686,351 46,443 48,125 - - - - 780919
- United Kingdom -% - 5346 189,342 - - - - 194,688
~ Other countries -EtER - - - - (15,613) - - (15,613)
720,570 1,083,628 589,573 - (9,205) 5752 43226 2,433,544
Revenue from external customers RENRIEAER
after non-controlling interests Estk 2N
REHA 717,659 1,082,103 587535 - (9,205) 5,752 43,226 2427070
Attributable property sales from FEfRTEE A
associates nEHE
- Hong Kong —-&& 231,906 - - - - - - 231,906
Attributable rental revenue from B ENR
associates
- Hong Kong - - 19,264 28630 - - - - 47894
~ Mainland China —HE KR - 87645 81,849 - - - - 169,494
949,565 1,189,012 698,014 - (9,205) 5,752 43226 2,876,364
Result ES
Segment result SHREE
= Hong Kong -E% 27361 978,608 339,345 - 10730 104,469 58,572 1,519,085
- Mainland China -mEXE 215766 40116 40914 - - (5852) - 290,944
- United Kingdom ~ 5 - 5,341 189,149 - - - - 194,490
~ Other countries -HpE% - - - - 2430577 - - 2430577
243127 1,024,065 569,408 - 2,441,307 98,617 58,572 4,435,096

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

8. BEEDE =

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWRERE (B
For the year ended 3 1st December, 2012 BE-—F——F1+-A=+—HIFE
Listed
investments Unlisted
propery s Listed heldfor-  investments, |
Prope; foperty ‘easing available-for- trading and investment Al
deve\opr?we?{ ?%%fﬂ% sale equity treasury  holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEEE,  FLTRA
NEERR HEzEW  LTRAR  REBRR fig
ER ZE HTE A& HEER SRR A% ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TEL ThL TERL TR TEn TERL TEL
Share of results of associates BUEBENTEA
- Attributable property sales, net -EENEHERR
- Hong Kong &% 115992 - - - - - - 115992
- Attributable gross income —-EiERAER
~ Hong Kong B - 19,264 28630 - - - 3773 51,667
— Mainland China - REAKE - 87645 81,849 - - - - 169,494
- Attributable operating cost -ElREENA
- Hong Kong &k - (2,602) (5451) - - - - (8,053)
~ Mainland China —mE AR - (45,295) (13,693) - - - - (58,988)
Non-controlling interests FERER (1920) (1314) (1,899) - - - - (5,133)
357199 1,081,763 658,844 - 2,441,307 98,617 62,345 4,700,075
Other income Higl A 403 - - - - - - 403
Gain on disposal of LEREME 2 Ya
investment properties - 22,135 - - - - - 22,135
Finance costs BsBR - (3,100) (109,797) - (24272) - - (137169)
Other gains and losses, net E‘M(ﬁn&% )t (606) - - - - - - (606)
Share of results of associates BUEBENAEA
~ Income tax and others —fi5 %R&ﬁm 339 (27292) (40,947) - - - (102) (68,002)
Non-controlling interests RS - (5534) - - - - - (5,534)
357335 1,067,972 508,100 - 2,417,035 98,617 62,243 4,511,302
Unallocated items RHBEE
Unallocated corporate expenses, net RPBZARFAYFR (228472)
Unallocated finance costs KB EBER (207636)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR Wi 106,955
Unallocated other gains and losses, KOBEMYER
net BRFE (10)
Income tax expense FERRR (198,443)
Unallocated non-controlling interests 5 % 2 1R (7853)
Operating profit from continuing ~ ZFERLATEEA
operations attributable to EARESE
owners of the Company BExB LR
for the year 3975843
Operating profit from discontinued *FE XA FHEEA
operation attributable to EEREERAL
owners of the Company BeExB o LEHEAN
for the year 3286
Core profit from continuingand ~ RERELEERR
discontinued operations BRLEERKY
(excluding major non-cash items) % DR (FEE
TEFRSEA) 3,979,129
Major non-cash items IEEREER
~ Fair value changes on investment *TE;Q?%%Z’&”?E
properties (including share of (2R
results of associates and WM RAEER
non-controlling interests) R ER) 6,482,190
- Gain on revaluation of stock of “MEGEEEE
properties upon transfer to REMEZ
Investment properties Effls 129,002
- Costs of development recognised -REFYEEA Y
in respect of property project BRAERRA
in Macau (694,737)
- Deferred tax expense ~BERER (100,647)
Profit from continuing and REERLTREA
discontinued operations EAREERSE
attributable to owners of EBREALEE
the Company for the year £ 2ER 9,794,937
TE-ZFFR EFEAEXEEE &cssE

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

gele Y\ ) t
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) CEIE @
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBERREBEER
At 31st December, 2012 RoF——#Ff=—FH=+—H
Listed
investments Unlisted
) Listed held-for- investments,
Property Property ‘ef:‘”g avallable-for- trading and investment Al
development HELNS sale equity treasury holding and other
and trading Retail Non-retail investments products brokerage segments  Consolidated
BEREZ  ELTRA
NEERR _ #&zLm  LAREAR  RESBRR g
BF B ¥TE RARE HEER BLRH EthAsE Ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn Fin T Fitn T Tin Fitn T
Assets gE
Segment assets AREE
- Hong Kong -E% 3465036 26,790,661 10437781 - 154275 2,711,447 35481 43,594,681
- Mainland China and Macau —-HBAEREM 10,162,923 1,544,696 305,415 - - - 3,868 12,016,902
— United Kingdom -% - 107,547 3,867352 - - - - 3.974,899
- Other countries —HpE % - - - - 11,082370 - - 11,082,370
Interests in associates HeENRER
- Hong Kong -5& 359,374 210,865 839,772 - - 1,579 18,071 1,429,661
- Mainland China —HE KR 118,660 1062215 363,332 - - - - 588207
Advances to associates BRBEARNE
- Hong Kong -k 7225 86 60 - - 2 1448 8821
~ Mainland China —hEKE 971,089 60,805 601,953 - - - - 1,633,847
Reportable segment assets AERIBEE 15,084,307 28,820,875 16,415,665 - 11,236,645 2,713,028 58,868 74,329,388
Assets dlassified as held for sale S ARELEZEE 147569
Unallocated corporate assets ) PNV 52,302
Consolidated total assets GREERE 74,529,259
Liabilities
Segment liabiliies AR
- Hong Kong &% 2,057523 723,623 37009 - 35419 80018 2,933,595
— Mainland China and Macau —HE AR LR 1,026,552 21,402 21,073 - - - - 1,069,027
- United Kingdom -5 - 89,791 3244312 - - - - 3334103
- Other countries ~HER - - - - 6,796,841 - - 6,796,841
Reportable segment liabilities AERHBEE 3,084,075 834,816 3,302,394 - 6,796,844 35419 80,018 14,133,566
Liabilties directly associated with assets ~ E£31| A {FH & 2
classified as held for sale EEEREEZEE 1973
Unallocated corporate liabilities F) PANCI-L 14,415,395
Consolidated total liabilties GREREE 28,550,934
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEZFFHEE
(other than financial instruments  (£MIAR
and deferred tax assets) EEREEERM) 1017557 113,756 238,595 - - - 5726

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013



8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

For the year ended 31st December, 2012

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expenses)
Depreciation
Fair value changes on investment properties
Gain on revaluation of stock of properties
upon transfer to investment properties
Costs of development recognised
in respect of property project in Macau
Share of reslts of associates
Income tax expense
Non-controlling interests

MERA
HHER

WA () F8
nE
REMFEZATER
NEFEEEE
RENEzEGRE
BRFIMEIER 2
EARRKAE
BEBENTEE
FEREX
SFERER

8. BEEDE =

HttEKXRIER
BE-—F——F1+-A=+—HIFE

Continuing and

Discontinued discontinued

Continuing operations operation operations

BELEEBR

HEREED BHIMEEXTE ERIELEERH

Adjustments Consolidated

Reportable Adjustments for major statement of
segment for non-cash comprehensive
total unallocated items Total Total income total
ER KB TEFRS FazE
PRER k- HAZRE ek ] BHEBREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER FET FEL TAL FEL
972,246 14,987 - 987233 6,523 993,756
(137169) (207636) - (344,805) - (344,805)
835,077 (192,649) - 642,428 6,523 648,951
- (16,507) - (16,507) - (16,507)

- - 6,108,972 6,108,972 - 6,108,972

- - 129,002 129,002 - 129,002
- - (694,737) (694,737) - (694,737)
202,110 - 377896 580,006 - 580,006
- (198,443) (100,647) (299,090) (392) (299,482)
(10667) (7853) (4678) (23,198) (2,381) (25,579)

—E-CZHEFH  FEAEXEE
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OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Continuing operations
Building management fee income

Building management fee expenses

Forfeiture of deposits received on sales of
stock of properties
Management and maintenance service income
Property management services,
leasing administration services and
general administration services income
Exchange gain, net

Interest income from loan note (Note 37(b))

Discontinued operation

Exchange gain, net

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

=

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi 78 3R 3% Mt &%

9. Ht A
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
HiABIE:
BEREEK
BFEEBIWA 212,491 197,604
EFEEBRAY (195,597) (173,630)
16,894 23,974
B HEMEFERS
252 403
EBEMRERBBKA 15,049 5,487
Y EE R RS
FETHRE X
—RATBURIS YA 4,763 -
PE 5 U a5 0 F 8 2,820 8,835
REEREBEZFBRA
(M5E37(b)) 8,187 14,987
DRI ERE
P& 5 U 25 F 58 37 -
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET

Continuing operations

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss classified as held-for-trading:
Unrealised loss arising on change in fair value

of investments held-for-trading

Financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss:
Unrealised (loss) gain arising on change in
fair value of bonds
Realised gain arising on change in
fair value of bonds
Change in fair value

Exchange component of change

Net gain arising on change in fair value
of financial assets designated as at fair value

through profit or loss
Realised loss arising on disposal of
available-for-sale investments:
Unlisted equity securities
Underwriting commission income
Other investment income, net
Dividend income on:
Listed investments

Unlisted investments

Interest income

Discontinued operation

Interest income

10. REWA R

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT

BERSEEK
BREBTZURBAFERSE

AREEEZemEE:

FIEEEZREZRNTE

EHMEL 2 AEBEEIS (30,299) (645)

BEABBIERURMRATEZ

ERMEE:

AEHF 2 A FEZSMEEY

KEWR (BE) W (55,199) 1,307,979
{%Z N ESEEmMELEZ

""""" BIE U

WE #E) 159,346 280,651
ERESEH) (7.606) (4,995)
187 AR iB B AR

AFEZEeREERRAFE

EEELE 2 R FEE 96,541 1,583,635

HEFEREMEEY

B EE:

IEFMIRAE S - (10,500)
A e A 46,518 -
A1 E WA FRE 14,138 186
BEWAKE :

EHRE 18,148 4,400

ELEMEE 34,771 29,040
FEWA 885,144 940,042

1,064,961 2,546,158
CRIEEEEK
B WA 510 6,523
1,065,471 2,552,681

“E-CZHEFHR  EAEEE

J ]

é;ln e
) \np
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 3 3R R K 5%

10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET (contd) 10.

Included in interest income from continuing operations are
interests from bonds of approximately HK$811,936,000 (2012:
HK$862,936,000). Included in interest income from discontinued
operation is interest from unlisted fixed rate notes of approximately
HK$510,000 (2012: unlisted floating rate and fixed rate notes of
approximately HK$6,431,000).

11. OTHER EXPENSES
Included in other expenses are: HinAZ BE:
Continuing operations BEREXK
Expenses for specific transactions REXFHAX
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12.

(a) Disposal of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited
(now known as LT Holdings Limited) (“Chi Cheung”) on
6th February, 2013 (“Chi Cheung Disposal”)

On 5th December, 2012, (i) Billion Up Limited (“Billion
Up"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(i) the Company, being the guarantor of Billion Up; and
(iiiy an independent third party of and not connected with
the Company and its connected persons (“Purchaser of
Chi Cheung") entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which Billion Up agreed to sell and the Purchaser
of Chi Cheung agreed to purchase the shares of Chi Cheung
held by the Group, representing approximately 61.96%
of the entire issued share capital of Chi Cheung, at a total
consideration of approximately HK$559,199,000 (after
adjustment). The Chi Cheung Disposal was completed on
6th February, 2013. Upon completion, Chi Cheung and its
subsidiaries (“Chi Cheung Group") ceased to be subsidiaries

of the Group.
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REWAFHE @

RREFELEEF Z2FABRAZHBIEE
%K) B #) /811,936,000 7T ( — T — — 4
862,936,000/8 70 ) o 2R B B AR IE 4R & %75 2 F

BRABIELETEBREEZF B A510,000

BT(ZE——F :FLMEERTEERY
6,431,000/ 7)) ©

HAipA

2013 2012

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

2,524 4

- 1,430

E/n\\ lgg(é#&%i%

(a) R-B-—=HE-_A HHESHE¥E
ERAT (RBAYRERERAA)
(TE2¥]) ([E¥HE]D

RZE—ZF+ZARB ()A2FZ
—F M2 & BB 2 FBillion Up
Limited ([Billion Up 1) i (iZA~ 22 &) - A
Billion UpZ &R A : R (i) EARE R E
BEATWRBECBIE=F ([
,am)ﬂﬁi%i?‘éﬁ%a%'%Fﬁt’Bllllon Up
BEHEMEFEFTTMAEBELRSE
l%ﬁzi%ﬂﬁh (HEREHZZH
BB TR AR 4961.96% ) - RERAFELN A
559199000;‘%%(“%%&) ozﬁﬁ
EERZZE—=F-_ANHEK - R=E
ﬁ)‘cé’@i&EW%Aa A (2Rl
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd)

(@

(b)

Disposal of Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited
(now known as LT Holdings Limited) (“Chi Cheung”) on
6th February, 2013 (“Chi Cheung Disposal”) (Cont'd)

On 5th December, 2012, the Group and Chi Cheung also
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in relation
to the acquisition of the entire issued share capital, the
shareholder's loan and certain debt of View Success
Investments Limited (“View Success”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Chi Cheung, from Chi Cheung (“View
Success Acquisition”) at a total consideration of approximately
HK$41,500,000. The View Success Acquisition was
completed on 23rd January, 2013. As such, the assets and
liabilities of View Success did not form part of net assets

disposed of on the completion of the Chi Cheung Disposal.

Details of the Chi Cheung Disposal and the View Success
Acquisition were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 5th December, 2012.

Disposal of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (now known as
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group
Limited) (“G-Prop”) on 6th August, 2012 (“G-Prop
Disposal”)

On 16th June, 2012, Mass Rise Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as the first vendor (“First
Vendor”) and Asian Kingdom Limited, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by a Director and a controlling shareholder
of the Company, as the second vendor (“Second Vendor”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of the
disposal of a total of 1,512,059,473 shares of G-Prop with
(i) Champion Dynasty Limited, an independent third party,
as the purchaser (“Purchaser of G-Prop”); (i) the Company
and Crown Jade Limited as warrantors; and (iii) Mr. Cheung
Wai Kuen as guarantor of the Purchaser of G-Prop, pursuant
to which 1,018,380,590 shares of G-Prop were sold by
the First Vendor to Purchaser of G-Prop and 493,678,883
shares of G-Prop were sold by the Second Vendor to the
Purchaser of G-Prop at a total consideration of approximately
HK$423,661,000. The G-Prop Disposal was completed
on 6th August, 2012. Upon completion, G-Prop and its
subsidiaries (“G-Prop Group”) ceased to be subsidiaries of

the Group.

Details of the G-Prop Disposal were disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 17th June, 2012.

12. ERIEBEER =

(a)

(b)

R-ZZE-—Z5-AABHEEHEX
FRARA (RBRAYFERARAR)
(Trz2xl) (T2gHEl) (8

RZE——F+_FARB AfEEEZSE
HHEIEEHE FENEFURESR
X /H41,5000008 THEERFIRAR
RAR([&F])) (EFz—HHEE2
BHEBMBEAR) 22 HEBITRA KR
REFARETFTEERE([2=WE]) - =
TWEERN —_TE—=F—HA-_+=H=
KBl REFHETKK RFT2&
ERBBETTEXNEFLECEETE

— 5

EHHERETHREFBIREARAA
AT —F+-_ARABAZAHR-

R-ZZE-——ENA~BHELELES
RAT (RBAREERREEEXEE
BRAR) ([£E)) (EEXE])

RZE—ZFX A+ B RAFZ—
MEE2EEEHNBARNERBRA
R(ARE—FH) (E—BH])RK—
M- REFHREIRBRRMEEZER
£ 2 AdlAsian Kingdom Limited (/28
ZEH) ([BZBHFDEOBILE=
75 Champion Dynasty Limited ( A& J7)
(T£EEAH]) : ()AAF KCrown Jade
Limited (B AREAN)  R>GIDEEEH
ZERAREREETIEEHE
HE A $£1,512,059,473 & E D - 1%
b+ 1,018,380,5008 ¢ ER D AE—F
FHETFEEER  M493,678,8830 %
ERMBE_BFLETEESER K
{B4A%EH) 5423,661,0008 7 - £ EHE
BERZZE—-FNARNAEK -RZEK
B cEREMBAR ([€EE£E])E
THARNERZMBRF -

SEHEHEHRARARRAZS

—ZFERATLERZATA-.
“E-CHEFHR  FEAEXEE =25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bi 78 3R 3% Mt &%

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd) 12. ERIEREEK @
As a result of the Chi Cheung Disposal and the G-Prop Disposal, EE ?:%itﬂﬁ&ééﬁtb"i RN ERRE]
the reportable segment of “floating rate and fixed rate notes” has EmHOBEBRBBE_T——F T -_A=+—
been discontinued since the year ended 31st December, 2012 and, H ¢¢r wiE: RIBEEBGTMAGEMZ
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and ERVBMELEAESR [FHELEZIFRD
Discontinued Operations” issued by the HKICPA, their consolidated BERBRIEKEEEL] BUEGEEERED
results were therefore classified as discontinued operation since DERERIEEE-
then.
The consolidated results of the discontinued operation for the years HE-_T—=FR=-FT—-F+ZA=1+—
ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012 are set out as below: AIEFE BRIEEEEB 2 RaEER T
T
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

Other income H A 37 -
Investment income, net AW AN FEE 510 6,523
Administrative expenses THFAX (8) (464)
Profit before tax B 35 il i A 539 6,059
Income tax expense FT{8 75 2 (38) (392)
Profit for the year from REFERBERIELE

discontinued operation E g 501 5,667
Other comprehensive (expense) income RNEFHEMEE () e

for the year:
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to BE1% A[REEFT 75

profit or loss B A
Fair value changes on available-for-sale HFEREZATEEZS
investments (136) 3,751

Total comprehensive income for the year from  AFEEREERILELERK 2

discontinued operation (net of tax) 2HEW A (BREiE) 365 9,418
Profit for the year from discontinued EBhEAFERBERLERE
operation attributable to: EHZER
Owners of the Company ﬁ”ﬂ%ﬁ}\ 310 3,286
Non-controlling interests SEEE RS 191 2,381
501 5,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (contd)

REMBRRME

12. ERIEBEER =

Total comprehensive income EhEEAFERBERLEE
for the year from discontinued KB 2ERSEERE:
operation attributable to:

Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ Z SN

Non-controlling interests

The consolidated cash flows from
discontinued operation are set out as below:

Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash generated from investing activities

Net cash inflows

FEEME R

RERAFER

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(a)

Disposals of certain shops or units of an investment
property in Hong Kong (“Properties”) (2013)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“Vendor”) has
entered into a series of preliminary sale and purchase
agreements (“Preliminary Agreements”) with independent
third parties and three companies wholly-owned by a close
family member of a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company (“Connected Parties”) (collectively “Purchasers
of the Properties”). Pursuant to the Preliminary Agreements,
the Vendor would sell the Properties to the Purchasers of
the Properties upon the terms and conditions contained
therein. Sales of the Properties have been completed
during the year except for five units (“Sale Units") with an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$64,593,000
(after discount), including sales of a total consideration of
approximately HK$39,096,000 (after discount) entered
into with the Connected Parties, which are expected to be
completed in 2014.

KEERIEREERKZ
HeRREMAWT

ARBEEBZRLFH
KABREXRBZREFE

13. 5 BEFE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
226 5,314

139 4,104

365 9,418
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
(581) (711)
1,051 17,391
470 16,680

ZEE/HIE

&
BFEHECEEEEABEZE

&

(a)

—F-=F45R

HENREB -—BRENEZETIES
HEM (WX (ZB—=%F)

REE_T—=F+-_A=+—HILF
ER ARflz—HEE2EEEAHE
RE([ER]EBIE=AR=MH
—MARREERIERFTHAERT I 2
REREZEHRA 2 AR ([BEAT])
(FBIWEEF]) FTu—EFHREE
EtnE ([BREREH]) - RIBERRGS
B 77 M ARR ER B 90 R 21 AR 2 IR R A
HEZEWETMEET RAMEBEM
([HEBA ) RELETEL H64,593,000
B (HE) (RIEREEEA LT
37 R fE 4858 49 539,096,000 7T (#740
%) )R S —UFETRIN 2F
MEZBEEENAFERNTK -

4t

EAEZ

i
]
o
%'II
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Disposals of certain shops or units of an investment

property in Hong Kong (“Properties”) (2013) (Cont'd)

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the Sale Units have been
presented as assets classified as held for sale and were
remeasured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2013 and a net fair
value gain of approximately HK$140,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31st December, 2013.

The fair value was based on the valuation performed by
an independent valuer. Details of the valuer, valuation

techniques and key inputs were set out in Note 22.

Chi Cheung Disposal and disposal of certain shops of
another investment property in Hong Kong (“Disposal
Units”) (2012)

As a result of the sale and purchase agreements for the Chi
Cheung Disposal (as disclosed in Note 12(a)) and sales of
the Disposal Units entered into during the year ended 31st
December, 2012 which were also been completed during the
year, the consolidated assets and liabilities of Chi Cheung and
the Disposal Units were presented as assets classified as held
for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale correspondingly in the consolidated statement

of financial position as at 31st December, 2012.

mEMBRRME

13. I RREHEZEE "B A
ﬁfﬁtﬂ%iﬁéﬁ?&*ﬁ%ﬁZﬁ
& (®)

(@)

(b)
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13. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

(Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the major classes of assets and

liabilities classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly

associated with assets classified as held for sale correspondingly are

as follows:

Investment properties
Available-for-sale investments
Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Time deposits and bank balances

Assets classified as held for sale

Creditors and accruals

Tax liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with assets

classified as held for sale

REME
FERE

fEM IR IR - e R IR R

TEHF R R ERTT A B

JIRFHEHEZEE

&R IR X FE 5t R IR
MIREE

HIRFIEHEZ
EEERMABZAE
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13. I RREHEZEE "B A

BFEHECEEEEZEEREZE
&)

RBERR HEBDEEIIRFHELEZE
ERBINBFIFHEZEEAR AR AR
ZEERBE ETEERIWT:

2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000

FTEx TAET

64,733 14,290

- 98,057

8 - 1,735
- 33,487

64,733 147,569

- 279

- 1,694

- 1,973

—E-CZHEFH  FEAEXEE
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived

at after (charging) crediting:

Continuing operations
Total staff costs:
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments
Retirement benefits scheme contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$674,000 (2012: HK$726,000)

Auditors' remuneration

— Current year

— Overprovision in prior years
Depreciation
Cost of trading properties recognised
Cost of cosmetic products recognised
Share of tax of associates

(included in share of results of associates)

Gross proceeds on sale of investments
held-for-trading

Carrying amount on investments
held-for-trading disposed

Transaction costs on investments

held-for-trading disposed

Net loss on sale of investments

held-for-trading included in revenue

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income during the year
Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that did not generate rental

income during the year

Discontinued operation
Auditors’ remuneration

Exchange loss, net
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2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(223,400) (198,380)
(9,195) (8,798)
(232,595) (207,178)
(3,196) (2,921)
- 140
(18,525) (16,507)
(3.310,619) (356,504)
(3.988) (3,444)
(34,138) (81,126)
2,457,115 1,489,441
(2,498,519) (1,496,438)
(2,995) (2,208)
(44,399) (9,205)
1,791,257 1,673,201
(62,576) (77,329)
(6.312) (2,399)
1,722,369 1,593,473
(7) (118)
- (334)




15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest on:
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years
Other loans wholly repayable within five years
Loan from a former subsidiary wholly
repayable within five years
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

Total interest

Exchange loss (gain) on translation of
foreign currency loans, net
Other finance costs

Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties
under development
Interest capitalised to investment
properties under development

15. B & A

FREEXK

S

\

B O

AN NN
|

i}

N

AP X B &R

R & FEER IR FRIA

i yem

8=

Z

RAFANERERZRITE
RAFAEZR
NAEFAEHEEZ —H

e

SN ERIE B R (W) % E

Hin 8 %8 H

B BRERTPVETE

B2 &

BrBERTEEME

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Included in other gains and losses, net are:

Continuing operations

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note)

Gain on deregistration of an associate

Gain on revaluation of stock of properties
upon transfer to investment properties

Write-down of stock of properties

B2 S

16. Hfbli s & B5 18 F 8

Hiam MRS EERE:

FEEYER
HEME QR 2 e (M)

a3 PN PR §

MEGFEEBRERENEL
Bt
MEFERE

Note: Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire 61.96% interest in Chi Cheung, a listed subsidiary
of the Company, during the year (2012: disposal of the Group's
entire 41.93% interest in G-Prop, a listed subsidiary of the

Company) (Note 44).

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
460,734 396,117
42,085 34,824
4,842 -
8,600 -
516,261 430,941
14,522 (9,528)
57,035 40,464
587,818 461,877
(1,282) (53,336)
(132,947) (63,736)
453,589 344,805
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
198,536 106,955
4,275 =
- 129,002
- (606)

B

RAFE HEMBARZWETIRA H

EXAEER—HLETMHBRAREEREY
2EH61.96% 2 m (ZTE—ZF : HERX
EEMR - LETHBRARECERE 22
41.93% 2z ) (KiFE44) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

REMBRRMEE

17. EEM =

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(2012: nine) Directors for the years ended 31st December, 2013

and 2012 were as follows:

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung R E

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai ekt

Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai AEEBLL

Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BREIfE % &

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EENARL

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun EEBHREE

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (note i) BRepEt (MizD)
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai (note i) MIBTEL A (BisE)
Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan (note ii) BREE LT (M)
Notes:

REE-ZT—=ZFF T —F+-A=+—
AtFEEENSENFARES (22—
FAR)SEzZHREREMENT:

2013 2012

Salaries Salaries

and other and other
Fee emoluments Total Fee  emoluments Total

FER Hek
ik Hitt# e kel ik Hioiie ksl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TR FHT TET
- 18,019 18,019 - 18,000 18,000
240 - 240 240 - 240
240 - 240 240 - 240
240 - 240 240 - 240
240 - 240 240 - 240
240 - 240 240 - 240
- 742 742 - 320 320
- 2,170 2,170 - 1,007 1,007
- 615 615 - 281 281
1,200 21,546 22,746 1,200 19,608 20,808

B 5

(i)  Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai were appointed as

executive Directors on 12th June, 2012.

(i) Ms. Lui, Lai-kwan was appointed as an executive Director on 13th

July, 2012.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended

31st December, 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

18. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 18. EEM <
(@) Five highest paid individuals () EEESFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in rEELTEESMEALTH mE(Z

the Group, two (2012: two) were Directors, including the ——F MB)RES(H %BA*T—:
individual who was appointed as Director on 12th June, EFRATZAEZAEREF ZMHEAA
2012, details of their emoluments were included in Note 17. T) B2 FBEERWEI7HEE -»
The emoluments of the remaining three individuals (2012: —E-ZFRIT-_FFEHEHKR=R
three individuals, aggregated with the emoluments of the BRAALTZzZHME(ZTE—ZF: =& @
individual who was appointed as a Director on 12th June, AMALTZMEe RAFHUNR_ZE—Z4F
2012 for the period from 1st January, 2012 to 11th June, NAT-HEZEREFZHEMALH
2012), in the years 2013 and 2012 were as follows: - _F-A—BEFT—_FXH

T—AHMzZME) T

2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Salaries and other benefits e M EMmEF 6,899 8,545
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K48 F 5t Bl 3% 341 479
7240 9,024
The emoluments of the three individuals (2012: three Z=—RENATZME (ZE—=F: =
individuals and the individual who was appointed as a %1.)”3'J/\i2@ﬂi&ﬁ’\‘:;?*:¢/_\ﬂ
Director on 12th June, 2012 whose emoluments as a non- +-—HEZTAEEZ@ANALTH-Z
Director for the period from 1st January, 2012 to 11th June, ——F—-A-HBEZZ—Z-FXA+—
2012), were within the following bands: HEEEERAFEFZHME)BREND
T
Number of employees
EEA™
2013 2012
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z — 1,000,000 7T - -
HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,0013% 7& — 1,500,000 7& - 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,% 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0013% 7& — 2,500,000 7& 2 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0013% 7& — 3,500,000% 7& - 1
During the years ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012, no RBE_Z—=FR_ZT—_F+_A4
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid Et+t—REFEA - AEEBELSRS
individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon IIAREE SR INARNE BBk 1B AR
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BHEEmMRAZOEEaTMALTHES
XA EA & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt % 3R R K 5%

18. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (contd) 18. EEM £ (»)
(b) Emoluments of senior management (b) EREEEZMS

Other than the two (2012: two) senior management whose
emoluments have been disclosed in the five highest paid
individuals (Note 18(a)), the emoluments of the remaining
senior management whose profiles are included in the
“Profiles of Senior Executives” section of this annual report,

were within the following bands:

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7C — 1,500,000 7T
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 ¢ — 2,000,000 7T

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B #& 3R KR Mis

19. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

Underprovision (overprovision)
in prior years:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

Deferred tax: (Note 43)
Current year charge

Underprovision in prior years

19. FREHMAX

Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Consolidated
BESEEE DRIEEEEK "E
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tz TER Fix T THT FHL
FiEedE:
EHBE:
BBNEH 310,874 103,460 38 404 310,912 103,864
BB R 48,129 50,721 - - 48,129 50,721
359,003 154,181 38 404 359,041 154,585
BAFERETR
(BERE)
EEFER 3,247 (2,279) - (12) 3,247 (2,291)
BB M E (9,454) 576 - - (9,454) 576
(6,207) (1,703) - (12) (6,207) (1,715)
EEBE : (H5E43)
AEELH 91,061 142,467 - - 91,061 142,467
BAEFEEETR 62 4,145 - - 62 4,145
91,123 146,612 - - 91,123 146,612
443,919 299,090 38 392 443,957 299,482

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits for the year. The PRC Enterprise

Income Tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) is used for estimation of

PRC Enterprise Income Tax. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

BEFNERIIBBARFE 2 G BREE T
LR ER165% (—FE——4F:165%):t & -4
ERET R B CEMSH DEPBRCEMEH
K250 (ZZF— = : 250 ) 51 & - HAb ") ARE
BEELECZHEDNREANEER 2RTHE

"
C

“E-ZEFR

4+
it

AEXEE

J ]

i

1A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax relating to continuing operations per the consolidated

mEMBRRME

statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Continuing operations
Profit before tax from

continuing operations

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)

Tax effect of share of results of
associates

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Tax effect on accelerated accounting
depreciation over tax depreciation
previously (not provided)
over provided

Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR HHEB 2 W &

(Overprovision) underprovision in
prior years

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in

other jurisdictions

Tax charge for the year from

continuing operations

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

—r

19. FREHMAX (@)

AEREZ R IEGA S AREREY
KA EEEES ZRB AR HENT

2013 2012
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER THEx
BECEER
REFBELEERL
350 Al i 6,945,040 10,113,939
BREBFEHTE16.5%
(ZT—ZF:165%)
HEZHIE 1,145,932 16.5 1,668,800 16,5
BEMENREEY
MBFE (57,891) (0.8) (95,701) (0.9)
HBBMm S EARBMAZ
MBZE (952,313) (13.7) (1,556,228) (15.4)
RBBmE TAIRASZ
MBRE 314,696 45 253,447 2.5
BECRER) BERB2 MR
BHNERBRBHEL
Rz e
(8,356) (0.1) 11,796 0.1
BRRAAERZ
HBERE (69,969) (1.0) (63,139) (0.6)
33,769 0.5 6,243 0.1
BEFE (BEEE)
BRETR (6,145) (0.1) 2,442 -
HEMAZEREE 2
MBRRERZ
TRAREzZ2 44,196 0.6 71,430 0.7
REFBBELEEK
AEERBEZH 443,919 6.4 299,090 3.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

20. DIVIDENDS 20. B E
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(a) Special interim dividend for 2012 paidon (@) W=-Z—=%F—-A=-+—-H
22nd February, 2013 of HK$1 BRffz —ZZ——%F
(2011: nil) per share FRlh k2 E8RIE T
(ZF——%F: 1) 1,907,619 -
(b) Final dividend for 2012 paid on b) W=ZE—=F"A+H
10th June, 2013 of HK20 cents Bz —FE——%
(2011: HK1 cent) per share R EA AR B & AR 2078 1L
(ZE——%F: 8RB 381,524 19,076
(¢) Interim dividend for 2013 paid on © W-ZE—=F)/\A+xAH
16th August, 2013 of HK20 cents Btz —2—=%
(2012: HK1 cent) per share * ER AR B E AR 20 1L
(ZZE——F: 8RB 381,524 19,076
(d) Special interim dividend for 2013 paid on  (d) W=Z—=F \A+/xAH
16th August, 2013 of HK$1.3 RNz —ZE—=4%
(2012: nil) per share Rl ERRR BB RR1.38 TT
(ZZT——F &) 2,479,905 -
Total dividends paid [ERENPEEF R 5,150,572 38,152
Final dividend of HK50 cents (2012: HK20 cents) per share has EEgRB RN ABARETGR0EBIW(ZF
been proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval —ZF:GR20EBM) - AERENEERR
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. BERE FHE-
CE-CEFH  FABEEE &£53 177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt % 3R R K 5%

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

21. SlRER

REFHEACEEBRROCRIEEEER

ARBHEBEANEE2BRERNREERNT

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BIBATEEAE
data:
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Eamings: B
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted ~— ETESRERREERF 2 & F
earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners RATHEE AEIEZ
of the Company: REZHF :
Continuing operations BB TS 6,317,427 9,791,651
Discontinued operation BAR |4 F 310 3,286
Continuing and discontinued operations FELEEBR
ERIEEEER 6,317,737 9,794,937
Number of shares
RO E
2013 2012
Number of shares: i in 85 8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares AEERERNREEET
for the purposes of basic and diluted T AR hniE T 1 81
earnings per share 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE (contd)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations is based on the profit for the year from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$6,317,427,000 (2012: HK$9,791,651,000)
and on the weighted average number of 1,907,619,079 (2012:
1,907,619,079) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share from the discontinued
operation is HKO0.02 cents (2012: HK0.17 cents) which is
calculated based on the profit for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$310,000 (2012: HK$3,286,000) and on the weighted average
number of 1,907,619,079 (2012: 1,907,619,079) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December,
2013 and 2012 were the same as the basic earnings per share as

there were no diluting events during both years.

21. BREF (@)

REFELEEY

REFBEREEB 2 EREAREERT T
REAFEREFELCEEB 2ARRES
AFE(R 255 7 #96,317,427,000/8 T (—Z T —=
% :9,791,651,000870) R A FEE #HITE B
B 2 hnE 9 201,907,619,079( —F — — 4 :
1,907,619,079) f& st & -

RESRIEREER

REBRIEEEEB s GRERARBERT
RO.O2BIM (ZF—ZF:0178M) - IR
BAFERACRIELEEB 2 ADEH
B AL 2% R 49310,0008 T (ZF —=
F:3,286,0008 ) RAFEEHITEBK
2 N#EF9201,907,619,079 (Z & — 4
1,907,619,079) fi &t & -

HE-_Z—ZFfKR-_FT——F+_A=+—
AEFE AR ESSEE W EAmFE
ZEREERFEGREAREFER -

“E-CHEFHR  FEAEXEE =25

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 1st January, 2012
Additions
Construction costs incurred
Transfer from properties and
other fixed assets (Note 23)
Transfer from stock of properties
Transfer to properties under
construction
Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale (Note 13)
Exchange adjustments
Increase in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
— realised
— unrealised
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44(b))
Disposals

At 31st December, 2012
Additions
Construction costs incurred
Overprovision of construction costs
incurred in prior years
Transfer from properties and
other fixed assets (Note 23)
Transfer to properties and other
fixed assets (Note 23)
Transfer to stock of properties
Transfer to assets classified as held
for sale (Note 13)
Exchange adjustments
Increase (decrease) in fair value
recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income
— realised
— unrealised
Disposals

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2013

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

mEMBRRME

22. BREYEE

Fair value Cost
AYE R
Properties Properties
Completed under under
properties  construction  construction Total
ERME BERYE EERYE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FiER FAEL FAEL
R-B——F—HA—H 31,735,937 298,000 2,450,592 34,484,529
NE 20,816 - - 20,816
EEZRENA - 75,347 775,343 850,690
mEREMETEEER
(M zE23) - 107,539 - 107,539
KyEFEER 321,494 - - 321,494
EREEERYE
(37600) 37,600 - -
ERZIARFIELECEE
(Hs13) (14,290) - - (14,290)
fE AR 161,029 - 34,789 195,818
RirE 2 AN REER
DA
= 9,330 - - 9,330
- KRR 5,950,128 149,514 - 6,099,642
HEMB AR (H3E44(b)) (33,700) - - (33,700)
HE (69,050) - - (69,050)
RZE—Z—%+-A=1+—H 38,044,094 668,000 3,260,724 41,972,818
NE 15,370 - - 15,370
EEZBEMAK - 110,801 1,146,848 1,257,649
BEFERENNBERE
(44,465) - - (44,465)
mEREMETEESR
(H&E23) 168,200 - - 168,200
EREMERAMETEE
(M5E23) (75,100) - - (75,100)
HEENERE - (235,000) - (235,000)
BREIABELEZEE
(H3E13) (64,593) - - (64,593)
BE AR 90,172 - 104,377 194,549
Rira 2 ARG REERZ
NEEEMCRD)
-B2E3 491,433 - - 491,433
—RER 2,921,087 (9,801) - 2,911,286
& (1,039,533) - - (1,039,533)
RAEE
R-E-=%+=-A=+-H 40,506,665 534,000 4,511,949 45,552,614
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes (including those
classified as held for sale) are measured using the fair value model

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2013 were carried out
by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”) and Vigers Appraisal
and Consulting Limited (“Vigers Appraisal”) (2012: B.l. Appraisals),
independent qualified professional valuers, in respect of the Group's
investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the
investment property in the United Kingdom, the valuations as at
31st December, 2013 and 2012 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at 31st
December, 2013 are signed by the respective director of B.l.
Appraisals, Vigers Appraisal and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed
in accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2012 Edition”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the “RICS
Valuation — Professional Standards (March 2012 8th Edition)”
published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

22. REWE (@)

RBEXANBAARRESHEREEZ
AEBMEYMEER (BRI ABFELEZY
F)DEBAFEREAGE XD BRARY
FIREME-

BYABEREXMEMRABEEKEFGEERA
B ([MRAEBEBR T ]) KB i & 2 57 (4 B
BRAR ([EEHFH]) (ZF—= &M
BREFHERAEEAR T —=F1+_A
=+ —BUREBRTEREZ REDEET
MEBE-ERURREZREYE  HEHE
ME—BYAREREXRGEMREIEER
RAN(CREFAMER_E—=ZFR_F—Z
FtoA=1t—RETRHRE - HEMIHTE
AHEER R AR 2 &5 -

RZZE—=F+-A=+—H REWEZHK
B S BRI B - Bs T  RORERT
HEEZER (BEBNEMBEEE NARE
XEMAEBMBEEE) B#F -RSHEHET
FENEMBEMBENZ [BANEMSEEY
EFMELEN T ——Fhi] REBEREFFFA
EMBEMMBAMZ [RICSHBE-FEFE (=
T-—F=HE/\MR) | #ETe

TE-C-HFHR  EAEXEE =5

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term yield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available

in the relevant markets.

For the Group's investment properties under construction, their fair
values are determined by direct comparison method by making
reference to comparable transactions as available in the relevant
market. It has also taken into account the construction costs that
will be expended to complete the developments to reflect the
development potential of the properties and the quality of the
completed developments. The key assumptions include present
value of completed properties, period of development, outstanding
construction costs, finance costs, other professional costs, risk
associated with completing the projects and generating income after

completion and investors' return as a percentage of value or cost.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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22. REWE (@)

BEREMEZATFEREREHRBIEET
B WRABREERRERLEE (RER
BRME) MEREE - REEXTIREBEEARL
HESWA - WAH SR ERREE Z (At R
— RN EBRRBKE  ARREBEMR -
BEREMEZATFERR (KR EE)RE
BHOBMRZESKRA BHBRZEHE K
REFMAHARARERGHOMSHSRAZ
BRE BREEAXREFORE - RETTE
HERR (BREQHRZ B HRE RER DR
) By 78 ph i (BB 1 L SR T o B B 0 S R X R
MBEERRERALMSERALEENE
2B BERLBARRZEMES BT NA
MRXREHER2RE@M S LA LB Z
EEE-

RASEZ BRI EYEMS  EAFED
SREBMS LS 2 ARERZZUNER
LWEUEEFE - ATETEF R RTKERIEAR
1S3 2 AR - AR R 2 B RE I
BRBRENEZEE HRBREEEXNY
K2BE BERY REEXA BBEM -
HtBEXEMR  ExiEE HEZER LRk
EREFTRRA BB EDRIGHEIKRAZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

For the Group's investment properties under construction at cost,
when their fair values were not reliably measurable, they were
measured at cost, less any impairment loss, until the earlier of the
date of construction is completed and the date at which fair value

become reliably measurable.

The following table analysed the investment properties which
are measured at fair value as at 31st December, 2013 into the
three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

Recurring fair value REMEAFEE:
measurements:
Completed properties (note) SRR (P EE)
Properties under construction BRPYE

Note: Included those classified as held for sale which were categorised
as Level 2 fair value measurement.

Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong categorised
as Level 2 fair value measurement are determined using direct
comparison method with reference to the recent selling prices
of comparable properties on a price per square foot basis which
are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations of the related

properties.

22. REWE (@)

RARERRAZ BZPREMEMNS X
DB A A S E B - RIR RSB (DR
BEEFE BEETKERZ ALAFERER
ASEMEEZH (UNBREERE) BIE-

TRAR-ZE—=F+-A=Z+—HUAF
BEAEZREDEZ =B E&H (EERES
B RE R FE1357) HAT e

At 31st December, 2013
R-ZB—=F+=ZA=+—H

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFEE E—& |- et E=H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
40,571,398 — 2,293,528 38,277,870
534,000 — — 534,000
41,105,398 - 2,293,528 38,811,870

e BRESBEARE AL TENB 2 ARFE
HEME-

DERE_MRAFEAEZETURETRR
BEMENERLBOLRERE  2E A HLERYE
ZEMEE MEERKHABRURBREMYE
ZHRRRMEGFITR2EE-

TE-C-HFHR  EAEXEE =5

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on

investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement as at 31st December, 2013 are as follows:

Fair value
D¥E
HK$"000
TER
Properties held for investment 32,450,010
in Hong Kong
NREBZBERENE
Properties under construction 534,000
in Hong Kong
NREBZREDYE
Properties held for investment 4,043,060
in the United Kingdom
URREZ FERENE
Properties held for investment 1,784,800
in Mainland China
URFEAEZFERENSE
Total
HE

38,811,870

Valuation techniques
fEE R M

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BRUBERREEZAG

Direct comparison method

BRLEE

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BERUBERREE A

Combination of direct comparison
method and investment method

BRLBEARRARZAH

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation

of rental income potential, nature of the property and prevailing

market condition. Market rent per square foot

is the market rent

taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties. Estimated development costs are the costs to be

expended to complete the properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the

reversionary yield and the estimated development costs, and

positively correlated to the market rent per square foot.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBRRME

BREWE #)

RIE—=F+-A=+—"H8 2EAE=H
NEEFEZREMEZHBEMER 2N

NEBHBEZFHBOT:
Significant unobservable inputs Range
BERFTBREZE )

3.75% to 7.00%
3752 £7002

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EHEERE: &

(2) Market rent per square foot
FFHRzHHER

Estimated development costs

fhat 2 BRAA

5.25% to 5.75%
5.25[E £5.75/2

(1) Reversionary yield; and
ERERE: &

(2) Market rent per square foot
BYARzTHES

5.50% to 9.00%
5.50/E £9.00E

(1) Reversionary yield; and
EHERE: R

(2) Market rent per square foot
FYHRZTSES

EREHERTIEFRGEEESBAER L Y
EUHERERMRSEZEXR -BFHTRZH
SHRE DR RERNEZEETSAIHLR
RpBHzMEEE -G 2ERKATIRT
PR & S8 2 PR o

ATFE BRERERE R 2 BRAA
MR REFHR2THBSKEL -
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Movements of investment properties which are categorised as
Level 3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows:

22. REWE (@)

SEAE=MATENEZ RENERER
Z#BWT

HK$'000
FAT
At st January, 2013 N_E—=F—H—H 38,481,924
Additions NE 14,702
Construction costs incurred EEHE 2 EERAR 101,782
Overprovision of construction costs incurred in BEFEREKNNBEER
prior years (44,465)
Transfer from properties and other fixed assets MW 2 I HA [ E A B 168,200
Transfer to properties and other fixed assets EREMEREAME T EE (75,100)
Exchange adjustments M 5 R & 90,172
Increase in fair value recognised in the NG ERERETERZ
consolidated statement of comprehensive income NFE N 2,037615
Transfer to Level 2 [ = (1,959,000)
Disposals & (3,960)
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31st December, 2013 R-ZZB-=F+=ZA=+—8H

Certain investment properties which were categorised as Level 3
fair value measurement have been transferred to Level 2 at the
date when part of the properties were classified as held for sale
during the year (Note 13(a)). As a result, the valuation technique
has been changed from investment method used in prior years to
direct comparison method in current year when the key inputs used
in assessing their fair values become observable. Other than that,
there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year and
no change in valuation techniques used in prior years. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, their current use equates to the
highest and best use of the properties.

38,811,870

DHEBE=BAVEFEZETRENMED
REBOMEEFADBRFHELEE AEE
EFE R (MFE130)) Bt HERTE R
AEEHAEFMAZREEZENSERLE
o MaHEEAFEMBZEIZEEE RS
REE-REZIN RFEARBE =ML EEA
FEL MEFAAZHERMRAEEE R
BEMEZAVFE MEZEMAZRERER
= REERRE-

TE-C-HFHR  EAEXEE =5

%
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22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 22. WEYE (o)
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above PR EYE L EEERSE
comprise:
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Properties in Hong Kong held under: REBRUNTHEOF[AEZME:
Long-term lease REAEYD 28,042,985 26,945,340
Medium-term lease A 7,169,820 6,527,670
35,212,805 33,473,010
Properties outside Hong Kong held under: REBIMZ AT L
FREZME:
Freehold KA FNE 4,043,060 3,581,984
Medium-term lease FHIFE A9 6,296,749 4,917,824
10,339,809 8,499,808
45,552,614 41,972,818
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Cost
At 1st January, 2012
Additions
Surplus on revaluation recognised in
other comprehensive income
Transfer to investment properties (Note 22)
Disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2012
Additions
Surplus on revaluation recognised in
other comprehensive income
Transfer from investment properties (Note 22)
Transfer to investment properties (Note 22)
Disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2013

Depreciation
At Tst January, 2012
Charge for the year
Capitalised to stock of properties held for sale
Elimination upon transfer to

investment properties (Note 22)
Elimination upon disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2012
Charge for the year
Capitalised to stock of properties held for sale
Elimination upon transfer to

investment properties (Note 22)
Elimination upon disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2013

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2013

At 31st December, 2012
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23. PROPERTIES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2%
R=Z-=%-A-H
HE
REMZERGETERZ
ERAR
BRERANE (WiE22)
e /s
B

RZE-ZF+ZA=t—-H

RE

REMZERSEFERZ
EHRH

REEMEER (HiF22)

BREGANE (WiF22)

HE /W

EHAE

WZE-=F+-A=t—-H

iR

RZE-ZF—-A—-H

KEENE

BEBRELEZNEFLER

BREELANERYH
(M7E22)

HERHE /M

EHEE

RZE-ZF+-A=t—-H

rEERE

BRARBELEZNERRELR

St E
(B#¥22)

HEREE /M

5%

R-E-=f+-A=+-A

REE
RZB-=Z5+-A=t+-H

RZE-ZF+ZA=t—-H

23. MERHMEEEE

Furniture Yachts and
Leasehold fixtures and motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
&

HELH# B HERRE FERAE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FET AL THL THL
436,960 88,340 49,924 89,840 665,064
- - 5,048 21,800 26,848
98,162 - - - 98,162
(110,162) - - - (110,162)
- - (95) (2,285) (2,380)

- - 97 71 168
424,960 88,340 54,974 109,426 677700
- - 10,372 1,661 12,033
100,025 27029 - - 127,054
58,300 16,800 - - 75,100
(137.855) (33,199) - - (171,054)
- - (123) (790) (913)

- - 285 179 464
445,430 98,970 65,508 110,476 720,384
10,962 19,815 30911 81,620 143,308
1,031 2,208 7413 5,855 16,507

- - 211 - 211
(2623) - - - (2,623)
- - (49) (1,634) (1,683)

- - 59 35 94

9,370 22,023 38,545 85,876 155,814
1,148 2,576 7221 7,580 18,525

- - 189 - 189
(1,055) (1,799) - - (2,854)
- - (110) (769) (879)

- - 158 96 254

9,463 22,800 46,003 92,783 171,049
435,967 76,170 19,505 17,693 549,335
415,590 66,317 16,429 23,550 521,886

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong

and held under long-term leases.

AEEZHELHERBFHAUREBLEZER
HEOEA-

4t

“E-ZFFR EAEXEE
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REMBRRME

24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 24. BEB B RR o ¥R

DEVELOPMENT
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost 2%
At st January and 31st December R—A—BE+=ZR=+—H 71,118 71,118
Impairment loss WEEE
At st January and 31st December R—A—BE+ZA=+—H (71,118) (71,118)

Carrying amounts IREIE
At Tst January and 31st December

The property interests held for a development project are located

in Chenghai Royal Garden, Shantou, PRC. Under a Contract for

Pre-registration of Grant of State-owned Land Use Right (“Contract”)

with the district bureau of Chenghai dated 5th August, 1992, the

Group had made certain down payment. However, the Group
subsequently determined not to proceed with the land requisition

and requested for refund.

In April 2005, the Group commenced legal proceedings at the
Shantou City Intermediate People’s Court (“Intermediate Court”) to
terminate the Contract with the Shantou City Planning and State-
owned Land Resources Bureau (“Chenghai Bureau”). In view of

the uncertainty in the recoverability of the amount claimed and any

other entitlements under the Contract, the Group had made a full

provision for an impairment loss of HK$71,118,000 during 2004.

On 28th December, 2006, the Intermediate Court made a

judgment in favour of the Group. However, Chenghai Bureau

submitted an application of appeal to the High People's Court of
Guangdong Province (“"High Court”) on 23rd January, 2007 and the

Group also sent out a reply to the High Court on 13th February,
2007.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

=

R—A—BE+-A=+—H - -

FERRBER ZWERa R P EIIED
BEBEEE - REXR—AN_FNARLAE
BEREBERITZZEE L WEMAERNE
R([ER)) ARBEXNETER - A%KE
HEBRENETRM  WRIEZAR R EFRER

REZZZERFMNA AEERLETHRAR
EBE (TR AR ) ) AWSET R 81 B E 1+ &R
B(IEEER])EFEERF KIEER /A
RAREEEATSRERERBRBEERZ
HipiEss AEBMER TN F LR EEE
YEH71,118,0005 70 2 2 B 1

RZBEAFH=A=HN\R R RERHR
EAKEB AT EEEBR BT L
F-A-T=AARREBRARER (B
BER )RR RSB E HARESER-F
TLEZAT=ARSRERRERERE-

ﬁ# 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT (contd)

On 27th June, 2007, the High Court accepted the application
of appeal by the Chenghai Bureau and made the judgment as
follows: (1) the judgment made by the Intermediate Court on 28th
December, 2006 was revoked; and (2) the case was remitted
to the Intermediate Court for rehearing. On 22nd August, 2007,
the Intermediate Court accepted for rehearing the case within six

months.

On 18th February, 2008, the Intermediate Court notified the Group
that the trial period had been extended for six months to August
2008.

On 12th August, 2008, the Intermediate Court issued the civil
ruling of dismissing the Group's civil claim. The Group initiated an
application for appeal to the High Court after receiving the ruling
and submitted all legal documents required in the application
on 2nd September, 2008 that the appeal was rejected on 17th
December, 2008. On 1st June, 2009, the Group has submitted
all legal documents and application for appeal to the Supreme
People's Court (“Supreme Court”). On 27th July, 2009, the
Supreme Court notified the Group that the application of appeal

was processing.

On 23rd November, 2009, the Supreme Court made the judgment
as follows: (1) order the High Court to rehear the case; and
(2) suspend the execution of the original judgment during the

rehearing.

On 7th September, 2010, the High Court made the judgment
as follows: (1) the judgment made by the High Court on 17th
December, 2008 and the judgment made by the Intermediate
Court on 12th August, 2008 were revoked; and (2) the case was

remitted to the Intermediate Court for rehearing.

On 21st April, 2011, the Intermediate Court notified the Group
that the case was accepted. On 8th August, 2011, the Intermediate

Court held the case rehearing.

On 17th January, 2012, the Intermediate Court extended the
settlement period to 31st March, 2012. As no settlement was
reached when the settlement period expired, the case rehearing

restored.

24. HIFRRBEB 2 HEES ()

RZZEZLFRAZTEE affEREZE
BERZ EFRBRBWED W T AR (1)EH
RRERR ZEEARAE+_ A=+ NAEL
ZHHR RQZEMHWEB EF R ER B
Ril-RZTZELFNAZ+ZH  PRER
BEIRANERNEHMBRAZERME-

RIZZEZNF_ATNR HERAERE
EERABRERAAEAZE-_ZTZTNFNA-

AMCEENENA+T B FRER TERSE
HEEBROAEENRERE WEIZHEE
B AEBEESRERBERELF YR 2ZF
NFENAZBERREMTNEHEE -
BAERR ZEENGF T AT AT
EFERELZLF - RZZEThFAA—H X
EEEMPBESEEARER (&S ER])#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

24. PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD FOR FUTURE 24. HEHARBE Y XEREZE o)

25.

DEVELOPMENT (contd)

On 5th December, 2012, the Intermediate Court delivered a
judgment in favour of the Group and upheld the majority claims of
the Group. Chenghai Bureau submitted an application for appeal to
the High Court on 26th December, 2012 against the said judgment.
On 4th January, 2013, the Group also submitted an application for
appeal to the High Court in respect of those remaining minority
claims of the Group that were not upheld by the Intermediate

Court.

On 8th May, 2013, the High Court held a case hearing. On 3rd
December, 2013, the High Court delivered the judgment which
upheld the ruling of the Intermediate Court and dismissed the
appeals of both parties. Up to the date of the approval of these
consolidated financial statements, no court notice has been
received by the Group that any rehearing has been applied by both

parties.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost A

At 1st January, 2012, RZE—=F—A—H"
31st December, 2012 and —E-—FE+-A=+—HEK
31st December, 2013 —E-=%+-A=+—8H

RZZE-—ZF+ZRER FHRERELA
R XFAERBABOFBBER - BEERR
TE-CF T A RE ek RER
FH-R-T—=F—ANB AEETHF
BAERRBXFAREGR T /NEDFRARFR
BFIR - A= AUER SR i AR

RZZE—=FRANB 2L ERMEREZ
EHE-R-E—=F+-"A=0 54 EK&
EME EFAZ EFRHTESFE BB LR
HFS R ARUEBT IR H) - BLE BRI A B SRR
EH AEELAKEEEBAME LF AR
EENEEAERF-

BIEE

Amortisation and impairment B RAE
At 1st January, 2012 WZE——F—-A—H
Amortisation for the year REEHH

At 31st December, 2012 and
31st December, 2013

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2013

At 31st December, 2012

RZZE——F+-A=+—HEK
—E—=%+-A=+—H

REE
R-ZBE-=5+-HA=+—H

RZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H

Trading and
exchange
rights Trademark Total
EERESE B mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
2,705 14,300 17,005
2,705 12,870 15,575
- 1,430 1,430
2,705 14,300 17,005
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (contd)

The amortisation expense for 2012 has been included in the other

expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five

years.
GOODWILL 26. BB
HK$'000
FHET
Cost AR
At Tst January, 2012 R-_Z——F—H—H 377,627
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries REENE R R EUE R
(Note 44(b)) (Hi&E44(b)) (6,941)
At 31st December, 2012 and R-_EZ——F+_A=+—HK
31st December, 2013 —E-=F+A=+—H 370,686
Impairment HE
At st January, 2012, R-ZE——F—H—H"
31st December, 2012 and —E——F+ZA=+—HK
31st December, 2013 —ET—=%+ZA=+—H 47,748
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31st December, 2013 R-ZE—=%+=-A=+-—H 322,938
At 31st December, 2012 RZZE——F+=-RA=+—H 322,938
TE-ZFFH EASEEE =50

25. ML EE (&)

TE-CFZBEAXER ARE2ERE
WRZEMAXA -

bEPEEREREERFY XNEKE
BMROEHEE-

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26. GOODWILL (contd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), which in all cases were determined
to be investment properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying
amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) as at
31st December, 2013 and 2012 were allocated to CGUs with the

following places of operation:

+
T

el

United Kingdom

)
B

Hong Kong

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projection approved by the Directors. The
pre-tax discount rate of approximately 9.27% (2012: 7.78%) per
annum for the United Kingdom property business was applied to
the cash flow projection when assessing the recoverability of the
CGU containing goodwill. Full impairment for goodwill of the other

businesses in Hong Kong was recognised in prior years.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rates which are determined by
the Directors based on past performance and its expectation for
market development. The values assigned to key assumptions are
based on historical experience, current market condition, approved
forecasts and consistent with external information sources. Gross
margin is budgeted gross margin. The discount rates used were
determined with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating
to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amounts of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate
recoverable amounts. During the years ended 31st December,
2013 and 2012, the Directors determined that there was no

impairment of the gooduwill.
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26. B (@)
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EEAEEBReEAEN ([ReEM]) -
BELETASENBATMER 2IREY
¥ RZE—=FRZFT—ZFF+ZA=+—
ArzEZEEE (HRREREER) DEE
PRSI 2 R B

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET
322,938 322,938
322,938 322,938
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in associates:

— Unlisted —JEET

Share of post-acquisition profits and

other comprehensive income, Hith 2 mE Uk
net of dividends received Mk 2 WA B

The Company provided corporate guarantee to secure bank loans
granted to its associates. The fair value of the financial guarantee
contract was determined by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuer, and it was recognised as interests
in associates and financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates as at 31st December,
2013 are set out in Note 53.

The investment properties held by the Group's principal associates
were revalued as at 31st December, 2013 by B.l. Appraisals. B.l.
Appraisals continues to adopt investment method and/or direct
comparison method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation
methods and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair

values of investment properties are detailed in Note 22.

All of the associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

27 BE A TR

AR & R R KR

BEWBREN R

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER TR
283,696 283,758
2,086,835 1,734,110
2,370,531 2,017,868

ARARRHRARERESEBEQRFERIR
TERZER BBERENZAFHERBEL
FERBEXMAEMERERFIEERARE
E W ERAEEZERE M BN TR AR
REBERREE LY BEREE

AEBR-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HZIE
Bt N B RIS BN RES3 -

AEBEZBERRZREMECHRTBE
BHER—_F—=F+_A=1+—HE&TE
fif o RADBIBR I ERAIRE R R R E &
HBUERMEET L - EAREEREMERF
B2 AEITEREBRRNME25 5 -

PR EEE R BRI ARREDNRN AL S B
HERA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 27.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set out below.

Finedale Industries Limited

Non-current assets
Current assets

Current liabilities

Net assets

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the associate

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year

Group's share of result for the year

Note:

FRBEE
mBEE
mEBAE
BEFE
AEERA S

RER G M2

REBBIEARFEEEA

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the unaudited
financial statements of the associate which were prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs adjusted for the differences arising from accounting
policies and different accounting year end dates between the Group and

the associate.

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

=

mEMBRRME

& NTIREZE @)

AEEEEREA (EAELEERAA) 2

MEFBERBARINT -
EHEZERAT
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2,763,000 2,588,000
103,590 50,252
(42,280) (273,392)
2,824,310 2,364,860
33.33% 33.330
941,437 788,287
67,522 64,956
¥
459,450 637,555
153,150 212,518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (contd) 27.

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not individually

material:

Group's share of results for the year NEBBERFEERE

Group's share of other comprehensive REEBEARER
income for the year Hih 2

Group's share of total comprehensive income RSB (5 R F [E
for the year 2HEWN BT

Group's aggregate interests in these associates ~ ANEERZ LML N F] 2

AR
ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES 28.
Interest-bearing advances to associates BATEE R R 2 EEFRIE
Interest-free advances to associates BN E R F 2 R RRIA

The advances to associates are unsecured. An amount of
approximately HK$987,345,000 (2012: HK$971,089,000) was
expected to be repayable in 2016 (2012: in 2016) and the
amount is therefore shown as non-current. For the remaining
HK$714,674,000 (2012: HK$671,579,000), the Group will not
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the
reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-
current. The interest-bearing advances to associates bear interest at

the prevailing market rates.

BENTERE e

FERER 2B ERAEAMIBEER:

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
197,704 367,488
93,535 5,979
291,239 373,467
1,429,094 1,229,581

(4 B A T 208
2013 2012

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

67,415 67,384

1,634,604 1,575,284

1,702,019 1,642,668

B E N B FRIE A E R - 89987,345,000
BIL(ZZT—=4:971,089,0008 L) Z &
BEAR-ZZE-—R"F(ZE—Z=ZF:R=Z
—NF)EE BZFRBEIEERBEE -
BRI £ 2714,674,0008 7 (ZF — = F:
671,579,000/ 7T ) * A& ET & 2Kk A7
REFT—FANEE  BUZEHBEIEETD
M BN E AR Z T ERENER 2 TS
BERETE -

TE-C-HFFHR  EAEXEE =5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments comprise:

REMBRRME

Unlisted equity securities: JELEMRAE S
— Incorporated in Hong Kong —REBTMAKZ

— Incorporated elsewhere (note i and ii)

— R E M & M AL (HY REiRii)

Club debentures 2EES
Total e
Analysed for reporting purpose as: TERERBRZ DT

Non-current

Notes:

FREIEE

P &L -

(i)  On 5th September, 2012, the Company and Loyal Pride ()
Limited (“Vendor of Grandday”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the disposal of 49 shares of Grandday Group
Limited (“Grandday”) (“Sale Shares"), representing 49% of the
entire issued share capital of Grandday, with Dynamic Grand
Limited (“Purchaser of Grandday”) at a total consideration of
US$500,000,000 (“Grandday Disposal”) (“Agreement”), which
was satisfied by way of (i) cash as to US$200,000,000; and (ii)
issuance of the loan note by the Purchaser of Grandday to the
Vendor of Grandday in the principal amount of US$300,000,000
("Loan Note"). The Grandday Disposal was completed on 7th
September, 2012 and the Loan Note was included in “Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments” (Note 37) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Pursuant to the Agreement, in case of certain events (as defined
in the Agreement) occurred, the Vendor of Grandday shall have
an option to purchase all but not some of the Sale Shares from
the Purchaser of Grandday (“Buy Option”) and the Purchaser of
Grandday shall have an option to sell all but not some of the Sale

Shares to the Vendor of Grandday (“Sale Option”).
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2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
72,003 98,532
11,014 3,899
83,017 102,431
16,581 16,581
99,598 119,012
99,598 119,012
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AR ([FEER]) (AARz—BEE2
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Bt 1) - RERFAE 2 EE BITARAR 2 49%:
K {E 4 % /500,000,000 7T ([
€1 ([p#]) - MRERATAHARZA
(i) A28 £ % £200,000,0003 7T : R (i #Af&
B 7 [MIEA K B 5 317 AN % §8/3300,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

0)

(i)

(Cont'd)

For as long as any of the indentures security as defined in the
Agreement (“Indentures Security”) remains outstanding, if, on
or before 20th January, 2016, an event of default as defined
in the Agreement occurs and such event of default agreed in
the Agreement has not been waived, remedied or cured or is
otherwise continuing as at 20th January, 2016; or if a demand
is made on Grandday and/or Lucky Grow Holdings Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Grandday, under any of the
Indentures Security and/or any enforcement action is taken under
any of the Indentures Security, the Purchaser of Grandday shall
sell and the Vendor of Grandday shall purchase all but not some
of the Sale Shares (“Automatic Sale").

Details of the Grandday Disposal including the Buy Option, the
Sale Option, the Indentures Security and the Automatic Sale
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 5th
September, 2012.

At 31st December, 2013, the Group had invested approximately
US$917,000 (2012: nil) in an exempted limited partnership
registered under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands (“Partnership”).

The Partnership has a term of ten years from the date of initial
closing. Purposes of the Partnership are to generate long-
term capital appreciation by acquiring, holding and disposing of
equity, equity-related securities, independently or with others,
in established or less established companies (or their parents)
with substantial operations in the PRC; or such other activities as
deems necessary.

The Partnership is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
loss (if any) because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors consider that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. At the end of the reporting period,
the Directors considered that no impairment loss was required for
the investment in the Partnership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.

30.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (contd)

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, the Group’s unlisted
floating rate notes were all disposed of with the G-Prop Disposal
(Note 44(b)). The unlisted fixed rate notes were included in "Assets
Classified as Held for Sale” (Note 13) in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31st December, 2012 as a result of the

Chi Cheung Disposal which was completed on 6th February, 2013.

For unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong measured
at fair values, details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in
Note 5(c).

Certain unlisted equity securities incorporated in Hong Kong and
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated in
the United States of America are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the Directors consider that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably. During the years ended 31st
December, 2013 and 2012, the Directors considered that there
was no impairment loss recognised in relation to the unlisted equity

securities.

The club debentures classified as available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. During the years
ended 31st December, 2013 and 2012, the Directors considered
that there was no impairment of the club debentures since the

market price less costs to sell are higher than its carrying value.

At the end of the reporting period, available-for-sale investments
totaling approximately HK$27,885,000 (2012: HK$20,770,000)

were stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

ADVANCE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The advance made to a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured
and interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment within

one year and the advance is therefore shown as non-current.

29.

30.
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31. LOANS RECEIVABLE 31. BB
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Long-term loans receivable, unsecured: B BIREER:
Non-current ERBIEE 16 15
Current mENEE 13 17
29 32
Long-term loans receivable, secured: BEAZEREBRER:
Current MENIEE - 34
Other loans and advances, unsecured R EE R R RIE - -
29 66
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B —F A EI BN 51
under current assets MENEE 2 FIA (13) (51)
Amounts due after one year —FIEBIE 2 A 16 15
Loans receivable comprise: JEWERBHE
Effective
Maturity date Collateral interest rate Carrying amounts
ZHA 5 4 BEF= IREE
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Loans receivable st June, 2015 Nil 18% per annum 29 32
JEW S 3R —ZE-RFRA—H = FB18E
Loans receivable 17th September, 2013 Properties Prime - 34
JE W E R ZE—=FhA++tAH L/ES REEAE
29 66

—B-cEEH EABLEE L3
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32. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 3. HitemEE

(@) Pledged deposits (a) EHEFEX

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$632,780,000 (2012: HK$2,169,839,000) have been
pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are therefore
classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to approximately HK$578,803,000 (2012:
HK$62,673,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.
The deposits carry interest rates at prevailing market rates.
The pledged deposits will be released upon the repayment of
relevant borrowings.

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly

amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients.
Time deposits, bank balances and cash
The time deposits carry interests at prevailing market deposit

rates and mature within one month. The Group does not hold

collateral over the balances.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Completed properties SRR
Properties under development held for sale FELEz#RTYME
Less: Impairment loss recognised B B MR EER

As at 31st December, 2013, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amounts of the properties under development held for sale with
reference to current market situation and the estimated selling price
of the properties under development held for sale provided by B.I.
Appraisals. No impairment loss was made during the years ended
31st December, 2013 and 2012.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, completed properties
write-down of HK$606,000 was recognised to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as a result of decrease in net

realisable value of certain completed properties.

Properties under development held for sale with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$240,566,000 (2012: HK$816,450,000) are

expected to be completed after one year.

33.MERFE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
550,171 825,781
2,052,542 3,222,058

(279,467) (279,467)
1,773,075 2,942,591
2,323,246 3,768,372

RIZE—=F+A=+—H ES2EHE
HEZERTYEZREMSRE L HRFRA
BRI A EE  EHAFMELE 2
EHAMEZERHE RBEE-_T—=K_F
——F+ZA=+—BI-FEANREEAR
BEE-

REBEE-_ZEZ——-F+-_A=+—ALFE"
BANE TIERYE 2 AT 3RFE T 5 A4
EEEBRBRRMERMERRRESER
606,000/ 7T ©

BUELEZERTWEZEDEY
240,566,000 7T ( = — = £F : 816,450,000
BIL) BN —F R IER

TE-C-HFFHR  EAEXEE =5
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17th June, 2012,
Moon Ocean Ltd. ("Moon Ocean”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, received a notice of preliminary hearing dated
15th June, 2012 (“First Notice”) from the Land, Public Works and
Transport Bureau (“LPWT") of Macau Special Administrative Region
of the People’s Republic of China (“Macau”) regarding the transfers
of the rights deriving from the land concession for the five plots of
land adjacent to the Macau International Airport (according to the
Group's record, formerly known as Lots 1C; 2; 3; 4 and 5 (parcels
5A, 5B and C), Avenida Wai Long, Taipa, Macau, which registered in
the Macau Land Registry under Nos. 22993, 22991, 22995, 22990
and 22989 and later revised as Lots 1C1; 1C2; 1C3; 2a; 2b; 2d; 3;
4a; 4b; 5al; 5a2; 5a3; 5b1; 5b2; 5b3; 5b4; 5b5; 5b6; A3a; A3b;
Ada; A4b; Ela; E1b; E2 and E3 which registered in the Macau Land
Registry under No. 22989 as per the 2011 Revision (as defined
hereinafter)) (“Macau Land") from five Macau companies to which
the land concession was originally granted (“Original Owners") to
Moon Ocean (“Land Transfers”) and the amendments of the related

land concession contracts.

It was stated in the First Notice that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
had approved the initiation of the procedures for declaring the act
of the Chief Executive of Macau in confirming the approval of the
Land Transfers and the amendments of the related land concession
contracts in March 2006 invalid and returning the Macau Land to
the Original Owners (“First Matters"); and (ii) Moon Ocean may
make written submission regarding the First Matters within 15 days

from the receipt of the First Notice.

The Group's Macau legal advisor (“Macau Legal Advisor") made the
submission which set out the basis for opposing the First Matters on
29th June, 2012. As set out in the Company's announcement dated
14th August, 2012, Moon Ocean received a notice from the LPWT
("Second Notice") stating that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
had declared the previous act of the Chief Executive of Macau in
confirming the approval of the Land Transfers and the amendments
of the related land concession contracts in March 2006 invalid
("First Decision”); and (i) Moon Ocean may present objection to
the First Decision within 15 days from the gazetting of the First
Decision and may also appeal to the Court of Second Instance of
Macau. The First Decision was then published on the official bulletin

of the government of Macau dated 15th August, 2012.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

On 28th August, 2012, the Macau Legal Advisor filed on behalf
of Moon Ocean an objection to the Chief Executive of Macau's
Bureau against the First Decision. On 14th September, 2012, as
Moon Ocean had not received any reply from the Chief Executive
of Macau regarding such objection, Moon Ocean and a purchaser
of La Scala (“Purchaser”) therefore jointly lodged an appeal to the
Court of Second Instance of Macau against the First Decision on the
same date (“First Decision Appeal”). Details of lodging the objection
and the First Decision Appeal were disclosed in the Company's
announcements on 28th August, 2012 and 14th September, 2012

respectively.

On 4th September, 2012, Moon Ocean further received a notice
of preliminary hearing (“Third Notice”) from the LPWT which stated
that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau had approved the initiation of
the procedures for declaring the act of the Chief Executive of Macau
in confirming the approval of the increase of residential gross floor
area of the Macau Land from 392,505 to 537,560 square meters
and an exchange of 9 small pieces of land with a total site area
of approximately 1,282 square meters initially forming part of the
Macau Land for 8 small pieces of adjacent land with a total site area
of approximately 5,204 square meters as announced on 9th March,
2011 (“2011 Revision”) was invalid (“Second Matters"); and (ii)
Moon Ocean may make written submission on the issues regarding
the subject matter of the above procedures within 15 days from the

receipt of the Third Notice.

The Macau Legal Advisor made the submission which set out the

basis for opposing the Second Matters on 19th September, 2012.

On 16th April, 2013, Moon Ocean received a notice (“Fourth
Notice”) from the LPWT stating that (i) the Chief Executive of Macau
declared the previous act of approval of the 2011 Revision by the
Chief Executive of Macau was invalid (“Second Decision”); and (ii)
Moon Ocean may present objection against the Second Decision
within 15 days from the gazetting of the Second Decision and may
also appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau. Details of
the Fourth Notice were disclosed in the Company's announcement
dated 16th April, 2013. The Second Decision was then published
on the official bulletin of the government of Macau dated 17th April,
2013.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

On 15th May, 2013, Moon Ocean and two purchasers of La Scala
jointly lodged an appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau
against the Second Decision (“Second Decision Appeal”). Details
of lodging the Second Decision Appeal were disclosed in the

Company's announcement dated 15th May, 2013.

On 11th October, 2013, the Court of Second Instance of Macau
issued a notice of its decision made on 10th October, 2013
regarding the legitimacy of certain parties involved in the First
Decision Appeal (“Parties Rulings”). In the Parties Rulings, the Court
of Second Instance of Macau has determined that each of (1) the
Purchaser who has joined Moon Ocean as a co-appellant of the First
Decision Appeal and (2) Macau, which Moon Ocean has identified
as a counter-interested party in Macau's capacity as a shareholder of
the four Original Owners which were dissolved, is not a legitimate
party in the proceedings. As a result, the Court of Second Instance
of Macau has (i) acquitted the appeal against the First Decision
made by Chief Executive of Macau filed by the Purchaser and (ii)
acquitted Macau as a counter-interested party of the First Decision

Appeal.

The Group has been advised by the Macau Legal Advisor that
the Parties Rulings is only an intermediate act of the Court of
Second Instance of Macau (which was intended to address certain
procedural issues, namely whether certain parties are legitimate
parties in the proceedings) prior to the judgment of the substantial
issues under the First Decision Appeal. Such decision is not the
actual judgment of the First Decision Appeal which will take place
at a later stage. The Parties Rulings do not affect the appeal lodged
against the Chief Executive of Macau as a defendant under the
First Decision Appeal filed by the Macau Legal Advisor on behalf
of Moon Ocean. Further, the Parties Rulings will not prejudice the
rights of Moon Ocean to claim damages against Macau in relation to

the First Decision in separate administrative proceedings.

On 2nd December, 2013, the Purchaser filed an appeal against
the Parties Rulings to the Court of Second Instance of Macau of
excluding her from the First Decision Appeal. Insofar as the acquittal
of the Purchaser as a co-appellant is concerned, if the appeal
lodged by the Purchaser against the Parties Rulings is unsuccessful,
the First Decision Appeal will proceed with Moon Ocean as the sole

appellant.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

On 16th January, 2014, Moon Ocean received a reply from the
Court of Second Instance of Macau regarding the First Decision
Appeal that it decided to hear the witnesses. The depositions have
been scheduled and will take place between 12th February, 2014
and 19th March, 2014.

On 29th January, 2014, the Macau Legal Advisor submitted a reply
to the Court of Second Instance of Macau regarding the Chief
Executive of Macau's defense in the Second Decision Appeal which
was filed on 24th June, 2013.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Directors have sought
the legal opinion from the Macau Legal Advisor regarding the First
Notice, the Second Notice, the Third Notice and the Fourth Notice
("Macau Legal Opinion").

In the Macau Legal Opinion, it is pointed out that the First Decision
and the Second Decision are immediately valid and enforceable
and the appeal to the Court of Second Instance of Macau does not
suspend the validity and enforceability of the First Decision and the
Second Decision. As such, Moon Ocean is no longer the registered

owner of the Macau Land.

In addition, it is also showed in the real estate registration
certificate (¥ ¥ & 52 & B3) issued by the Macau Real Estate
Registry of the government of Macau that there is registration of
a note stating Moon Ocean’s land title over the Macau Land is
invalid. In addition, written report on real estate registration (%)
¥ B EMIRS) issued by the Macau Real Estate Registry of
the government of Macau shows that the land titles of Lots 1C,
2, 3, 4 and 5 of the Macau Land are currently under the name
of Tai Lei Loi Development Company, Limited, San Hung Fat
Development Company, Limited, San Hou Kong Development
Company, Limited, San Vai Ip Development Company, Limited and
Lei Tin Development Company, Limited respectively, which are
Macau companies among the Original Owners. Other than Tai Lei
Loi Development Company, Limited, all other Original Owners are

already dissolved.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

Regarding the probability of winning the First Decision Appeal and
the Second Decision Appeal (“Appeals”), the Macau Legal Opinion
states that there are strong legal arguments to win the Appeals and
for Moon Ocean to get back the Macau Land. However, it is further
stated in the Macau Legal Opinion that in view of the past judicial
case outcome (which is, somehow, similar to Moon Ocean'’s case)
there is a plausible risk that Moon Ocean might not get the legal
title of the Macau Land back.

The cost incurred in the Macau Land have been classified mainly
into three types: (1) cost of acquisition of the land concession
amounted to approximately HK$1,329,023,000 paid to the Original
Owners (“Land Costs"); (2) premium paid to Macau in relation to
the 2011 Revision amounted to approximately HK$624,073,000
("Premium”); and (3) other cost, incurred in the construction
project of the Macau Land up to 31st December, 2013, amounted
to approximately HK$558,593,000 (2012: HK$542,357,000)

(“Construction Costs").

It is stated in the Macau Legal Opinion and also set out in the Third
Notice that pursuant to the provision of article 282 paragraph 1 of
the civil code (R)A5#2) of the laws of Macau, the declaration of
nullity of an act shall have retrospective effect and the interested
parties shall return the objects exchanged in such act. As such,
Moon Ocean shall be obliged to return the Macau Land and vice
versa, the Original Owners and Macau shall return the Land Costs

and the Premium to Moon Ocean respectively.

Based on the Macau Legal Opinion, the First Notice, the Second
Notice, the Third Notice, the First Decision Appeal and all available
information, the Land Costs, the Premium and the Construction
Costs of approximately HK$542,357,000 which incurred up to
31st December, 2012 were reclassified to “Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments” (Note 37) in the consolidated statement of financial

position of the Group as at 31st December, 2012.
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33. STOCK OF PROPERTIES (contd)

Further based on the Macau Legal Opinion, the Fourth Notice,
the Second Decision Appeal and all available information, the
Construction Costs incurred during the year ended 31st December,
2013 according to the work certified for the site formation and
slope stabilisation for the Macau Land amounted to approximately
HK$16,236,000 were classified as “Stock of Properties” and such
amounts were reclassified from “Stock of Properties” to “Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments” (Note 37) in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group at the end of the

reporting period.

.YEEFEE e

WIEE— S RPIUERER ENmBM--F=
PORTE LR RFTB IS ER ARBRM T2
WEFERNFEEEZIRRENBE=Z
—=F+ A=+ HALFEMEEZEEN
A#4916,236,0008 L  ENEAE [MEGFE]
MR EHREASED REE PSR ®
A MEFE]EFHEE [BKERERE Ed
RIERFHIE] (MFE37)Ae

34. INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING 3. FEEEZRE

Investments held-for-trading comprise: RHIEEBEZRERRE:
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTER FET

Listed investments: FHRE:

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT ZRAES 894,816 154,275
Equity securities listed elsewhere REMMER T2 RAE 5 = 2,052
894,816 156,327

The fair values of the investments held-for-trading are determined
based on the quoted market bid prices available on the relevant

stock exchanges.

HEBBZREZAFEDRBERBEZESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss

comprise:

Bonds: B
Non-current EmEEE
Current mENEE

At 31st December, 2013, bonds with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$3,371,153,000 (2012: nil) were available to be
loaned to a financial institution for earning lending fee income and
the same or substantially the same securities will be returned to
the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the
securities pooled lending agreements. Bonds of aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately HK$447,067,000 (2012: nil) were on

loan at the end of the reporting period.

Major terms of the bonds are as follows:

Notional amount Maturity
RMB520,000,000 2016
US$85,000,000 2015
US$27,000,000 2016
US$701,000,000 2018
US$171,000,000 2020
Us$84,000,000 2022
US$71,657,000 2023
US$17,000,000 2043
US$309,865,000 Perpetual

The bonds denominated in US$ carry fixed rate range from 3.00%
to 13.25% per annum of which US$1,200,522,000 are callable and
the bonds denominated in RMB carry fixed rate range from 5.625%

to 9.250% per annum.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period, their fair values are determined by
reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions and

brokers.
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35. EERBEBERURRAFE

BERBABBEARBRAFELEREE
B

2013 2012

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTEx THET

1,080,272 993,942

11,038,052 9,575,592

12,118,324 10,569,534

R-ZE—=ZF+-B=+—H EHELEYD

£3,371,153,0008 T (Z T ——F @) 2 &

5 BEEEFHEEBRAIHEL T —He

BMEEARDEEBRA  MZEHFIARSE

RzELHBESHEERNAEE REREHKR B

B EH 2 BREE A4 R447,067000% 7T
—E—F |

BEEZEBERDWT:

E&EHE Z8A
AR #520,000,0007T —E-RF
85,000,000% J© —ET-n0F
27,000,0003& 7T —ZE-RF
701,000,000% 7T —E-N\F
171,000,000 7T —E-TF
84,000,000% 7T T F
71,657,0003 7T T =4
17,000,000% T —EW=%F
309,865,000% 7T KA

NETHEZESFREEFFEXI00EZE
13.25/8 » Hd11,200,522,0003 7T 2 &% A7
Bo MARBHEZEFRBEAEFNER
5.625[E Z9.250/F °

BEHFERRBERZMIER S ARFERRS
HIRFIGR - EHF 2 A FAEDRESBEERE
Lz EARBEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

36. INVENTORIES FOR COSMETIC PRODUCTS 36. bt mEE

37.

Finished goods

Raw materials

SR an
R

2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FTAT
2,453 3,041
884 338
3,337 3,379

As at 31st December, 2013 and 2012, all inventories were stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value.

N-ZT-—=FR-F-—&F+-A=+—8"
17 5 e A & 7 5 R o B 51

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables FEUE 5 FIA
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE
Deposits and prepayments e RN FIA
Other receivables H b fE W GRIA

BE o

37. EWERIE -RERBEMNRIE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
224,787 39,647

(2.177) (4,266)
222,610 35,381
353,976 419,656
2,478,681 4,637,209
3,055,267 5,092,246

Included in trade receivables mainly comprised of rental receivables
billed in advance and settlements from tenants which are expected

upon receipts of billings and properties sales proceeds receivables.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in
advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts
according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.

BRESFATERRBLAEMBHREL
ERBBEERIN 2 BREE R EHE
& U KA o

AEBECHFRARZEERR UFEEER
SEFZERER-AEREYERYKIE
N BREEREBBZEFREEZRELZE
ERk-BEHARBEEHZZGAINCE
MEZRE-HEME2HSARBEPALEX
o BB S EBARBESEHAFIA 2

RIEFBERE -

“E-CHEFHR  FEAEXEE =25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of

allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

TE=1H
=t—HEXTH
At—BEATA
N+BRE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

0 — 30 days
31 — 60 days
61 — 90 days

Over 90 days

ZZE=+H
=t—HEXTH
At—HEATH
A+BRE

mEMBRRME

37. BWRE -#ZHERANRIE

(&)

REBERWAZERARZI 2 EBEEZ K
B (HIBREEE) R @& R ZRE D740

T

2013 2012

HK$000 HK$'000

T FHAT

34,892 4264

94,416 22,244

18,396 1,201

74,906 7672

222,610 35,381

EEHMERBIRE 2 EWE ZRIA 2Rk D

i UENE

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
10,152 3,561
15,694 21,794
6,405 679
11,476 7487
43,727 33,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At 1st January m—A—H
Amounts written off as uncollectible LA BT Ug [e] 1 $8 2 5B
Amount recovered during the year REFEKEFIA

Impairment losses recognised in respect of

B R 18

trade receivables

At 31st December

For those past due but not impaired receivables, except for the sale
of properties developed by the Group, although the Group does
not hold any collateral as security, the Group has assessed the
creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial settlement
after the end of the reporting period, and considers that the
amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising (i) properties sales
proceeds receivables of approximately HK$2,824,000 (2012: nil);
and (i) rental receivables of approximately HK$8,652,000 (2012:
HK$7,487,000) which are sufficiently covered by rental deposits
received from the respective tenants, no allowance is required for

these receivables under the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

FLIEME 5 SR RER 2

R+=-—HA=+—H

37. BWRE -#ZHERANRIE

(#&)

RERE B
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
4,266 4,533
(2,034) (384)
(138) (53)
83 170
2,177 4,266

MEBHEEREZEREFIANS  BARAKE
B E R A TR A R R (R T EARE
BRZVEHEN) AEECHEEE B
EEFLHEENRERRR 2 T EHERED
Arfh - R AREBED AR - EF R —
F(ERRERE) cEERE-

HRNTHZERESFIEBE()MEHERE
W SR IE 492,824,000/ 70 (ZF — ZF 1 &) ;
Ko (i) fE UL T2 & 498,652,0008 L (=T — =
% :7,487,0008 7T) (A RUUHAMKZEEP
ZHSTMRE) RERNEEZ BHER
R EARZEREWGRIBELEE-

REAMTEREZEBRESREZERR
bf e

TE-C-HFFHR  EAEXEE =5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments as at 31st December,

2013 and 2012 mainly comprised the following:

REMBRRME

37. BWRE -#ZHERANRIE

(#&)

R_E—=ZFR-_ZT——F+-_A=+—H

2 RN - e RN KA E B B
THRE:

(a) During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the (a)
Construction Costs of approximately HK$16,236,000 (2012:
HK$542,357,000) was reclassified from “Stock of Properties”

to “Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments” and such amount

was recognised as “Costs of Development Recognised in

respect of Property Project in Macau”. Furthermore, during the

year ended 31st December, 2013, the Macau Project Costs
(as defined hereinafter) of approximately HK$5,799,000
(2012: HK$152,380,000) for maintaining the sales office

and the show flat was incurred and classified as “Debtors,

Deposits and Prepayments” and such amount was recognised

as "Costs of Development Recognised in respect of Property

Project in Macau”.

As at 31st December, 2013, included in other receivables,

deposits and prepayments were (i) the Construction Costs

reclassified from the stock of properties of which details were

set out in Note 33 and (ii) the deposits and prepayments

related to the costs incurred which were mainly for the

presale of the residential units in the property project of
the Macau Land of approximately HK$158,179,000 (2012:
HK$152,380,000) (excluding inter-company transactions
of approximately HK$8,166,000 (2012: HK$5,488,000)

in respect of rental charges and building management fee

of office premises and advertising space charged to Moon

Ocean by its fellow subsidiaries) (“Macau Project Costs").

As set out in the Macau Legal Opinion, depending on the

evidence to be produced in Macau court in connection

therewith, it is probable for Moon Ocean to claim back

the Construction Costs and the Macau Project Costs

from Macau. However, due to the nature that there is no

contractual right or obligation for Macau to return Moon

Ocean the Construction Costs and the Macau Project

Costs, they were recognised as “Costs of Development

Recognised in respect of Property Project in Macau” of
approximately HK$22,035,000 (2012: HK$694,737,000) in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during

the year ended 31st December, 2013.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont'd)

@

(Cont'd)

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group shall pursue
to claim Macau the Construction Costs and the Macau Project
Costs through legal processes should the outcome of the
Appeals be unfavourable to Moon Ocean. Based on the
Macau Legal Opinion, the Directors are of the opinion that
it is probable for the Group to claim back the Construction

Costs and the Macau Project Costs.

As detailed in Note 33, included in other receivables were the
Land Costs and the Premium which were reclassified from

the stock of properties.

The Directors are in the opinion that based on the Third
Notice and the Macau Legal Opinion, by mere operation of
the laws of Macau, the Original Owners and Macau shall be
obliged to return the Land Costs and the Premium to Moon
Ocean respectively should the outcome of the Appeals be

unfavourable to Moon Ocean.

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated
financial statements, only one Macau company, Tai Lei Loi
Development Company, Limited exists and the other four
Macau companies among the Original Owners were dissolved
("Dissolved Original Owners"). As stated in the Macau
Legal Opinion, the shareholders of the Dissolved Original
Owners shall have the obligation to return the Land Costs to
Moon Ocean under the laws of Macau. It is further pointed
out in the Macau Legal Opinion that, the shareholders of
the Dissolved Original Owners are (1) Macau, holder of a
quota equivalent to 88% of the share capital of each of
the Dissolved Original Owners; (2) Macau Tourism And
Amusement Company Limited, holder of a quota equivalent
to 5% of the share capital of each of the Dissolved Original
Owners; (3) Macau International Airport Company Limited,
holder of a quota equivalent to 5% of the share capital of
each of the Dissolved Original Owners; and (4) Tai Fok Wah
Investment Limited, holder of a quota equivalent to 2% of

the share capital of each of the Dissolved Original Owners.

37. BWRE -#ZHERANRIE

(#&)

(@

(&)

EERR HWEF LFERTHFRMoon
Ocean’ AEE K EERIEFFIRPTHRR
FREERR AR RORFIIA B AR » IRBIRPTA
BER EERRAEEXEAERE
FREERAN FORFITE B ROA -

AN P FE33 PR AL B FE R L At B WK R TR
REWERAFRE (BDENEFEEHN
DHR) °

EERA BEFZMHRNKBIVER
ERBBRPVEEMIRIE  WZELF
4R F A Moon Ocean * Bl [R &L A K
SEPIE E AT B MMoon OceaniRiE £
PR K 18 o

HEMRERNGEUBERERER EF—
FRFIRRIAFIRERERER AT
[RAHE A E P E A HERPI R RILE #E
A (TEEARRARLA L)  RIBRPIER
ER DREAURAR A ZREBIRPE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont'd)

(@) (Cont'd)

mEMBRRME

(&)

@

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial

statements, the Appeals are still in progress and save as

disclosed above, there is no notice from the Court of Second

Instance of Macau regarding the timing for legal procedures

to be conducted.

(b)

Included in other receivables as at 31st December, 2012

()

were the Loan Note of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,327,070,000) received from the

Purchaser of Grandday as part of the consideration for the

Grandday Disposal as detailed in Note 29. The Loan Note

with maturity date of 7th June, 2013, secured by the share

charge (“Share Charge”) over the Sale Shares and carried

interest at 2% per annum, was fully redeemed by the
Purchaser of Grandday in the amount of US$100,000,000 on
4th March, 2013 and US$200,000,000 on 6th March, 2013

respectively, together with all interests accrued thereon. The

Share Charge was discharged and released on 6th March,

2013.

Save as mentioned above, the terms, provisions, guarantee,

indemnities and undertakings contained in the Agreement

(including without limiting the Buy Option, the Sale Option,

the Indentures Security and the Automatic Sale contained

therein) and the other transactional documents in relation to

the Grandday Disposal shall remain in full force and effect to

the extent not already performed or discharged.

Details of the redemption of the Loan Note were set out in

the announcement of the Company dated 6th March, 2013.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of
approximately HK$606,055,000 (2012: HK$339,738,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

38. BfYBRIA R BT KA

FERREREARECREEMNESREY
606,055,000/ 7t ( —F — =4 : 339,738,000
BIT) °

ENEZRENRESHRZRESITWT :

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
0 - 90 days ZENTH 129,729 36,717
Over 90 days A+BUE 476,326 303,021
606,055 339,738
BORROWINGS 39. 6 &
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
Secured bank loans repayable ARTIHEERE BER
within a period of: IRITER:
Less than one year —FLAT 933,623 7,375,272
More than one year but within two years —F LA BB A 4,869,098 239,651
More than two years but within five years M LA 1B B e R 11,655,195 9,095,966
17,457,916 16,710,889
Other secured loans repayable within one year  BR—FR{EE 2 EtGEBER 6,453,060 6,796,686
23,910,976 23,507,575
Less: Amounts due within one year B — FAEIH 2 FIE (7.386,683) (14,171,958)
Amounts due after one year —F & B 2 8 16,524,293 9,335,617

The bank loans denominated in HK$ are variable-rate borrowings
which carry interest ranging from HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.35% or
cost of funds plus 2.25% (2012: HIBOR plus 0.66% to 2.50% or

cost of funds plus 3.20%) per annum.

IABTHEZRITERRZEEE  FRKRE
BIRITRZER SN 25BEMN2.35B R Eekik
BEWRAIN225B(ZBE——F  FHETH
¥R B N0.66/E Z= 2. 50E TNE kL E S HMA
320 ) -

TE-C-HFFHR  EAEXEE =5

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

39. BORROWINGS (contd) 39. fEE (m)
The variable-rate bank loans denominated in RMB carry interest NARKEGHEZZESRITERIZPEARIRIT
at 110% (2012: 110%) of People’s Bank of China base rate per Dz ARBITEEFFEZ110% (=
annum as announced by the People’s Bank of China. T—ZF:110%)FTH -
The borrowing denominated in GBP from a financial institution ASEEEHE 2 & RS B UL T B F A 85.97
carries interest at a fixed rate of 5.97% (2012: 5.97%) per annum. EFE (ZT—ZF:597F) - MEFHER
The weighted average effective interest rate is 3.5% (2012: 3.5%) FMER/ISE(ZTE—_F:35F) -
per annum.
The remaining loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry HRERAZEEE FLREMN mMEEER
interest at costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus SRR MO2EZENMNOIE(ZETE—=F:025
0.2% to 0.3% (2012: 0.25% to 0.35%) per annum. [EZ0.35F )5t E -
The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other REBAVBETTANINEEAE 2 BENT
than HK$ are set out below:
2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FER FET
uss e 5,951,162 6,620,036
GBP R 3,235,906 3,255,596
RMB AR 2,420,248 1,492,800
11,607,316 11,368,432
40. PROVISIONS 40. Bt
2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Provision for rental guarantee: HeERES:
Recognised for the year REFEHER 70,076 -
Reduction during the year AN [ AR (12,133) -
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 57,943 -
Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERERBRZ A
Current mENEE 39,424 -
Non-current ERBNIEE 18,519 -
57,943 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

40. PROVISIONS (contd)

41.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the sale and
purchase agreements for sales of the Properties, the Vendor is
only required to deliver vacant possession of the Properties to
the Purchasers of the Properties two years (or, at the right of the
Vendor, for a further period of not more than six months) after
completion (“Deferred Vacant Possession Period”). The Vendor
shall guarantee the Purchasers of the Properties the monthly rental
income (“Guaranteed Monthly Rental Income”), which is payable

monthly in arrears, during the Deferred Vacant Possession Period.

Provision for rental guarantee represented the best estimate by the
management of the Group on the shortfall between the expected
monthly rental income receivable from tenants and the Guaranteed
Monthly Rental Income during the Deferred Vacant Possession
Period.

40. B4\ )

BRBELEZSMNEZEEAOME ZHER R
ftF BERTARKHTHRMFER (KRBT HE
?ﬁfﬁﬂ*y/\flﬂ)ﬁﬁ%ﬁaﬁ CHRREMEZ

EER(IZEEERARE)) B E
1%¢%¥EEEA$EEE$%E?W§,HJ%H%ﬁ%ﬂ&
ARESAEZEAD) (RBARRIH
AR e

HEeRERBEEEASEEEEREEEEAE
RO ARMERESRALRES A
MEWAZ ZRAIER 2 RIEME -

SHARE CAPITAL 41. iR
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year MAFEEANARNE 2 RAREBH T -
were as follows:
Number of shares Share capital
RO#E R
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREECI0ET . EBR
Authorised: ETERA:
At Tst January and 31st December R—RA—BRTZA=+—H  5,000,000,000 5000000000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRETRARRA:
At Tst January and 31st December R—A—BEk+ZA=1+—H 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762
—E-=fEH  EABEgEE g3 217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42

43,

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

mEMBRRME

. AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES, 42. REBMEQT EZRERQNT
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND RIFEERRRKIE
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
The amounts due to associates, investee companies and non- REBBERNT BEXRERAFRIFERRR
controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free, except REHAEERBLEE BRE8 —RIIEER
for an amount of approximately HK$147,198,000 due to a non- B R #9147,198,0008 T Bt & (FF XA
controlling shareholder carries interest at 11.25% per annum. The 1MN25F) I - ZEHMERE EXIRERT
associates, investee companies and non-controlling shareholders NOEERRR R T e RS B ARE—FRER
will not demand for repayment within one year from the end of BE WZERBEIEFERSDIEE -
the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as
non-current.

DEFERRED TAXATION 43, R IE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets AT A 7R B R 7R 3R 45 HA F 38 1F 4 45 BA
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the ERREBZ I ZRERIEEE (BREE) R
current and prior reporting periods: HEE):
Accelerated
Investment tax
properties  depreciation Tax losses Total
RENE MEHERE RS Fok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FHx TR
At 1st January, 2012 R-Z——F—f—H 463,058 28,553 (55211) 436,400
Exchange adjustments BHAE - - (1,790) (1,790)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 44(b))  HENB R (Fiz44(b)) (17) - - (17)
Charged to the consolidated statement  R4RA 2 EMRERE NG
of comprehensive income 127,885 11,483 7244 146,612
At 31st December, 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—H 590,926 40,036 (49,757) 581,205
Exchange adjustments BHAE - - (80) (80)
Charged (credited) to the consolidated WA 2 E M@ HE NG
statement of comprehensive income (3t \) 77394 (6,801) 20,530 91,123
At 31st December, 2013 RZB-ZF+Zf=+-H 668,320 33,235 (29,307) 672,248

=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

43. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for financial reporting purposes:

EXEHARE
BEREMIAEEE

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability

of the future profit streams.

IRBIAYTE
WA B 1R

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$58,896,000
(2012: HK$56,572,000) will expire in one to five years. Other

unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

EERIE (2
BEFEAMBRREE & FRTRAS &
RAEDEE - S B Fg 2 BT BE

ERHFTMT

2013 2012
HK$°'000 HK$'000
FHT T
695,753 616,457
(23.505) (35,252)
672,248 581,205

RBERR REEBUTEEATER ARG
MM ARER Z EBREFIREE

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(109,933) (118,289)
(411,803) (450,337)
(521,736) (568,626)

RIBER  AEER —ERAFREH R %
RZAE AR E1E 458,896,000 7T (=&
— % 156,572,000/ 7T ) » Her AR MER 25

IR ER A AE -

—E-ZEFR

EANEXEE

J ]

g

29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. BUSINESS COMBINATION

Disposal of subsidiaries

(a) Chi Cheung Disposal

mEMBRRME

44, (S 6t

HEMB QA

(a)

As disclosed in Note 12(a), Billion Up, the Company and an

independent third party entered into a sale and purchase

agreement for disposal of the Group's entire 61.96%

interest in Chi Cheung on 5th December, 2012 at a total
consideration of approximately HK$559,199,000 (after

adjustment). The Chi Cheung Disposal was completed on 6th

February, 2013. Upon completion, Chi Cheung Group ceased

to be subsidiaries of the Group and its consolidated results,

assets and liabilities ceased to be consolidated with those of

the Group.

As disclosed in Note 12(a), since the View Success

Acquisition was completed on 23rd January, 2013, before

completion of the Chi Cheung Disposal, the assets and

liabilities of View Success did not form part of net assets

disposed of at the date of completion of the Chi Cheung

Disposal.

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R KR Mis

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(a)

Chi Cheung Disposal (Cont'd)

44. G B =)

HEMRBRR (F)

(a) E#HUHE (&)

The net assets of Chi Cheung Group as at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Loan to the Group
Available-for-sale investments
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Time deposits and bank balances
Creditors and accruals

Tax liabilities

Net assets disposed of

Non-controlling interests

Cumulative gain on available-for-sale
investments reclassified from equity

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration received

Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received

Expenses incurred for disposal

Time deposits and bank balances disposed of

b

TARE

FERE

i)

\

B

b

REER EFEEZEEFENT:

FEMERIA - & MBI 0R
EHIFE R R IRTT AR
JE A5 BR TR K% & & 5R0A

MIAE &
HEEEFE
FEFRRME 5
mERAEZERDR

FEREZ RS
HEMHB AR 2K
RERR

AT 575 A 32 A5
BEYRHRERE
HEMELZMX

HEREEZRE M IFHE:

BERHRERE
HEMEEZMX

BHEZERERRIBITER

—E-ZEFR

2013
HK$°000
FET

410,000
97,937
3,029
563,264

(490,434)

(1.416)

582,380
(220,774)

(a.224)
198,536

555,918

559,199
(3.281)

555,918

559,199
(3.281)
(563,264)

(7.346)
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44. G B =)

HEMRBRR (F)

44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(b) G-Prop Disposal (b)) ZEHE

As disclosed in Note 12(b), the First Vendor and the Second
Vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which the Purchaser of G-Prop agreed to purchase a total
of 1,512,059,473 shares in G-Prop ("G-Prop Shares") at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$423,661,000
(of which approximately HK$285,338,000 was payable to
the First Vendor and approximately HK$138,323,000 was
payable to the Second Vendor). G-Prop Shares represented
(i) all the shares of G-Prop held by the Group and the
Second Vendor; and (ii) approximately 62.26% of the entire
issued share capital of G-Prop with approximately 41.93%
held by the Group and approximately 20.33% held by the
Second Vendor. The consideration to the First Vendor was
satisfied by the Purchaser of G-Prop in cash of approximately
HK$65,968,000 and by promissory notes of approximately
HK$219,370,000. Details of the G-Prop Disposal were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17th
June, 2012.

The G-Prop Disposal was completed on 6th August, 2012.
Upon completion, G-Prop Group ceased to be subsidiaries of
the Group and their consolidated results, assets and liabilities

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013

A I20) R E—EAREC
EHHEREBEAH1,512,059,473 &
ERD(@ERD)2EEEFTL
EE# REBELR4L23,661,000
& JT - B 49285,338,00078 T IE T T
F—& )7 iM#138,323,0007% T FE 1
TE_EBEF cERMNBEEROAEER
REZEBRHEAZEZHEERD &30
TEEHEBITRAE62.26%  HH L
41.93% M A E B FAF M 420.33%H
E_BARE-ZF—EAZREBRGE
B 77 AIR & 4965,968,000/%8 7T K B 4
219,370,000 T X - @ EHE 2515
EHERARRBPHA-ZT——F A
+ERZAMA-

TEHE
R IR 1&
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44. G B =)

HEMRBRR (F)

44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)
(b) G-Prop Disposal (Cont'd) (b) =EHE(#E)

The net assets of G-Prop Group as at the date of disposal REER cEXBEEFENT:

were as follows:

2012
HK$'000
FAT
Investment property wEME 33,700
Goodwill [EES 6,941
Loan to the Group ERXTAREER 220,000
Interests in jointly controlled entities HENEHIEEE R -
Available-for-sale investments HFERE 79,049
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERTE & R TER FIE 672
Time deposits and bank balances BT R R SRTT S 4 156,723
Creditors and accruals FEAS BRI K FERT 3R IE (110,667)
Deposits and receipts in advance Re RiagFIE (391)
Tax liabilities MIEBE (15)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMRIBEE a7
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 385,995
Non-controlling interests IR A (211,996)
Cumulative loss on available-for-sale HRAERETHEZ
investments reclassified from equity HEXREZREIE 2,085

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR Z WS 106,955
Total consideration RERTE 283,039
Satisfied by: ATRH AR XA
Cash consideration received YIRS RE 65,968
Promissory notes received B EE 219,370
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRX (2,299)

283,039
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMEEZReRAFRE:
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 65,968
Promissory notes received (note) EUEAZ (MF5T) 219,370
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZRX (2,299)
Time deposits and bank balances disposed of BEHEZEBFRRIRITER (156,723)

126,316

TT-=EFHR EABEEE &=

%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44

45.

46.

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

. BUSINESS COMBINATION (contd)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(b) G-Prop Disposal (Cont'd)

Note: The promissory notes, which carried interest at a fixed rate
of 12% per annum with maturity date of 5th November,
2012 which was subsequently extended to 31st
December, 2012, were fully repaid in 2012.

The gain on the Chi Cheung Disposal and the G-Prop Disposal
were included in “Other Gains and Losses, Net" (Note 16) in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other
loan facilities and to secure the securities transactions, granted to

the Group are analysed as follows:

Investment properties REME
Properties and other fixed assets
FEEEZKRE

Investments held-for-trading

Financial assets designated as at fair value

through profit or loss TREE
Non-current pledged deposits FETR B IR K
Current pledged deposits B 1 4R 17 3R

=

44,

45.

46.

MEREBEEEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

mEMBRRME

¥Kedt
HENEAR (&)
(b) SEHE(F)

Mk B (RE BFFEI2EFER S -
A A-_E——_F+—AEA
(EgiEz 22— —F+_A=+—
A))ER-_E——FE2MNF-

ERNERGENE I RACHALAERE
Wt 2 [E i REEFE] (Hi6)
A e

TEFRERS

BAREGR A M RREMA D PIREIN ANEE
UEEBFRERSH -

EEERH

RBERR  AEELSREGAHAEESHHZ

EERBBERURBRATEZ

—RIRTREMCEFBRENARBZZ HME
WzEERBEIFTAT:

2013 2012

HK$000 HK$'000

TER TAT

40,888,109 39,283,948

512,137 481,907

894,816 156,327

12,118,324 10,550,292

578,803 62,673

632,780 2,169,839

55,624,969 52,704,986




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (contd)

47.

In addition, the Group has subordinated and assigned its advances
to associates of approximately HK$1,626,762,000 (2012:
HK$1,567,506,000) to financial institutions to secure general
banking credit facilities granted to associates and interests in certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged as part of the

security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 47.

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

Authorised and contracted for: ERERBEREL:
Development expenditure of properties BEEVEERMAX

in Hong Kong
Development expenditure of properties
in Mainland China
Development expenditure of properties
in Macau
Capital investment in the Partnership (note)
Renovation of properties BRI

Acquisition of other fixed assets

Note: As disclosed in Note 29, the Group entered into an agreement
for investment in the Partnership with capital commitment of
US$50,000,000, of which the remaining capital commitment of
approximately US$49,083,000 will be payable upon receiving
drawdown notice from the general partner.

The Group's associate had capital commitments which were
authorised and contracted for at the end of the reporting period
of approximately HK$830,431,000 (2012: HK$571,202,000),
of which the Group's share of commitments amounted to
approximately HK$207,608,000 (2012: HK$142,801,000).

REMBRRME

46. EEEH

FEIREMEERMAX

BPIMEERFAX

BREBZEARKRE (ME)

Yo B EL A B B

BN REBERBE AR ERZET
—REEBESNZEH L QA KA
#91,626,762,0008 L (=T — = &F:
1,567,506,000/8 70 ) EE R R ET L REE
MARARRRRETHBA TZ%/‘\E‘J B & i
EAAREBERE TIRITEE Do
BARAE
RIREBR  NEE A TFE:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
321,947 612,980
3,868,293 4,325,394
2,795,440 2,781,962
380,592 -
1,460 2,305
7,106 -
7,374,838 7722,641

WM EE20FT I BE - A B B — 1B B Ak
¥& A50,000,000E T2 AR EBKEE
AN—HEABELEHE ETHTOA
49,083,000 7T 2 & ANFIE BRI E | E i@
BBAZIRBUBAE S e

RBEER AEEZ ﬁ%%“?aﬁt/&&a
BH 7 B R AEPEL A830,431,000/8 7T (=

— % :571,202,000/%8 7T ) ﬂﬁ%¢$%li§&
16 2 A YEHE#) 5207,608,0008 70 (—ZF ——
£ : 142,801,000/ 7T) °

“E-ZHEFHR  EAEXLEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

mEMBRRME

48. AR EE

(@) The appeals to the Court of Second Instance of Macau (a)

with regard to the First Decision and the Second

Decision

As disclosed in Notes 33 and 37, the Macau Legal Advisor
filed on behalf of Moon Ocean the appeals to the Court of

Second Instance of Macau against the First Decision and the

Second Decision. Up to the date of the approval of these

consolidated financial statements, the Appeals are still in

progress and save as disclosed in Note 37, there is no notice

from the Court of Second Instance of Macau regarding the

timing for legal procedures to be conducted.

During the course of the development of La Scala

project on the Macau Land, Moon Ocean has entered

into construction contracts with certain contractors. The

anticipated outstanding committed amount of these

construction contracts are approximately HK$2,795,440,000
as at 31st December, 2013 (2012: HK$2,781,962,000)

although none of the construction contractors, including

China Construction Engineering (Macau) Company Limited

which is the main construction contractor with construction

contract sum of approximately HK$2,252,457,000 (after

excluding the subcontracting contract sum of approximately
HK$409,543,000), has commenced construction work on

the Macau Land. Should the final outcome of the Appeals

be unfavourable to the Group, Moon Ocean may consider

entering into cancellation agreements with these contractors

for the development of La Scala project on the Macau Land.

Adjustments may be necessary to be made to the liabilities

arising from the outstanding contractual obligations under

these construction contracts should there be claims from

construction contractors.

sitta
u -
s
—m—
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BB -IRRERE ZIRREET 2R
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BN RE3I BTN EE  RP AR
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HAERGETFRRERD  ZFLHFD
FETEP BRI EI7AEEN ™
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (contd)

(a)

(b)

The appeals to the Court of Second Instance of Macau
with regard to the First Decision and the Second

Decision (Cont'd)

Regarding the presale of La Scala project on the Macau
Land commenced since March 2012, the Group recorded
contracted sales on sale of properties of approximately
HK$3,825,269,000 as at 31st December, 2013 and 2012
representing presale of 302 units of La Scala project, after
cancellation of two contracted sales, and sales deposits of
approximately HK$383,853,000 have been received by
the Group. Should the final outcome of the Appeals be
unfavourable to the Group, Moon Ocean may consider
entering into cancellation agreements with purchasers of La
Scala in the presale and refunding the deposits received.
Adjustments may be necessary to be made should there be

claims made by purchasers of La Scala in the presale.

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Appeals are still in progress and save as
disclosed above, there is no notice from the Court of Second
Instance of Macau regarding the timing for legal procedures
to be conducted. The Directors are of the opinion that, based
on the Macau Legal Opinion, there is strong legal argument to

win the Appeals.

Litigation in respect of a presale transaction of one

unit of La Scala

On 3rd March, 2012, two purchasers of La Scala (“Plaintiffs”)
jointly signed a binding offer letter with Moon Ocean for
which the Plaintiffs agreed to acquire one residential unit in
La Scala (“Binding Offer Letter"). According to the Binding
Offer Letter, the Plaintiffs paid the first deposit amounting to
approximately HK$603,000 (“First Deposit”) to Moon Ocean
on the date of signing the Binding Offer Letter.

REMBRRME

48. AREE (&)

(a)

(b)

—E-ZEFR

ME—NREREZREETZEM
AR 2 LR (48)

N2 ——F=-ARBEE ZRML
WG e mEEE AEBNR_T—=
FR-_FE——F+-_A=+—HEHEE

g o /218 B302ME B - 2£ExB 2
& A D% A3,825,269,000/8 7T (M
MEDENOEE 27 RASEEE K
HR47383,853,00078 7T Z S E1E & ° 7%
£ PR Z2HEEERT RN AEE - Moon
Oceanfl fE @ E B EITEE M5 o 9 /&

BREUAHBELEBDERIRSE -
BEMGeMEZERREEMEAR "
AR RE R BLULE L FHEE -

HEMRERNGEMBEREER Z5 L
FAMEEITE R R EXXFTEEIN @&
KRR PI R BUEB M R T AR T
ZHEM-BRRA BBRREFVEEER
REBAEBERMBIZEERGZE L
i

FRAfE HmERET —EEUZAER
5 Z R

RZE—ZF=A=H MagemE
BER ([R&FAL)EMoon Oceantt[F
METENORDEN & B RFA
REBEEME e mE—EATEEM ([A
HWRNDELHH]) - BBZENRNELD
B RFARBTZANRAZHRE
H mMoon Ocean 15 € R4 £603,000
BrrzEEZke ([8ERe])-

EAEXEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (contd)

mEMBRRME

48. AREE (&)

(b) Litigation in respect of a presale transaction of one (b)

unit of La Scala (Cont'd)

On 18th July, 2012, the Court of First Instance of Macau

issued a writ of summons to Moon Ocean regarding to (i) the

request from the Plaintiffs to cancel the Binding Offer Letter

and (ii) claim against Moon Ocean to return the First Deposit

as the terms of the Binding Offer Letter are inconsistent with

the presale agreement (‘Litigation”). On 24th September,

2012, the lawyer of Moon Ocean representing Moon Ocean

filed a defence to the Court of First Instance of Macau. The

first court hearing of the Litigation would be held on 30th

April, 2014,

Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial

statements, no judgment of the Litigation is issued by the

Court of First Instance of Macau. The Directors consider that

the Litigation is still in the preliminary stage and the outcome

of the Litigation is uncertain.

(c) Other contingent liabilities ()
Guarantees given to banks, in respect of A& R FIER ZRITEEHE
banking facilities utilised by associates MERTTIRH 2 R

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
banking facilities in lieu of the cash
public utility deposit jointly utilised by
subsidiaries

Repurchase guarantee given to banks in
respect of mortgages facilities given to

property purchasers by subsidiaries

=. .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

=

RERBRERRITHARZ
EERUARBEREAAER
e RERITIR M 2 R

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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RZEBE—ZF+ A+ N\B BRFENRE
PRz RaF AR ZE LR D E L HIER
B3 T8 5 175 30 N — BXif [AIMoon Ocean
E-EEASK ROERBIEZALD
RAODBLH K (i)[FMoon Oceanfi &R iR
BEEERS ([FR]) RZZT—ZFA
A =+ H Moon Oceanz &K AEEM A
ZFMoon Ocean[mBPI ¥ AT 12 2 H it
BB R ERKRABR ZZ—M
FOA=+HMAZE-

BEREAGSMB|RRE B R
AR W BMBEHFAZHRE-EFER
AR AT BR A AR B BR M AR AR 2 S SR BE

E e

RBRRZMEERERIRT
RH{BFREZOBER

HitthREE
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FTEx TET
861,600 822,500
15,000 15,000
164,113 302,586
1,040,713 1,140,086




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

49. OPERATING LEASES 49. EEEY

The Group as lessee

AEBR/EBEA

2013 2012
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Minimum lease payments paid under operating ANFEE B BYZE 2 & ERL
leases in respect of premises during the year X AT 2 IR & R E 7,195 5,640
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R|ERR NEBB A REEEEN 2B
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating & &EME &M 2 AHER O HAR 2 8 -
leases, which fall due as follows:
2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FTER FHAT
Within one year E—FR 4,346 3,034
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF (BEEERME) 2,020 484
6,366 3,518

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an

average term of one to two years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$1,791,257,000 (2012: HK$1,673,201,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$68,888,000 (2012: HK$79,728,000).

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 1.53% to 9.06% (2012: 3.17% to 16.76%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held have committed

tenants ranged from three to four years.

EEMOHESEAEEREETEFTEYE
BN zBE -HOFHB-—EMFEAE K-

FEBHHEA

FAZR A EBRER 2 M3 S WA KD 41,791,257,000
BEIL (T — —4%:1,673,201,0008 7T)
5 B 2 #768,888,000/8 7T ( — & — — 4 -
79,728,000/ 7T ) °

REBE 2 REYHE BRI FERGEEF1.53%
E9.06% (Z T — —F :3.17%E16.76% ) Z
FelaEE KBS s WE RS RERR
FHHR=ZZF-

“E-ZHEFHR  EAEXLEE




230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. OPERATING LEASES (contd)

50.

The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year E—FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years RENE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the
Group are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging
from 5% to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the
employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly joined employees
are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$9,869,000 (2012:
HK$9,524,000) represented contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

Transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

Income received from associates:
Secretarial fee
Management fee
Interest income
Accountancy fee
Consultancy fee
Income received from a Director and
a substantial shareholder/companies
controlled by a Director and a substantial
shareholder:
Management and maintenance service
income
Property management service income
Property management services,
leasing administration services and
general administration services income
Rent
Rent paid to a company controlled
by a Director and a substantial shareholder
Rent and building management fee
received from a Director
Rent and building management fee
paid to associates
Consideration received for the disposal of
a residential unit of the Group's stock of
properties to an associate of a Director and
a substantial shareholder (note (i))
Consideration received for the disposal of
a residential unit of the Group's stock of
properties to an associate of a Director
(note (ii))
Considerations received from a company
wholly-owned by an associate of a Director and
a substantial shareholder for the disposals of
motor vehicle and registration mark
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il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Secretarial fee, accountancy fee and consultancy fee were charged
based on an appropriate allocation of costs incurred by central
administrative departments of the Group. Rent and building
management fee were determined on terms similar to those
applicable to transactions with unrelated parties. Management
fee, management and maintenance service income (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14th
December, 2012), property management service income (details
were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 18th June,
2010) and property management services, leasing administration
services and general administration services income (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15th July,
2013) were charged at the terms agreed by both parties. Interest
income was charged at the prevailing market rate based on
outstanding balance during the year. Considerations received for the
disposals were determined with reference to the prevailing market

value.

Notes:

(i) As set out in the Company's announcement dated 6th February,
2013, an associate of a Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company entered into a preliminary sale and purchase
agreement for acquisition of a residential unit of the Group's
stock of property held for sale, namely One WanChai, at a
consideration of approximately HK$22.7 million. The transaction
had been completed on 5th April, 2013.

(i)  As set out in the Company's announcement dated 13th August,
2013, an associate of a Director entered into a preliminary sale
and purchase agreement for acquisition of a residential unit
of One WanChai at a consideration of approximately HK$18.0
million. The transaction had been completed on 2nd September,
2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

51. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 51. EXBEA TR F (&)
(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(iii)

)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into preliminary
sale and purchase agreements with the Connected Parties for
acquisition of certain shops of the Group's investment property
in Hong Kong at a total consideration of approximately HK$39.1
million (after discount) with deposits received of approximately
HK$6.0 million as at 31st December, 2013. The transactions are
expected to be completed in 2014.

As set out in the Company's announcement dated 8th March,
2012, companies wholly-owned by a Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company and his close family members
respectively had issued letters of offer to purchase or entered
into agreements to acquire certain residential units of the Group's
stock of properties under development and stock of properties
held for sale at a total consideration of approximately HK$179.7
million. Among which, the acquisition of a residential unit of the
stock of property held for sale at a consideration of approximately
HK$9.0 million had been completed during the year. At 31st
December, 2013, the total deposits received in respect of the
transactions amounted to approximately HK$17.1 million with
balance of consideration aggregated to approximately HK$153.6
million.

Balances:

Details of the balances with related parties at the end of the

reporting period are set out in Notes 28 and 42.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes

17 and 18. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives

is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval

of the Board of Directors having regard to the performance of

individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition.
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The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st

December, 2013 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

Name of subsidiary
WEAREH

Alpha Team Limited

Billion Up Limited

Both Talent Limited

TRERAT]

Cardin Factory Limited
FABERATE

Century Basic Limited

Chinese Estates, Limited
EYNEE 1IN

Chinese Estates
(Harcourt House) Limited

Chinese Estates
(Macau) Limited
EABEX (M) ARATF

Chinese Estates
(The One) Limited

Chinese Estates
(Windsor House) Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
operation
BT
mE

British Virgin Islands
REAMRES

British Virgin Islands
REAMRES

Hong Kong
£

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBgERAEE/
BB

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BB

Macau
#FI

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong
BA

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBRRME

Class of share/

registered
capital held
Fis e,/
HEREXEH

Ordinary
EFili

Ordinary
E¥il

Ordinary
E¥ili

Ordinary
E¥ili

Ordinary
E¥ili

Ordinary
LEK

Ordinary
LEK

Ordinary
LEK

Ordinary
Rl

Ordinary

LEK
Non-voting
deferred
ERZRETR

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRRE/
ZRER

US$1
IE

US$1
IE

HK$1
157

HK$2
28T

US$1
IEV

HK$1,000
1,000 T

HK$200
2007 7T

MOP25,000
25,000 9 &

HK$2
28T

HK$100
100/ 7T
HK$2
28T

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

5. T EM B QRIS

Proportion of
nominal value

of paid-up capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KARFEBERE
HAMEAAEZESL
Directly  Indirectly
B k3

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

EEZRRIHLEAHNBARENGSRES
RIR B TRABER -FT—=F1+=
A=+ HAUAEEZXENEEREEY
E7MBRRZHE.

Principal activities

TEEK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property development

NEER

Property trading

Securities investment

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REZBR
REEERB

Property investment

NERE
Investment holding
BRI
Property investment
NERE

Property investment

NERE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. X EKMIB A RI=HEE (@)

(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Conduit Road
Development Limited
TREERARLA

Country Homes Limited

Dollar Union Limited

ERYARRA

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings
Limited

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited

BEREE (TE)
ARAT

Evergo Holdings
Company Limited
FEREEERAA

Fair Eagle Finance
Credit Limited
RETHAERAF

Place of
incorporation/
operation
TEMARL
BEHEY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBEBRES/
BB

Bermuda/
Hong Kong

aRE/
Bk

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RRARRES/
B

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
7R

Class of share/

registered
capital held
FisRe,/
HEMEXE

Ordinary
EFil

Ordinary
Non-voting
deferred ordinary
EREE
Non-voting
deferred founder
BREE

R NG

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
TER

Ordinary
LEK

Ordinary
LEK

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BRBE/
HEMER

HK$10,000
10,0008 7

HK$200
200/ 7T
HK$164,400
164,400 7

HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T

HK$100
100/ 7T

US$1
IE

HK$100,775,869.10
100,775,869.107% 7T

US$2,509,454
2,509,454% T

HK$1,000
1,000/ T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7

Proportion of
nominal value

of paid-up capital/
registered capital

held by the Company
AQFFEHBERA,/  Principal activities
AMEAEEZESL TEXEK
Directly  Indirectly
B k3
- 70%  Property development
NEER
- 100%  Property investment
NEKE
- 87.500* Property trading
NEEER
- 100%  Securities investment
EHRE
- 100% Investment holding
RERR
- 100% Investment holding
REAER
- 100% Investment holding
REER
= 100% Securities margin
financing
BHFRECRE
TE-CZEFR FEAEXEE S50

%
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(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Fair Eagle Futures
Company Limited
REHEAR LA

Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited
REBHERRT
Global Stage Limited
Grand Silver Limited
(Business name:
Grand Silver Capital Limited)
(%%af:
Grand Silver Capital Limited )
Grandhall Secretarial
Services Limited

BEWERBERLF

Groupluck Company Limited

Harbour Trade Limited

Hillsborough Holdings Limited

Loyal Pride Limited
BEERAF

Modern City Investment Limited

MREREERAT

Moon Ocean Ltd.

Oriental Master Ltd.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Place of
incorporation/
operation
TEMARL
BEHEY

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
RERMRES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBEBRES/
EE

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
EREARKS

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RREBRES/
BA

British Virgin Islands
RREBRES

Hong Kong
BR

British Virgin Islands

British Virgin Islands

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

REMBRRME

Fully paid

Class of share/ share capital/
registered registered
capital held capital
FERH,/ BERE/
HEfERER HMER
Ordinary HK$5,000,000
gl 5,000,000/ T
Ordinary HK$228,000,000
L@ 228,000,000/ T
Ordinary Us$1
gl 17T
Ordinary Us$1
LBk 1%
Ordinary HK$10,000
gl 10,0007 7
Ordinary HK$2
Ldik 2B
Ordinary Us$1
EER 1%
Ordinary Us$1
Rl IE
Ordinary Us$1
Tl IE
Ordinary HK$4
Lk 4% T
Ordinary US$10,000
LEk 10,000% T
Ordinary Us$1
Lak 1%7T

Proportion of
nominal value

of paid-up capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KARFHEBERE
AMEAEEZESL
Directly  Indirectly
B k3

100%

|

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 75%

- 100%

100% -

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. X EKMIB A RI=HEE (@)

Principal activities

TEEK

Brokering and dealing
in futures contracts
HEANBRRREE

Provision of brokerage
TR L R
Securities investment
BHEE

Property development

NEER

Secretarial services

WE R
Money lending
g

Securities investment
BRRE

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

NERE

Property development

NEER

Investment holding

RERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & Bt 78 3R 3R Fff 5%

52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. X EKMIB A RI=HEE (@)
(Cont'd)
Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary TEMARL FiRe,/ BERE/  KATMHFMERE  Principal activities
- PSR Fdodiohs HEMEXE AfEEX  HEREXEEZESL TEXEK
Directly  Indirectly
B k3
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
RE (FBE)ERAF B EBR 28T RERR
Paul Y. Holdings Cayman Islands/ Ordinary ~ HK$70,715,005.70 100% - Investment holding
Company Limited Hong Kong LEKR 7071500570 T RERR
HeRs/
ER
Perfect World Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Estate management
BENRERERAA B EER 10,000/ 7T NEER
Pinecrest International Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
EBEARKS EER [E RERR
Pioneer Time British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Property investment
Investment Limited Hong Kong gl 1= MERE
EBEBRES/
Ek
Pretty Wave Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
BERERRF EBEARIS LBk [E EHRE
Rich Honour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Investment holding
LRERLA B E¥iL 28T RERR
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man Ordinary GBP2 - 100%  Property investment
H5EBE £yl 258 NERE
Silver Step Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
REBRAA BiE EER 2B NEEE
Silvercord Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$14,600 - 100%  Property investment
BRERAR BE ERR 14,6007 7T ESIE
Sincere Field Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100%  Securities investment
EEEARHS EER IE BERRE
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Investment holding
EBEARHS EER IE REZK
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
REERAA B EER 28T NEEE
Stable Castle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Property development
ZAERRA B EER 1B NEER
CE-CSEFH  FABEEE &3 237

%
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(Cont'd)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

Proportion of

Fully paid nominal value
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ of paid-up capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital  held by the Company
Name of subsidiary BT e,/ BERA/ AROAMBHERE/
- PSR Fdodiohs HEMEXE AfEEX  HEREXEEZESL
Directly  Indirectly
B k3
Sun Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100%
Hong Kong gl 1%
RERMRESE/
ER
The House of Kwong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100%
Sang Hong Limited i LEk 500,000/ 7T
BEEBRAAF
View Success Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100%
Investments Limited s EER 28T
RFREBEBRAA
mIESENEERERARS  PRC Registered US$830,000 - 100%
(Sichuan Perfect World Property AMER 830,000% T
Management Co, Ltd.)
mIIEEBFEHEERAFL  PRC Registered US$199,600,000 - 100%
Sichuan Evergo Real Estate hE FfER  199,600,000% T
Company Limited *
FXREUE(LE) PRC Registered US$10,500,000 - 100%
BRARA hE EfEA 10,500,000% 7t
(Evergo Real Estate (Shanghai)
Company Limited) *
ExaRnE () PRC Registered US$100,000,000 - 100%
BRRARA hE &R 100,000,000%7T
Evergo Real Estate (chengdu)
Company Limited *
EXeEE () PRC Registered US$449,400,000 - 100%
BRAR H AR 449,400,000 7T
(Evergo Enterprises (Chengdu)
Company Limited) *
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at S
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting BITEMERES -
period.
“ 75% owned by the Group and 25% owned by Power Jade *
Limited 25%
& Wholly foreign-owned enterprise o SNEEERE

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 52. X EKMIB A RI=HEE (@)

Principal activities

TEEK

Securities investment

Cosmetics distribution
and trading
ftHmDERE S

Property investment

NERE

Estate management

MEER

Property development
and trading
NEEENER

Property investment

NERE

Property development
and trading
NEEENER

Property development

NEER

R E RSP EA RS 8 LB E AR

KA FHEHBT75%K Power Jade Limited# A
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53. T EHE NTFE

EERA/ILERE

53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the HEERARERE T FER

particulars of all associates would be of excessive length and RITR I TRABEBER =S —=F+=
therefore the following list contains only the associates as at 31st A=+ -HYEFEEZXEXEEFERY

December, 2013 which principally affected the results or assets of BOBMERBZFF

the Group.
Fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  equity attributable
incorporation/ registered registered indirectly
operation capital held capital to the Company
Name of associate HEMARIL FiERe,/ HBERER/ AR MEEL Principal activities
BENTER REM HEREXEH HEREE BRAZEDL TEER
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 25% Property investment
FHEERAA BB LBk BT and trading
NERERER
Direct Win Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$900 33.33% Property trading
BRERBRRA BE LBk 900/ T NEEE
Ever Sure Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 50% Property trading
KRR EBRAF B gl 28T NEEE
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,999 33.33% Property investment
EHEEERAA B EER 99998 7T ESIE
Ocean Strong Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 50% Property trading
BREZBERAA B EER 28T NEEE
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$20 50% Investment holding
(Business name: Hong Kong Rl 20ETT REEK
Power Jade Capital Limited) HRERBRESE/
(E%al: BB
Power Jade Capital Limited )
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary HK$100,000 50% Investment holding
International Limited BRE LEk 100,000/ 7 REER
FERKRHEREERAFL  PRC Registered US$27,500,000 5000 Property investment
(Shanghai Xin Mao Property H FMER 27,500,000% 7T MERE
Development Co. Ltd.)
RREMAEERAF! PRC Registered US$24,920,000 50% Property investment
Oriental Arts Building Co. Ltd.! i AMEX 24,920,000 7 and hotel operation
MERERBELE
ERARERMERRAR PRC Registered  HK$5,880,000,000 250 Property development
Chongging Sino Land H #fEA  5880,000000/4 T NEER
Company Limited
A Wholly foreign-owned enterprise A SMNEBE R
t Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise t PINEBIEE R
TE-CZEFR FEAEXEE S50

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

54. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

mEMBRRME

Investments in subsidiaries B aEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Sy INEISE
Other current assets B RB &=
Amounts due to subsidiaries REMBARFIE
Other current liabilities i N=E
Financial guarantee liabilities MEERAE

Net assets BAEFE

Share capital (Note 41) f&A (Fi5E41)
Reserves 1

Total equity MR AR 4R

(a) The HKICPA has issued the new HKFRSs which are effective (a)

for the Company's financial year beginning on 1st January,

2013. The application of the new HKFRSs had no material

effect on how the results and financial position for the

current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and

presented.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary financial

resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries.

The Directors are of the opinion that the subsidiaries are

financially resourceful in settling obligations.

(b)

The carrying amount of the investments in subsidiaries is

(b)

reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined

by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected

to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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54. XN AP BMR R MR 2 E R

2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
5,140,216 5,140,108
5,291,441 5,411,004
522,366 1,365,470
(3.262,482) (5,459,908)
(1,125) (1,792)
(107) (29)
7,690,309 6,454,853
190,762 190,762
7,499,547 6,264,091
7,690,309 6,454,853

BEGMASDEMEARIR-E
—=F-A-AMRZVREELERZ
AT BEMBREER - AT TR
MHHRERANT EH NG T HEIBE
SR MERE R BERR 2 FBREL2H
TABREREAZE -

ARRCAERBAFTVIBER UX
FMBARZARRKEE BEERA B
BRARIABRHVIEEREITEIE

MEARKREREERSEEAKD S
BOARAKEEEN2ERAKRE S
MEBARZEFAARARAEREETE -



54.

55.

56.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)

(c) Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts
due to subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,202,603,000
(2012: HK$5,287,297,000) and HK$3,163,462,000 (2012:
HK$4,744,700,000) respectively bear interest at rates
mutually agreed by both parties, the remaining balances are
interest-free. All balances are unsecured and have no fixed

repayment terms.

(d) Profit of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2013 amounted to approximately HK$6,386,027,000 (2012:

HK$3,359,692,000).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had the following transaction after the end of the

reporting period:
Connected transaction on disposal of stock of property

On 19th February, 2014, the associates of a Director entered into
a preliminary sale and purchase agreement for acquisition of a
residential unit together with a car parking space and a motorcycle
parking space of One WanChai at a consideration of approximately
HK$51.2 million. Details of the transaction were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 19th February, 2014.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6th March, 2014.

54.

55.

56.

REMBRRME
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBEHME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue

Profit (loss) before tax from
continuing operations
Income tax expense

Profit (loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share (HK$)

Basic and diluted (note)

Final and interim dividends per share

(HK cents)

Special dividend per share (HK cents)

REFBLEERZ
BRAEN (B17)
s B %

TEEREHELERY
2N (F8)

FEERAERLEE
FB2 8

TEREM (BR)

fE1h
AREHEA
FEBER

Fhan (BR) (Br)
HERREE (M)

BRABRPHRE
(&)
BREHIBRE GEIL)

For the year ended 31st December,
HET-A=t-BLEE

AEEBENFZXE EERAGEHRENT:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TR
(Restated)
(E31)
6,452,726 2,433,544 527792 2,671,012 2,151,319
6,945,040 10,113,939 3,624,745 (8,715,145) 10,222,559
(443,919)  (299,090) (115,888) (120,602) (175,093)
6,501,121 9,814,849 3,508,857 (8,835,747) 10,047,466
501 5,667 10,847 - -
6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704 (8,835,747) 10,047,466
6,317,737 9,794,937 3,497816 (8,858,245) 10,023,423
183,885 25,579 21,888 22,498 24,043
6,501,622 9,820,516 3,519,704 (8,835,747) 10,047,466
3.31 5.14 1.83 (4.60) 5.02
70 21 2 1 3
130 100 - 40 63

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share is  Bff
based on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company for
the years and on the weighted average number of shares in issue
during the relevant years. Diluted earnings (loss) per share was the
same as the basic earnings (loss) per share as there were no diluting
events during the relevant years.
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Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Net asset value per share attributable to
owners of the Company (HK$)

Number of shares issued

BERARE

EESE
BELE

EN: St

fEfh:
AREEBA
FEpRER

RATEAANEESR
EEFE(GEL)

BETRHHE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY E & B B#HE

At 31st December,
Rt=B=+-8
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T T T T
75,810,226 74,529,259 61,511,597 55,056,360 59,359,365
(28,620,461)  (28550934)  (25,143590)  (20,845,509)  (15,047051)
47,189,765 45,978,325 36,368,007 34,210,851 44312314
47,103,748 45,546,522 35,651,332 33,507,866 43,511,661
86,017 431,803 716,675 702,985 800,653
47,189,765 45,978,325 36,368,007 34,210,851 44312314
24.69 23.88 18.69 1757 22.31
1,907,619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,907619,079 1,950,000,079
—E=EEl EABEEE £55

%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TEWERHER

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31st December, 2013:

TRENAEER -—T—=F+-_A=+—HzE2MW%:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

Properties held for investment

Location

2

1. Windsor House
311 Gloucester Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
(including 157 car parking spaces)
EEXRE
ERMELES LITEINSR
(BE157{EE )

2. Harcourt House
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd,
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors,
rooms 1004 and 1805)
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERAE
ESEFETITEN
(7-8+9+22+2325"
26]:27# - 1004 %1805 E K 5N)
(BfE113EE )

3. MassMutual Tower
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 55 car parking
spaces on basement)
XEBEBAE
BBETSLITEST
(B e 2 55E =)

4. The ONE
No. 100 Nathan Road and
nos. 1-19A Granville Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
The ONE
BENELDHE
FEE1009 R
I 1-19A%

244 5238 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

—r

Lot number

1t B} 4R 5

The Remaining Portions of
Inland Lot Nos. 7717 and 7718
Section A of Inland Lot No. 781 and

BRYME

FIEREME

Sections A and C of Inland Lot No. 782

A ER7717 K% 7718% 82 T 25
M HLER 78157 AR &
A ER 78258 AR CER

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 8573
AR 85735: 2
ETEDHME

Certain parts or shares of and

in Inland Lot Nos. 3287 and 6936
P.E2 3287 16936 2
ETHoRHE

The Remaining Portion of
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6022
TR 60225
BTEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Usage
Rz

Commercial

GBS

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

GBS

Commercial

GBS

Category of
the lease
term

GEECE]

Long
=8

Long
=H

Long
=8

Medium

o 8

Group’s
interest
S
Frib Rz

100%

100%

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location Lot number

12 1t B 4R 55

5. Silvercord
Shops, restaurants and food court
on basement, shops on lower ground floor,
ground floor (excluding shop no. 38),
1st floor (excluding shop no. 39),
2nd floor (excluding shop no. 41),
the whole 3rd floor and
car parking spaces nos. 1, 2, 6,7, 8, 9, 21,
24, 25, 26, 29, 30, 34 and 35 on basement
No. 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
FER L
BRNBERDBEREREI0N
WwEzEE EERERES
WTERE T (385N
1E 395k &KL -
28 (A1FEEBIN) -
EREAER
HIET 2678921
242542629 30 ~ 34 %355 BAI

6. Causeway Place*
Various shops on ground floor,
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and
their respective portions of exterior walls,
together with flats C, 1, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q
(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor
Hong Kong Mansion
nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
103 i
ERNEE
BEREI-TRR
AR E2-105%
EBRE
W g g R
ETHER
HEBD 2 M ER
IEC 1)K L*N-O» Q
(BREEMZTR)RHEML

* Certain shops have been sold.

ETE®CEL-

Certain parts or shares of and

in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 10656 [EES £23:1
B ER10656%% 2

ETEp e

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 7742
iR 77425 2
ETEA s HE

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥JZ£Kf&

EBYWE»
BEREWE (F)

Category of Group’s

the lease interest

Usage term 3
A% HBER Frib RS

Commercial Long 100%

Residential/ Long 100%
Commercial =31

EE/ /%

“E-ZHEFHR  EAEXEE

e
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES * E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

ok

7. Gemstar Tower
The roof together with
50 car parking spaces
on st to 3rd Floors
No. 23 Man Lok Street
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BADL
BRNELR
REHIH
XEaRIEER
501 & fi

8. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(Comprising 352 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
ERNEEE
BEEIRETEN
(BRE352EITHEMR
T7{E=EfL)

9.  Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
HiEH3H
ERABNE
BRI

Coronation Circle

1 Yau Cheung Road

South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
hEE

BEOENE

KBS

Lot number
R R

Section M of
Inland Lot No. 2302

Location
1t 2

11. No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace*
Mid-Levels East

Hong Kong and the Extension

BREEI thereto and

EREENE Section X of
Inland Lot No. 2302
and the Extension
thereto
A3 B 23025 MER &
HERHA UK
Push ER 230255 XEL |2
HERSH

= Under redevelopment

g

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS

=

ERBYE @

BFEREWE (F)
Category of
the lease
Lot number Usage term
R 4R 5 A% HBER
Certain parts or shares of and Car parking Medium
in Hung Hom Inland Lot No. 545 JHEfL i
AL A3 R 5455 2
ET A
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial Medium
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I% ]
BIERM 41552
ETHoRHE
Kowloon Inland Commercial Medium
Lot Nos. 11167 and 11168 EES i
BEA I BY
11167%11168%
Kowloon Inland Commercial Medium
Lot No. 11073 GRS o 8
NEEAHER
11073%
Estimated
Approx. gross
Estimated site area floor area
completion (square feet) (square feet) Category of
Stage of date hBEE fhst the lease
completion bt Y BREEEE Usage term
TR B TR AH (FHER) (FAR) RE  HBER
Superstructure 2015 12,030 40,726 Residential Long
work in progress  —E—RH%F T=E 3
LERETR
ET
LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Group’s
interest
3
Pk

100%

33.33%

25%

15%

Group's
interest
£
FribER

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties under development held for sale

Location
5

1. No. 1 South Lane*
Western District
Hong Kong
ERAR
EELbA

* Under redevelopment

BT

2. No. 55 Conduit Road
Hong Kong
0
TFRZE55%

Stage of
completion

TRER

Lot number
B RS

Foundation
work in progress
wETRE
ET

Remaining Portion of
Sub-section 2 of
Section C

Remaining Portion of
Section A of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Remaining Portion of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C and
Remaining Portion of
Section C

Section A of
Sub-section 2 of
Section C
Sub-section 1 of
Section A of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C

Section B of
Sub-section 1 of
Section C
Sub-section 3 of
Section C of

Inland Lot No. 1300
3 £2 130037
CEB2R B r T H 7
CR1DBAR DB T E 7
CRIDBBRTHA R
CBRHTHD
CBR27 BAE D
CRIDBASDD1DE
C& 19 BBE 7
CR3NE

Remaining Portion of
Section A of

Inland Lot No. 2138
Sub-section 1 of

Section A of

Inland Lot No. 2138 and
Inland Lot No. 2612
MHLER2138AR B T H 7
Wi E21385AR 1 D B &
A R 26125

Superstructure
work in progress
LERETR
EIT

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE ¥ £ K&

EABYE®

BEHEZRRPYE

Estimated

Approx. gross

site area floor area

(square (square

Estimated feet) feet)

completion B EHE fhat

date HEY HEREER

EHTRAS (FAR) (EAR)

Second quarter 4192 41,350
of 2016
TR
£-%

Fourth quarter 36,000 87,800
of 2014
—Z-mEF
Euies

—F-=F45R

Usage
R&

Residential/
Commercial

/%

Residential
T

Group's
interest
-
Ptz

100%

70%




SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE YK &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

i B

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
tRFAEEEE
It RmHAG R
RERIE R E15%

2. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REBEBXE
IERmEG R
R R RO

3. Evergo Tower
(excluding unit no. 3 on 9th floor and
unit no. 7 on 10th floor)
1325 Central Huaihai Road and 1 Baoging Road
Xuhui District, Shanghai
ES PN
FEmRER
FEBREKI325 R EE

&15%
(TBEMEIERIOETE)

4. Platinum
233 Taicang Road
Huangpu District, Shanghai
HERE
FETEBER
KRB BE233%%

5. Lowu Commercial Plaza
79 retail shops on 1st floor
Jianshe Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
ENEEH
BERERIINTEBE
EREI1ETRTEEH

6. Splendid City
No. 123 Yingbin Avenue
Jinniu District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province

B o7 3
P9I &R ER T & 4 [
HEKE12357

i R (A b ) 3£
BFIEREME

Category of
the lease
Usage term
A& HEER
Hotel/Commercial Medium
BIE T A ES
Commercial Medium
SES A
Commercial Medium
SES A
Commercial Medium
EES o E
Commercial Medium
SES A ES
Commercial Medium
[EES H A
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Group's
interest
3
PR R

50%

50%

100%

50%

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (contd)

Property held for sale

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES 3 E ¥ £ &k

AR b W 2 o)

FIEHEME

Approx. gross

floor area
(square feet)
Location BEEIEEBEOR Usage
it B (FHAR) ik
1. Splendid City 138,946* Residential
No. 165 Yingbin Avenue T=
Jinniu District, Chengdu
Sichuan Province
HE TR
m)l AR E T 2R
' R 1655%
* Certain units have been pre-sold.
ETEMNEEE-
Property held for sale/Property under development BEHEWE REPYE
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area
(square (square
Estimated feet) feet)
Stage of completion B R st
Location completion date Ny  HEEEER Usage
5 B B B} fhst e B (FFR) (FBER) A
The Metropolis** Tower 1 Tower 1 194,411%* 1,652,000* Residential
No. 60 Yixue Lane Completed N/A and
No. 38 Tangba Street Tower 2 Tower 2 commercial
Jinjiang District, Chengdu Superstructure Third quarter TEREE
Sichuan Province work in progress of 2014
ZEE-HEEEY Tower 3 Tower 3
I R & T 3R LR In planning and To be scheduled
F2B605% design stage
#5138 EE B
=154 T
. FoE
rERETRE —E-mE
ETH B=F
£ FZE
R B LR E
* The project will be developed in phases. Area stated herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.
BEARBRER -ZEHEAREER 2BEAE-
* Certain units of Tower 1 have been sold.
FEzETELEES-
TE-CZEFR  EFEAEXEE

Group's
interest
-]
Frib s

100%

Group’s
interest
£8
PRl S

100%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE YK &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA (contd)

AR b W 2 o)

Property held for investment under development BRPEEREYE
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area
(square (square
Estimated feet) feet) Category of
Stage of completion WRERE fist the lease
Location completion date HE ABREER Usage term
% TR R st R B8 (FER) (FAR) i} HAE
Chinese Estates Plaza* Commercial Commercial 404,267* 3,229,000* Residential Medium
No. 99 Tidu Street portion: portion: and ]
Qingyang District, Chengdu Superstructure 2014 commercial
Sichuan Province construction FEREE
EEES and fit-out
mEKHBTEFR works in progress
REH995 Residential Residential
porton: portion:
Superstructure End of 2014
work in progress
BERD: EESE
TERELEE —Z-|mE
TRt
FEHD: FxH5:
TERETR —T-mE
EiTh FE
* The project will be developed in phases. Area stated herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.
HEORRER ZEREARMEER ZEEE-
Property held for development BIERREME
Estimated
Approx. gross
site area floor area
(square (square
Estimated feet) feet)
Stage of completion  HEER fhst
Name of project Location completion date HE  ABREER Usage
HE AR 2 TR R Rt EmEE  (FER) (FER) i}
1. The Coronation* No. 1 Zhongxin Section Piling work and Phase I:  2,207546* 11,086,000  Residential,
Huaxinjie Street and Qiaobei Village the associated Fourth quarter commercial
Chongging Huaxinjie Street substructure of 2016 and school
R Jiangbei District work in progress £—-5: T B%
EEW Chongging TEREBLE —2RF RER
e BEMILRE TRRETH FNE
EHHEE
‘IR R
hERIR
x The project will be developed in four phases. Area stated herein represents aggregate area of the whole project.

BRSO NARR -ZEAEARERE ZAHE-

i .= CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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Group's
interest
-
Ptz

100%

Group's
interest
-
Ptz

25%



PROPERTY IN THE UNITED KINGDOM

Property held for investment

Location

o 36

1. River Court
116 -129 Fleet Street
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
SR fm ECA
Fleet Street 116 -1295%

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥JZ£Kf&

REIY =
BEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
AR HEE A
Commercial Freehold
[EES KA FERE
ZE-ZFFR  EA

o
i

"

Group's
interest
5
Frib &

100%

&
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
VIRBRERMR

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BRYE
Property held for sale BEHEDE
Approx.
saleable
floor area Group's
(square feet) interest
Location Lot number EREROH Usage 8
1t 2 bR R (£ER) A% Pk s
1. One WanChai Section F and 7262* Residential 87.5%
1 Wanchai Road the Remaining Portion of F=E (Notes
Wanchai Inland Lot No. 8953 1and 2)
Hong Kong 740 ER 895355 FER |2 (M1 k2)
=R HHTH5
BEREF
BFEIR
* Certain units have been sold.
ATEMEED-
Notes:
P
1. It refers to the Group's percentage of interest of property development rights in a consortium which engaged Urban Renewal Authority

("URA") (the successor to Land Development Corporation) in the project.
ZEREASEETRERER ([MER]) (AIHERATZEFAAN) LARALEZEE CNEEREFNMEZEZE DL

2. The 875% attributable interest of property development rights includes the indirect interest of 12.5% held through the Group's interest in
Power Jade Limited which has a 25% direct interest in the consortium.
[EIEMEEREN 28750 0I5 BASE R Power Jade Limited ( R 7% M B25%E R ) FTHF12.50% 2 ME#ER

3. In this joint venture with URA, the consortium finances both the land costs and construction costs, and is entitled to claim for reimbursements
for land costs and construction costs so incurred together with the share of any development profits with URA in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the joint development agreement.

EEMEREECAEEET ZMBATHRARBENTREES VERKBELARBRGZ L BARBHERNTEMS R
MR ARBEERA  URETERHESEAERET
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